
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Vacant 

District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Lacey Croegaert 

Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING 
Tuesday, June 1, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

Anderson County Historic Courthouse 
101 South Main Street, Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 
 

a. R2021-026 A resolution to honor and recognize the Whitefield Fire Department on the occasion of their fiftieth 
anniversary.   

Hon. M. Cindy Wilson 
 

b. R2021-027 A resolution to congratulate the Wren High School Men’s Track & Field Team for winning the    
    3A state championship. 

Hon. Jimmy Davis 
 

3. ADJOURNMENT  
 

 
AGENDA 

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, June 1, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 
Anderson County Historic Courthouse 

101 South Main Street, Anderson, South Carolina 29624 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                       Hon. Ray Graham 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                May 4, 2021 

May 18, 2021 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS                Agenda Matters only 
 
5. REPORT FROM FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD FRIDAY, MAY 28, 2021 

 
Hon. Brett Sanders (allotted 10 minutes) 

6. ORDINANCE THIRD READING 
 

a. 2021-030 An Ordinance to adopt the operating and capital budgets of Anderson County for the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2022, and to make appropriations for such Anderson County 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, June 1, 2021 
Page 2 

 

budgets for county ordinary purposes and for other county purposes for which the county may levy a tax other 
than for Tri-County Technical College purposes; to provide for the levy of taxes on all taxable personal and 
real estate properties in Anderson County for such county ordinary purposes, including sufficient tax to pay the 
principal and interest on outstanding indebtedness of Anderson County maturing during said fiscal year; to 
adopt the operating and capital budgets of Anderson County for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, and 
ending June 30, 2022, and to make appropriations for such Anderson County budgets, for Tri-County Technical 
College; to provide for the levy of taxes on all personal and real properties in Anderson county on which school 
taxes may be levied for such Tri-County Technical College purposes; to provide for the levy, assessment and 
collection of certain other taxes and fees; to provide for the expenditure of said taxes and other revenues coming 
to the county during said fiscal year; and to provide for other matters relating to Anderson County.  
 

Hon. Tommy Dunn (allotted 20 minutes) 
 

7. ORDINANCE SECOND READING: None 
 
8. ORDINANCE FIRST READING 
 

a. 2021-032 An ordinance to amend the zoning map to rezone +/- 1.03 acres from R-20 (Single-Family 
Residential) to R-D (Residential Duplex) located at Jackson Circle. TMS#46-00-02-002 (Lot 1-A & Lot 2-A). 
(Council District 4) 

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

b. 2021-033 An ordinance to amend the zoning map to rezone +/- 1.25 acres from R-20 (Single-Family 
Residential) to R-D (Residential Duplex) located at Jackson Circle. TMS#46-00-02-026 & -027. (Council 
District 4) 

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

c. 2021-034 An ordinance to amend the zoning map to rezone +/- 1.08 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial 
District) to S-1 (Services District) located at 104 & 106 Chippewa Ln, Williamston. TMS#220-06-01-003, -
004. (Council District 7) 

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

d. 2021-035 An ordinance to amend the zoning map to rezone +/- 18.07 acres from PD (Planned Development) 
& R-20 (Single-Family Residential) to R-A (Residential Agriculture) located at 702 Belton Hwy, 
Williamston. TMS#222-00-03-007, 221-00-09-042, & 221-00-09-043. (Council District 7) 

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

e. 2021-036 An ordinance to amend section 38-311 (e), section 38-313(3), and section 38-43(d) of the Code of 
Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina so as to update the stormwater provisions of these ordinances; 
and other matters related thereto. 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

9. RESOLUTION 
 
 a. R2021-028 A Resolution to name Seth A. Riddley as Assistant Clerk to County Council to serve during the      
     absence of the Clerk to Council; and other matters related thereto. 

Hon. Tommy Dunn (allotted 5 minutes)  
 
10.  BID APPROVALS: 

 
         a. ACTC Resurfacing #117, 118 and 119 Resurfacing Projects 

Mr. Robert Carroll (allotted 5 minutes) 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, June 1, 2021 
Page 3 

 

11. APPOINTMENTS: None 
 
12. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL 
 

a. Red Cross—District One 
 
13. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
14. DISCUSSION OF SCHEDULED COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 6, 2021 
 
15. CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
16. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 
modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, 
service or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as 
soon as possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For 
assistance please contact the Clerk to Council at 864.260.1036. 
 



RESOLUTION R2021-026 

A RESOLUTION TO HONOR AND RECOGNIZE THE WHITEFIELD FIRE 
DEPARTMENT ON THE OCCASION OF ITS FIFTIETH ANNIVERSARY 

WHEREAS, at a moment’s notice, volunteer firefighters respond to uncertain and perilous 
situations to combat the threat of destructive fire in order to protect individuals, families, 
and the economic wellbeing of our community, following a long line of tradition and honor 
that inspires them to help others, neighbors and strangers alike; and 

WHEREAS, for fifty years, the Whitefield Fire Department has served the Whitefield 
community and all of Anderson County, covering more than twenty-five square miles and 
responding to hundreds of incidents each year with honor, self-sacrifice, and bravery; and 

WHEREAS, one recent instance of such bravery occurred on May 5, 2019 when Whitefield 
Fire dispatched to a residential fire with at 2063 Cheddar Road. Captain Chase Rapien 
arrived first on scene in his personal vehicle, and, after a neighbor reported two people were 
trapped inside, he entered the structure without protection of breathing device or hose, 
kicked in the front door, and brought an individual out of the front room to safety just as 
Firefighters Jacob Garrett and Daniel McCuen arrived on scene and entered the burning 
structure without protection of a hose line and located an unconscious individual, after 
which they were directed out of the house by Assistant Chief Bob Mosley from a nearby 
doorway where medical care was provided by Firefighters Chase Rapien, Bob Moley, Jacob 
Garrett, Daniel McCuen, Charlie King, Billy Guin, Adam Cromer, Landon Rogers, and 
Christopher McBee to give the victim, who later tragically  succumbed to his injuries, the 
best chance at survival until EMS arrived on scene.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby 
expresses its profound appreciation to the dedicated volunteer members of the Whitefield 
Fire Department, past and present, for their half-century of protecting and saving lives and 
property through great-sacrifice and diligent, heroic service to the Whitefield community 
and all of Anderson County. 

RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 1st day of June, 2021. 

 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY    ATTEST 
 
 
____________________     ____________________ 
M. Cindy Wilson      Rusty Burns 
County Council       County Administrator 
District Seven     
 
        ____________________ 
        Seth A. Riddley 

Assistant Clerk to Council 



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

MAY 4, 2021

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
SETH RIDDLEY
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - May 4, 2021 2

1 TOMMY DUNN:  At this time I’d like to
2 call the regular special presentation meeting at 6:00
3 at Anderson County Council to order.  I’d like to
4 welcome each and every one of you here tonight, and
5 thank y’all for coming.  
6 At this time we’ll get started with Resolution
7 2(a), R2021-023, Councilman Graham.
8 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
9 Mr. Chairman, I’d like to bring before you and
10 council Resolution 2021-023.
11 THIS IS A RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE AND HONOR THE
12 2021 CLASS 2A-1A STATE CHAMPION CRESCENT HIGH SCHOOL
13 WRESTLING TEAM; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.
14 WHEREAS, amateur wrestling represents the ultimate
15 synthesis of individual accomplishment and team
16 success; and,
17 WHEREAS, the 2021 Crescent High School wrestling
18 squad entered the season on a mission to claim its
19 first state team championship since 2006; and,
20 WHEREAS, under the leadership of first-year head
21 coach Austin Powell, the Crescent Tigers earned their
22 first appearance in the state dual-meet tournament
23 since 2016; and
24 WHEREAS, the Tigers stormed their way through the
25 tournament’s Upper State bracket, recording wins over
26 regional rivals Chesnee and Ninety-Six to set up a
27 confrontation with Bamberg-Ehrhardt, winners of the
28 last three Class 2A-1A team wrestling championships;
29 and,
30  WHEREAS, against long odds the Tigers battled their
31 way to glory, winning the state championship by a final
32 tally of 37-32; and,
33 WHEREAS, the Crescent Tigers were also well-
34 represented during individual meets for championships
35 in the various weigh classifications, having three
36 wrestlers earning state titles with one additional
37 second-place and four third-place finishers; and,
38 WHEREAS, individual state titles were won by Brady
39 Adams at 106 pounds, Kade Williams at 145 pounds, and
40 Cam Ellis at 160 pounds;
41 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson
42 County Council hereby congratulates the Crescent High
43 School wrestling team and coaching staff on their
44 outstanding team and individual accomplishments. We
45 thank Head Coach Austin Powell for his efforts to
46 represent our community with the pride, grit, and
47 determination for which School District Three is known.
48 We wish all of you great success in your future
49 endeavors, and we take pride of your achievements.
50 Mr. Chairman, let this be resolved in a meeting



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - May 4, 2021 3

1 duly assembled this 4th day of May, 2021.  I bring this
2 forth in a motion.
3 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a motion by Mr.
4 Graham.  Do we have a second.
5 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
6 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Ms. Wilson.  Any
7 discussion?
8 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman, I just want
9 to congratulate each one of the wrestlers.  I know this
10 is a true sport.  A lot of it is individual
11 competitions and then you come together as a team for
12 your state championship, as well.  But to see you guys
13 go this far and bring the state home, definitely
14 congratulate each and every one of you.  I know each
15 one of you have worked hard for this, along with the
16 coaches and parents.  I know it’s taken a lot of
17 dedication and commitment to continue to grow.  And you
18 definitely brought home the championship and definitely
19 want to congratulate you for that.
20 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Graham. 
21 Anyone else?  I think the whole council concurs with
22 that and congratulates y’all and appreciate y’all
23 representing Anderson County in an outstanding way. 
24 Hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
25 Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
26 unanimously.
27 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman, if we could
28 have the wrestlers, coaches, all you guys come down
29 front for a presentation.
30 APPLAUSE

31 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION

32 FEMALE:   Okay.  So I have been a
33 part of the wrestling team since my freshman year.  I
34 have definitely been able to watch a lot of these guys
35 grow and it’s been very heartwarming to watch them and
36 the coaches grow and achieve this.  Last year we made
37 it to a few rounds through -- or playoffs.  So it’s
38 been a blessing to see these guys achieve that and work
39 hard every day at practice because we’re there every
40 day and we have watched them sweat their butts off and
41 work their tails off to get to where they are today. 
42 So I am very proud of them.
43 APPLAUSE

44 AUSTIN POWELL:   Hey, I’m Coach
45 Powell.  Sorry, I was hiding in the back.  Yeah, we
46 really -- we had a great year.  Some of the best guys
47 and girls we could have asked for.  Of course, this is
48 my first year as the head coach.  We did overcome great
49 odds.  Not just winning the state championship but
50 actually having a season at all.  That’s what I’ve told



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - May 4, 2021 4

1 people over and over again is that we were very blessed
2 just to even have that first match, let alone finish it
3 off the way we did.  
4 So yeah, hats off to family members that have
5 helped us, community members, Crescent High School, our
6 Superintendent Kathy Hipp, our Athletic Director Jeff
7 Craft, all the coaching staff, my mat cats, my
8 rustlers.  Because, yeah, couldn’t have done this
9 without all of them.
10 APPLAUSE

11 TOMMY DUNN:  This part of the meeting
12 will be over with.  We’ll commence the regular council
13 meeting at 6:30.  
14
15 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:08 P.M.)



5

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

MAY 4, 2021

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
SETH RIDDLEY



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 6

1 TOMMY DUNN:  At this time I’d like to
2 call the Anderson County Council meeting of May the 4th
3 regular meeting to order.  I’d like to welcome each and
4 every one of you here tonight.  Thank y’all for coming
5 and participating in your local government.
6 At this time I’d like to ask Councilman Jimmy Davis
7 if he would lead us in the invocation and pledge of
8 allegiance.  If we’d all rise, please.
9 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY JIMMY DAVIS

10 TOMMY DUNN:  At this time the chair
11 recognizes Ms. Wilson.  You asked for a minute, Ms.
12 Wilson.
13 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I
14 appreciate it.  We’ve very blessed to have tonight with
15 us a wonderful, highly valued citizen from District 7
16 who has played many roles, who has been a neuro
17 intensive care nurse, volunteer fire fighter, former
18 EMS Commissioner and an all around good neighbor in
19 that area.  
20 But tonight she is here in her role as a special
21 needs nurse advocating for her children for a water
22 park that will be of great benefit to them.  And I
23 wanted to ask Teresa Morgan, please, to stand, and all
24 the folks with her who would prefer that we had a water
25 park.  Thank you.
26 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Ms. Wilson.
27 Moving on to approval of minutes of April 20.  Do
28 we have a motion to accept or any changes to be made?
29 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
30 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson; second
31 Mr. Sanders.  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
32 Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
33 unanimously.
34 At this time we’ll have citizens comments.  Mr.
35 Harmon, our attorney, will call your name.  Please, for
36 the record state your name, your district you live in
37 and you’ve got three minutes.  And it’s only on agenda
38 items only on the first go around.
39 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one is
40 signed up to speak at this point.  There are a number
41 of citizens signed up to speak at the end of the
42 meeting.
43 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr.
44 Harmon.
45 Moving on to item number 5, bridge on Shackleburg
46 Road.  Mr. Burns.
47 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, as you know,
48 the bridge on Shackleburg has been out for sometime. 
49 It is almost completed.  We have received numerous
50 requests from citizens in that area to honor a family



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 7

1 who’s lived in that area really right on that spot for
2 over a hundred and thirty years.  And in order not to
3 reveal who that is at this time, we would request
4 permission -- I believe every member of council is
5 aware of that name.  If not it’s my fault that they
6 aren’t.  But we would do that at the unveiling and
7 reopening of that bridge.  And just request permission
8 from council to proceed.
9 TOMMY DUNN:  We need a motion to move
10 this forward.
11 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
12 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
13 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders and
14 second Mr. Davis.  Now discussion.  Mr. Sanders, I
15 believe it’s your district.
16 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, it is actually
17 what Mr. Burns just said. (Inaudible.)  
18 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Anyone else? 
19 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  Turn the
20 volume up just a little bit if y’all would.  Can y’all
21 turn the volume up just a little bit.
22 BRETT SANDERS:  I didn’t have my mic on. 
23 I’m sorry.  I’ve got it on now.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Well, good.  Again, all in
25 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
26 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
27 We’re going to move on to item number 6(a), 2021-
28 014, ordinance third reading, an Ordinance authorizing
29 the execution and delivery of an amendment to an
30 existing fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes agreement to
31 provide for changes to the legal description of the
32 project for a company now identified as Anderson Solar
33 Farms, LLC and previously known to the county as
34 Project Tarpon; the amendment of the county’s
35 multi-county industrial park agreement with Greenville
36 County, South Carolina; and other matters related
37 thereto.  
38 This will be third reading.  Mr. Nelson, you got
39 anything you want to add to this before we have the
40 public hearing?
41 BURRISS NELSON:  Well, sir, nothing other
42 than it’s just a name change.  Nothing changes about
43 the fee agreement or the fee payment being made to the
44 county.  It’s just a company bought out that particular
45 portion of that total project.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  Just a legal thing; right,
47 to get the name changes on legal papers.
48 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir, that’s right.
49 TOMMY DUNN:  At this time we’ll go into
50 a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to this



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 8

1 matter please step forward, state your name and
2 district.  Speak to the chair, please.  Anyone at all? 
3 Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will be
4 closed.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
5 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
6 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders; second
7 Ms. Wilson.  Now any discussion?  All in favor of the
8 motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the
9 motion carries unanimously.
10 Moving on again, Ordinance 6(b), third reading,
11 2021-018, an Ordinance authorizing the execution and
12 delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by
13 and among Anderson County, South Carolina, South City
14 Holdings, LLC and Brett R. Baumgarten as trustee of the
15 Baumgarten Family trust dated June 26, 2001, with
16 respect to certain economic development property in the
17 county, whereby such property will be subject to
18 certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the
19 provision of certain special source credits; and other
20 matters related thereto.  Project B-4 is what this one
21 is called.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
22 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
23 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Davis and second
24 Ms. Wilson.
25 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, we need to do
26 a public hearing on this.  
27 TOMMY DUNN:  That’s right.  I’m sorry.
28 LEON HARMON:  That rolled over to the
29 second page.
30 TOMMY DUNN:  I didn’t catch it.  My
31 fault.  Thank you for catching that.  We have a public
32 hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to this matter,
33 please step forward and state your name and district
34 and address the chair, please.  Anyone at all?  Seeing
35 and hearing none, the public hearing will be closed. 
36 We have a motion Mr. Davis and second Ms. Wilson.  Now
37 any discussion?  Hearing and seeing none, all in favor
38 of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show
39 the motion carries unanimously.
40 Moving on to item number (c), 6(c), 2021-020, an
41 Ordinance to amend Section 2-632 of the Code of
42 Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina so as to
43 establish the membership, meeting requirements, and
44 procedure of the purchasing review panel; and other
45 matters related thereto.
46 This will be a public hearing.  This is where we’re
47 changing doing the way to -- if you’ve got a grievance
48 to come forward on our purchasing.  We have not had --
49 this group hasn’t met since the twelve years I’ve been
50 on council.  So we’re tightening this up and changing



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 9

1 the make-up of this.  Anyone wishing to step forward on
2 this, please step forward and state your name and
3 district again, and address the chair.  Anyone at all? 
4 Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will be
5 closed.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
6 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders; second
8 Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  Hearing none, all in
9 favor of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign. 
10 Show the motion carries unanimously.  
11 Moving on to item number 6(d), 2021-021, an
12 Ordinance to amend section 10-63 of the Code of
13 Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, so as to
14 establish the membership meeting requirements, and
15 procedure of the construction board of adjustment and
16 appeals; and other matter related thereto.
17 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
18 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do we
20 have a second?
21 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
22 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  At
23 this time I make a motion to amend the motion to add
24 the part in there -- y’all got a copy of it -- add the
25 two licensees where we have licensed people on this. 
26 Do we have a second?
27 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
28 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Davis.  Now, any
29 discussion on the amendment?  Got to go to public
30 hearing.  I’m sorry.  This will be a public hearing on
31 this.  This again is a committee of appeals where if
32 anybody gets turned down by Building and Code
33 officials, this is their right to appeal it.  And that
34 board has not met neither in the twelve years I’ve been
35 on it and we’ve had some.  So this is bringing it up to
36 date and more modernizing it and putting people that’s
37 got licenses on this to hear what’s coming up and the
38 administrator -- I hope it’ll make it better and
39 quicker if we have to have this process.  So anyone
40 wishing to speak to this matter, please step forward
41 and state your name and district and address the chair,
42 please.  Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing none,
43 public hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion to
44 move this forward?
45 JOHN WRIGHT:  So moved.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Wright.  Do we
47 have a second?
48 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
49 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Ms. Wilson.  And I,
50 again, make a motion to amend this to include the



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 10

1 wording on our license holders, two licenses, and we
2 got a copy of that.  Do I have a second on my
3 amendment?
4 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
5 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Davis.  Now any
6 discussion on the amendment?  Seeing and hearing none,
7 all in favor of the amendment, show of hands.  Show the
8 motion carries unanimously. 
9 Now we’ll be moving on to the main motion.  Are
10 there any discussion on it?  Hearing and seeing none,
11 all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
12 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
13 Moving on to item number 6(e), 2021-022, an
14 Ordinance to amend section 30-81, 30-82, and 30-83 of
15 the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina
16 so as to dissolve the emergency medical services
17 advisory committee by deleting these sections of the
18 Code of Ordinances and reserving these sections for
19 future use; and other matters related thereto.
20 Going to a public hearing on this.  And this is
21 just dissolving a committee that doesn’t meet any more,
22 we don’t need.  We’ve got a Public Safety Committee of
23 the council that handles these now and been doing an
24 outstanding job.  We’ll go into a public hearing. 
25 Anyone wishing to speak to this matter now, please step
26 forward and state your name and district and address
27 the chair, please.  Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing
28 none, public hearing will be closed.  Do we have a
29 motion to move this forward?
30 JIMMY DAVIS:  I so moved.
31 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Graham; second
32 Mr. Davis.  Now any discussion?
33 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, I just want to
34 thank Mr. Sanders for going through all of these and
35 cleaning up some of this old business and getting some
36 of this stuff kind of straightened out and more
37 simplified.  Thank you.
38 TOMMY DUNN:  Couldn’t agree more.
39 CINDY WILSON:  May I, Mr. Chairman?
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
41 CINDY WILSON:  Just a big thank you to the
42 EMS Commission that went through a lot of turmoil as we
43 adjusted to the change in requirements statewide,
44 nationally, and how it impacted our EMS squads here in
45 the county.  That was an incredible undertaking and Mr.
46 Graham has been very good to help in getting things
47 sorted out.  And I think there’s a request for
48 proposals now going out.  So it’s a constantly changing
49 area.  But we have a lot of good folks like Ms. Morgan
50 who worked hard on that.  Thank you.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 11

1 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, ma’am.  I agree.
2 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman?
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Graham.
4 RAY GRAHAM:  I just want to -- with Ms.
5 Morgan being here tonight, she has served on that
6 committee for quite sometime.  And anyone that has been
7 involved in the EMS system in Anderson County, we have
8 came so far.  We had a great program back in the day of
9 volunteer rescue squad systems.  But it’s just like
10 everything else, time restraints, training
11 requirements, commitments, it just -- we had to make
12 change and move with the change to make our system
13 better.  We have made great strides in our EMS system. 
14 I will be the first to say we still have got a ways to
15 go.  We continue to make changes regularly to improve
16 our system.  But just the members that have served on
17 that committee for so long, it was a very valuable
18 committee back in the day.  It’s just with the change
19 of times and the way things are going with the system,
20 it just -- it wasn’t needed any more.  But definitely
21 we continue, hopefully, to grow the program and move
22 the EMS system forward to basically better protect the
23 citizens of Anderson County.  Thank you.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Graham. 
25 Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
26 Opposed like sign.  So the motion carries unanimously.
27 Moving on to item number 6(f), 2021-024, an
28 Ordinance to approve the Ground Lease Agreement between
29 Anderson County, South Carolina and TCTC Research
30 Foundation, LLC for location of an asphalt research and
31 laboratory at 1428 Pearman Dairy Road Facility owned by
32 Anderson County; and other matters related thereto. 
33 This is the old TTI building.  This will be a public
34 hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to this matter,
35 please step forward and state your name and district
36 and address the chair, please.  Anyone at all?  Seeing
37 and hearing none, the public hearing will be closed. 
38 Do we have a motion?
39 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders.  Do we
41 have a second?  Second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion? 
42 Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of the motion
43 show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion
44 carries unanimously.
45 Moving on now to item number 6(g), 2021-025, an
46 Ordinance to approve a governmental real estate lease
47 between Anderson County, South Carolina and Tri-County
48 Technical College Enterprise Campus Authority for a
49 portion of the building located at 1428 Pearman Dairy
50 Road for an Enterprise Campus; and other matters



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 12

1 related thereto.  This, again, will be the old TTI
2 building.
3 This will be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to
4 speak to this matter, please step forward, state your
5 name and district and address the chair, please. 
6 Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public
7 hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion to move
8 this forward?
9 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
10 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Davis; second
11 Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing none,
12 all in favor of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like
13 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
14 Now we’re moving on to item number 7(a), second
15 readings, 2021-021 (verbatim), an Ordinance authorizing
16 the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax
17 agreement by and between Anderson county, South
18 Carolina and a company known to the county at this time
19 as [Project Greenlight] with respect to certain
20 economic development property in the county, whereby
21 such property will be subject to certain payments in
22 lieu of taxes, including the provision of certain
23 special source credits; and other matters related
24 thereto.  Mr. Nelson, would you like to speak to this
25 matter?
26 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman,
27 members of council.  This is an economic development
28 project investing 8.6 million dollars, creating twenty-
29 seven jobs, with an average pay of twenty-eight dollars
30 and forty-six cents an hour, unburdened, with health
31 benefits and retirement, in addition to that.  Annual
32 payroll 1.5 million.  Taxes on this property paid last
33 year were twenty-five thousand.  Anticipated projected
34 taxes in 2022 are eighty-four thousand dollars a year. 
35 And over thirty years 4.4 million in total property
36 tax.  
37 And Mr. Chairman, as requested on each one of these
38 documents the breakdown of all the property taxes
39 behind each one of these, even the ones we’ve passed
40 already, so that you can see the amount from the
41 county, the schools and the multi-county park
42 contribution.  
43 This comes to council as a recommendation from
44 staff and the Economic Development Advisory board. 
45 Thank you, sir.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  If I said 021,
47 I meant 2021-026.  Any more discussion?
48 BRETT SANDERS:  Mr. Chairman, I’d like to
49 thank Mr. Burriss and his department for the way he’s
50 got these done now.  



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 13

1 TOMMY DUNN:  Yeah.
2 BRETT SANDERS:  I know it’s more work, but
3 I like the way it’s done with the fees and the taxes
4 broken down and tabbed out.  So thank you for that.
5 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes.  Appreciate it.
6 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.  
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Anyone else?  All in favor
8 of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show
9 the motion carries unanimously.
10 Moving on now to item number 7(b), second reading, 
11 2021-029, an Ordinance authorizing pursuant to title
12 12, chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina
13 1976, as amended, the execution and delivery of one or
14 more incentive agreements, by and between Anderson
15 County, South Carolina and Project Mullet, as sponsor,
16 and one or more existing or to-be-formed or acquired
17 subsidiaries, or affiliated or related entities and
18 certain sponsor affiliates, to provide for a
19 fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes incentive and certain
20 special source revenue credits; authorizing the
21 expansion of the boundaries of a multi county park to
22 include the project; to enter into any other necessary
23 agreements with the sponsor to effect the intent of
24 this ordinance; and other matters related thereto.
25 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
26 BRETT SANDERS:  So move.
27 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
28 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders; second
29 Mr. Graham.  Now discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
30 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
31 This is a solar project, a little over six hundred
32 acres of solar array, sixty-eight million dollars in
33 total capital investment.  Will be paying property tax
34 each year totaling -- well, current the property paid
35 about twenty-seven hundred dollars last year in
36 property tax.  In the 2021 projected will be almost two
37 hundred and seventy thousand dollars a year in total
38 property tax.  And over forty years, 10.7 million in
39 total property tax.  And of course, the breakdown for
40 the schools, the county and the multi-county park are
41 listed there.  This comes to council as a
42 recommendation from staff and from the Economic
43 Development Advisory Board.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Nelson. 
45 Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
46 Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
47 unanimously.
48 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank y’all so much for
49 your support.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Appreciate the job you and



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 14

1 your staff do, Mr. Nelson.
2 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir, thank you.
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Moving on to item number
4 8(a), ordinance first reading, 2021-030, an Ordinance
5 to adopt the operating and capital budgets of Anderson
6 County for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, and
7 ending June 30, 2022.  Mr. Sanders is Chairman of the
8 Finance Committee.  Do you want to ...
9 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, this was
10 basically to keep us on time.  Ms. Rita Davis is not
11 here.  We’ve got our books and are working diligently
12 now.  There will be two more -- two or more Finance
13 Committee meetings coming up.  But in order to have the
14 budget done in a timely fashion, we need to pass this
15 in title only today so we can have it completed by June
16 1st.
17 TOMMY DUNN:  Do you make this in the
18 form of a motion?
19 BRETT SANDERS:  I’ll put that in the form
20 of a motion, sir.
21 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a second?
22 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Graham.  Now
24 discussion.  I just want to go -- we’ve got our budget
25 books and I know we’re doing this in title only.  But
26 the budget we have is a balanced budget; right?
27 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.
28 TOMMY DUNN:  No tax increases; right?
29 BRETT SANDERS:  No, sir.  We’re just
30 tweaking some final things.  And I think some of the
31 members on the Finance Committee had some questions
32 they wanted answered and we’ll take care of that in the
33 next Finance Committee meeting.  But right now
34 everything looks good.  And I’m happy to say no tax
35 increase and the budget is balanced as of right now,
36 sir.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  And all council members are
38 welcomed to come to the meeting and all ---
39 BRETT SANDERS:  Council members ---
40 TOMMY DUNN:  --- citizens can come to
41 this?
42 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir. 
43 TOMMY DUNN:  Any more discussion? 
44 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
45 Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
46 unanimously.
47 Moving on to item number 8(b), 2021-031, an
48 Ordinance to amend Section 38-353 of the Code of
49 Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina so as to
50 amend Section 38-353 (a) and add a new Section 38-353



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 15

1 (d) regarding private road standards; and other matters
2 related thereto.  Councilman Davis.
3 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  This
4 is -- basically this came out of our flag lot ordinance
5 where we updated the language with that.  And this
6 ordinance, once passed, will give property owners in
7 Anderson County more options to do with their property. 
8 It’ll give them the freedom to be able to develop their
9 property for themselves or their family without having
10 to go through the expensive process of going and
11 working with a track home type developer.  So this is
12 something that’s good for Anderson County.  It’s good
13 for the landowners of Anderson County.  And I’m excited
14 to see it.  And the reason it’s on first reading
15 tonight is we changed the section that the Code of
16 Ordinances was going on.  So Mr. Harmon just thought it
17 best we pull it back to first reading.  So we’ll have
18 two more readings on this.  But I’m excited for this
19 opportunity.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
20 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Put that in the
21 form of a motion, Mr. Davis?
22 JIMMY DAVIS:  I make that in the form of
23 a motion.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Do we have a second?
25 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
26 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  Now
27 any discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor
28 of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show
29 the motion carries unanimously.  
30 Item number 9.  There are no resolutions.  
31 And we go on to item number 10, bid approvals. 
32 This will be the PAWS Dog Park construction.  Ms.
33 Davis.
34 BRETT SANDERS:  Oh, there’s Ms. Davis.  I
35 didn’t see you hiding back there.  Sorry I said you
36 weren’t here.  You’re always here.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  She wasn’t going to come up
38 till the budget passed.
39 RITA DAVIS:  Yes, sir.  We’ve asking
40 council’s permission to award the dog park to Sterling
41 Construction Company LLC.  The bid was sent out to
42 thirty-four vendors.  Only two responded.  And we’re
43 only asking for the base price (inaudible).  We’re
44 thankful Abney gave a hundred and fifty-two thousand. 
45 We’ve got other donations of almost a hundred and
46 twenty-nine thousand.  And our capital projects
47 (inaudible) ninety-one thousand.  So it’s in the budget
48 coming before council getting your permission
49 (inaudible).
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Do we have a motion to move



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 16

1 this forward?
2 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
3 RITA DAVIS:  Motion Mr. Sanders.  Have a
4 second?
5 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
6 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Ms. Wilson.  Now
7 discussion?
8 BRETT SANDERS:  I would like ---
9 TOMMY DUNN:  Go ahead.
10 BRETT SANDERS:  --- to say something, Mr.
11 Chairman.  I do know that Ms. Wilson, I think, and I
12 discussed this.  But there was a lot of the work that
13 was done out there by county employees already, getting
14 it to the stage that it is now.  And it’s to the point
15 to where we have to have professionals come out there. 
16 But I checked and that was what that was, Ms. Wilson.
17 TOMMY DUNN:  I just want to tag along
18 with you for just a second.  We have had the county out
19 there -- county Roads and Bridges Department out there
20 and done a great amount of work.  And take no offense,
21 they are professionals and they’ve done an outstanding
22 job.  They just due to rain and other things, they get
23 behind on regular roads and ditches stuff and other
24 things.  To get them back doing the stuff for the
25 citizens, we put this out.  And like I said, we’ve very
26 thankful to the Abney Foundation and very thankful of
27 other folks who donated the money to make this happen. 
28 And I appreciate Dr. Sanders out there and her staff
29 for what they’re doing.  This will be a great asset to
30 the animal shelter, I think.  Anyone else?  All in
31 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
32 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
33 Moving on to item number (b), approval of airport
34 engineering firm.
35 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, we have
36 received requests for proposals from airport
37 engineering firms.  Our group narrowed it down to two. 
38 We did this in accordance with FAA regulations.  And
39 the final recommendation is for Holt Engineering out of
40 Columbia, South Carolina.
41 TOMMY DUNN:  Do we have a motion?
42 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
43 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders; and
44 second by Mr. Davis.  Now discussion.
45 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  Go ahead, Mr. Sanders.
47 BRETT SANDERS:  We had a lot of great
48 engineering firms reach out and respond.  I’m
49 personally happy to see that Holt Consulting was
50 chosen.  Their entire focus is strictly on airports and



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 17

1 they’re not into other things.  So I think that focus
2 will help us do a lot more things out at the airport
3 and get us a lot more funding.  So thank you.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Sanders. 
5 It’s my understanding they come highly recommended, I
6 think.  And I also think it’s time their services is
7 needed because some stuff’s coming up; some grants and
8 what not.  Very thankful for that and getting that
9 going and get that money coming to Anderson County. 
10 Any more discussion?  All in favor of the motion show
11 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
12 carries unanimously.
13 Moving on to item number 10(c), Anderson County
14 transportation number 116 resurfacing project.
15 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, in your
16 agenda books you will notice that we have a
17 recommendation from the Anderson County Transportation
18 Committee on county roads valued at one million four
19 hundred fifty-nine thousand three hundred and forty-
20 nine dollars.  The roads to be paved are attached.  If
21 council approves this, they will begin shortly to begin
22 this paving because we’ve getting into paving weather.
23 TOMMY DUNN:  Do we have a motion to move
24 this forward?  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do we have a second?
25 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
26 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  Now
27 any discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of
28 hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
29 unanimously.
30 Now moving on to item number 11, report from the
31 Finance Committee meeting held on April 29, 2021. 
32 Chairman Sanders.
33 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
34 At the Finance Committee meeting we had Mr. Glenn Brill
35 come in, Director of our Parks, Recreation and Tourism
36 and brought to our attention our short term rentals,
37 VRBOs and things of that nature.  I don’t feel that --
38 there’s a lot of people that’s paying a state version,
39 but they’re not aware that there’s also a county
40 accommodations fee, as well.  I don’t think anyone is
41 trying to get out of those, but just on the research
42 alone that Mr. Brill done, it’s the equivalent of eight
43 hotels not paying the accommodations fee, which every
44 one knows that goes into a special revenue fund to be
45 used for capital projects to support tourism and
46 tourism services here in the county.  I’m putting in
47 the form of a motion, it came unanimously from the
48 Finance Committee, to allow them to send out a RFP to
49 seek out companies to do further research and manage
50 those operations.  Put that in the form of a motion,



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 18

1 sir.
2 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a motion.  Coming
3 from the Finance Committee it doesn’t need a second. 
4 Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor
5 of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
6 Show the motion carries unanimously.
7 Moving on to item number 4, Mr. Chairman.
8 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.  The second thing
9 was the Sheriff’s Department had came out and they’re
10 looking to purchase Vitra 300 Law Enforcement Simulator
11 that is a de-escalation tool that is pretty -- I mean
12 it is like a real scenario.  I think with what’s going
13 on in the nation, that we’re going to see other
14 counties and things and departments probably make
15 something of this nature mandatory.  The money for this
16 is coming out of the Sheriff’s Department’s seizure
17 funds budget and the sale of old guns.  I think it will
18 be beneficial to the citizens of Anderson County and to
19 the Sheriff’s Department.  They also said that the city
20 of Anderson and other local municipalities are welcomed
21 to use it, as well.  And this comes as an approval from
22 the Finance Committee unanimously.  And I would like to
23 put that in the form of a motion, sir.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a motion.  Again,
25 coming from the Finance Committee, it doesn’t need a
26 second.  Any discussion?
27 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman?
28 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Graham.
29 RAY GRAHAM:  Just want to tag along on
30 that.  I actually looked a little bit more into this
31 simulator and kind of dug into it a little bit on my
32 own because there was definitely a great interest when
33 the Sheriff’s Department brought this up.  This is an
34 awesome program.  I truly think it can be a game
35 changer for our law enforcement in Anderson County. 
36 And you know, as Chairman stated, it also is going to
37 be open to the municipalities.  
38 And with what’s going on in our nation today, you
39 literally -- coming from law enforcement, you’ve got
40 officers that they’re almost fearful to make a
41 decision.  And when I say that, because they’re wanting
42 to make the right decision, but sometimes with some of
43 these new officers, due to lack of training, lack of
44 experience, the pressure from the media and everything
45 else we’ve got going on, we literally are putting our
46 law enforcement’s lives in danger.  And this here, it’s
47 not a system to train an officer to shoot.  It’s a
48 system to train the officer to make the right decision
49 on how to de-escalate a situation, how to actually in
50 the event that it is a choice where an engagement has



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 19

1 to be made, it’s to teach them to do it the proper way,
2 the safe way; not only for them but also for the
3 citizens.  The scenarios, it’s just -- there’s not even
4 a limit on what can be done with these scenarios.  So I
5 mean to see this forward thinking from our agency
6 that’s going to benefit our guys and gals from Anderson
7 County and again from the municipalities, I definitely
8 commend the Sheriff’s Department for taking this step. 
9 I think it truly is a great step in moving to ensure
10 the safety of our officers, but also the safety of our
11 citizens.  Because every one of them is important.  And
12 I mean there’s so many different scenarios out there,
13 anything from some -- if there’s a situation from
14 mental health or whatever, it can train them on
15 situations on how to de-escalate that.  I mean it’s
16 just numerous activities that they can truly train on
17 and get better at as times goes, which will better
18 prepare them to protect our county.  
19 So definitely glad to see this come through and
20 definitely excited to see what happens with it.  
21 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
22 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Graham. 
23 Anyone else?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of
24 the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the
25 motion carries unanimously.
26 Moving on to item number 12, road acceptance into
27 the county inventory.  Bronson Ridge Subdivision Phase
28 2 ---
29 BRETT SANDERS:  Excuse me, Mr. Chairman. 
30 Transfers.
31 TOMMY DUNN:  I’m sorry.  Yeah,
32 transfers.  I was trying to get out of that.
33 BRETT SANDERS:  I know Ms. Davis cringed
34 back there.
35 TOMMY DUNN:  I know she didn’t what you
36 call it.
37 BRETT SANDERS:  To just make it brief,
38 there were some transfers from different departments,
39 some money to go out to fund some retirement. 
40 Basically just bookkeeping, so to speak.  And we went
41 through those and came from the Finance Committee as
42 unanimous approval.  And I put that in the form of a
43 motion before council, sir.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a motion.  Again,
45 coming from the Finance Committee, it doesn’t need a
46 second.  Open the floor up for discussion now.  Mr.
47 Sanders, Chairman, this is all without our budget, it
48 was just putting it in the right columns.
49 BRETT SANDERS:  Oh, yeah, it’s just putting
50 it in the right -- yes, sir.  I’m sorry.  And Ms. Davis



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 20

1 is here if anyone has any questions to elaborate on.
2 TOMMY DUNN:  Anyone else?  All in favor
3 of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
4 Show the motion carries unanimously.
5 Now moving on to item number 6.  Is there anything
6 to add to that, Mr. Chairman?
7 BRETT SANDERS:  No, sir, other than at the
8 present time when we started out, there was a millage
9 increase in there.  I thank the Finance Committee for
10 working hard.  I thank the Finance Department for what
11 we’ve got done now to have a budget with no tax
12 increase that’s balanced and still providing quality
13 services for the citizens of Anderson County, sir. 
14 Thank you.
15 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  
16 Now we’re moving on to item number 12, road
17 acceptance into the county inventory.  Bronson Ridge
18 Subdivision Phase 2.  If no one has a problem with
19 this, we’ll take all of these at one time.  Be Bronson
20 Ridge, Greer Farm Lane and Fairfield Street.  Do I have
21 a motion to move this forward?  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do
22 we have a second?
23 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Wright.  Now
25 discussion?
26 CINDY WILSON:  May I have a quick comment?
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
28 CINDY WILSON:  This is a development that
29 is literally across the street from Hanna High School. 
30 And I don’t get there early in the mornings and late in
31 the evenings like I used to, but I still have concerns
32 remaining about the traffic from the development and
33 the traffic from the school and thoroughfare traffic
34 there all being able to get in and out safely.  I hope
35 we’re now in the position to have the requirements of
36 the accel, decel and turn lanes where we have this
37 congestion.  Thank you.
38 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Ms. Wilson.  
39 Mr. Burns, all this meets all our ---
40 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.
41 TOMMY DUNN:  --- county criteria to move
42 this forward?  Any more discussion?  All in favor of
43 the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the
44 motion carries unanimously.
45 Mr. Burns, could I get you at some point to maybe
46 talk to the City Manager and see if we couldn’t have
47 maybe a little committee or however y’all want to do
48 this, of workshops for council members or you and him
49 and a couple council or all council, however you want
50 to do it.  That’s a growing area out in there.  And we



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 21

1 all know it’s prime ripe for annexation.  We ain’t
2 going to have trouble.  I’d like to make sure we’re all
3 on the same page about this traffic problem.  Because
4 it’s only going to get worse if we don’t get ahead of
5 it.
6 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  If we can work together on
8 this and not be butting heads.
9 RUSTY BURNS:  Got you.  Yes, sir, I’ll
10 set it up.
11 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Thank you.
12 CINDY WILSON:  Mr. Chairman, may I add
13 that we’ve already had a near fatality right in that
14 area, a pedestrian.
15 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, ma’am, we have.
16 CINDY WILSON:  And the city is annexing
17 about -- enough property, they’re planning to put about
18 six hundred houses.
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, ma’am.  And they’re,
20 I’m sure, looking at some more.  We need to get ahead
21 of this.  And I appreciate you.
22 Now requests from council members.  Mr. Davis.
23 BRETT SANDERS:  Appointments.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  I’m sorry.  Mr. Wright has
25 got an appointment.
26 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.  Thank you, Mr.
27 Chairman.
28 TOMMY DUNN:  I had marked through that. 
29 I’m getting ahead of myself.  Go ahead, Mr. Wright. 
30 I’m sorry.  Library board.
31 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir, after years of
32 service Ms. Rosalyn Silverstein has resigned her
33 position as the District 1 Library Board appointment. 
34 And this evening I’d like to put in the form of a
35 motion to nominate Ms. Elaine Stoll.  She’s been a
36 member of the Friends of the Library for several years,
37 giving both her time and money to the library.  I think
38 she’ll be a great addition to the Library Board, and
39 I’d like to make a motion that she be the appointment
40 for District 1.
41 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
42 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a motion Mr. Wright
43 and second Mr. Graham.  Any discussion?  Hearing and
44 seeing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
45 Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
46 unanimously.
47 Mr. Burns, I know we’ve got a new librarian.
48 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir, and she wants ---
49 TOMMY DUNN:  She needs to come to the
50 council meeting or us come out there.  We want to



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 22

1 congratulate her and we also want to thank Ms. Line for
2 the job she’s done for many years for Anderson County.
3 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Now request by council
5 members.  Mr. Davis.
6 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I
7 just have one from the District 6 recreation account, I
8 would like to appropriate two thousand five hundred
9 dollars to the Powdersville YMCA Y Mentor Program. 
10 This allows them to have mentors for kids that don’t
11 necessarily have someone to mentor them in life.  So I
12 would like to make that in the form of a motion.
13 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a motion Mr. Davis;
14 second Mr. Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of
15 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
16 the motion carries unanimously.
17 Mr. Burns, would you like to comment on 14(a)?
18 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir, on 14(a), that is
19 Welfare Baptist Church, but it’s not the church, it’s
20 the non-profit associated with the church because we
21 cannot give money to churches.  But this church has
22 participated with us on food distribution drives. 
23 They’ve made their place available.  Now they’re going
24 to become a COVID vaccination center and it’s
25 desperately needed.  And we just want to assist them
26 with some financial assistance to allow them to do
27 this.  And the request is twenty-one hundred dollars.
28 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Wanted to get that
29 out there.  Mr. Sanders.
30 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman.  I
31 would like that we go down and come back to me.  I’ve
32 talked with Mr. Burns about Welfare, I think it’s a
33 good project.  I know we’re doing them at the Civic
34 Center.  With the fair coming in town, we’re not going
35 to be able to vaccinate.  They need a total of twenty-
36 one hundred and I would like to make up the difference
37 from what any other council member would be willing to
38 give.  So if you could ---
39 TOMMY DUNN:  We’ll come back to you. 
40 Mr. Graham.
41 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
42 I’d like to do three hundred dollars to Generation 4
43 COVID-19; three hundred dollars to Anderson Jets Track
44 Club; Starr Athletic Association, we actually done that
45 last meeting; right?
46 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir, we did.
47 RAY GRAHAM:  So that’ll be all I
48 request.  I bring that in the form of a motion.
49 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a motion by Mr.
50 Graham; second by Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 23

1 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
2 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
3 Mr. Wright.
4 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.  Thank you, Mr.
5 Chairman.  I would like to appropriate three hundred
6 dollars for -- are we doing 14(a) and (b), Mr.
7 Chairman?
8 TOMMY DUNN:  Yep.
9 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.  Three hundred
10 dollars from the District 1 recreational fund for the
11 General 4 Covid-19 and the Anderson Jets Track Club, as
12 well.
13 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
14 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Wright; second
15 Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
16 motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the
17 motion carries unanimously.
18 Ms. Wilson.
19 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
20 District 7 is nearing the end of funds in our little
21 till.  May we appropriate two hundred dollars for the
22 Anderson Jet’s Track team.  And that’s in the form of a 
23 motion.  Thank you.
24 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
25 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson; second
26 by Mr. Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
27 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
28 motion carries unanimously.
29 TOMMY DUNN:  Out of District 5's special
30 appropriations account appropriate three hundred
31 dollars for the Jet’s Track Club.  And I think that
32 leaves fifteen hundred dollars for the COVID?
33 BRETT SANDERS:  Correct.
34 TOMMY DUNN:  I’ll split the difference
35 with you, Mr. Sanders, and I’ll do seven fifty for
36 that.
37 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, sir.
38 TOMMY DUNN:  Put that in the form of a
39 motion
40 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
41 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Wright.  Any
42 discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
43 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
44 unanimously. 
45 Moving on, Mr. Sanders.
46 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, I would like to
47 put in the form of a motion the balance of seven fifty
48 for Generation 4, and I’d also like to do three hundred
49 to the Anderson Jet’s Track Club, sir.  Put that in the
50 form of a motion.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 24

1 TOMMY DUNN:  Second by Ms. Wilson;
2 motion Mr. Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of
3 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
4 the motion carries unanimously.
5 Anything else?  
6 Moving on to administrator’s report.  Mr. Burns.
7 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this time, Mr.
8 Chairman.
9 TOMMY DUNN:  Moving on to citizens
10 comments.  When Mr. Harmon calls your name, please step
11 forward, state your name and district for the record
12 and address the chair.  And you’ve got three minutes.
13 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, first speaker
14 is Teresa Morgan.
15 TERESA MORGAN:  Hello.  My name is Teresa
16 Locke Morgan.  Karen, could you please come up here? 
17 And Nicole, could you please come with me?  I want to
18 stand together united as women that are taking up for
19 children and special needs people in this county and
20 people that don’t -- they can’t stand up for
21 themselves.  Karen, please introduce yourself.
22 KAREN ELAINE MCCULLOUGH:   Karen Elaine
23 McCullough, President of the Lake Hartwell Development
24 Group.
25 NICOLE MACHESKA:    I’m Nicole Macheska and
26 I’m an Early Interventionist for all of Anderson
27 County.
28 TERESA MORGAN:     This woman helps me help
29 children to get better in this county with special
30 needs.  This woman is going to help us allow these
31 children and these special needs people that absolutely
32 have a good life to go out and enjoy our lake.  And I
33 pray, because I’ve been sitting here looking In God We
34 Trust, we all trust in God together, and we want this
35 to happen for our children.  So together we stand for
36 the children that can’t stand for themselves.  
37 Thank you.
38 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Harmon.
39 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Karen
40 Elaine McCullough.
41 KAREN ELAINE MCCULLOUGH:   I want to thank the
42 county council here represented today, the
43 administrator, economic development group and the
44 chairman.  I appreciate you guys for allowing our group
45 to partner with Anderson County and the Army Corp of
46 Engineers to bring great recreation to Anderson County. 
47 You have done a fine job bringing in commerce and
48 development and industry to this county.  And I really
49 appreciate you guys believing in us to bring
50 recreation.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 25

1 I know our park was scheduled to be put at Asbury
2 this year.  With rain delays, utility underground
3 delays, Corp of Engineers coming in and taking out
4 diseased pine trees and now us left with the cleanup --
5 it looks like a bomb went off -- that’s put us with an
6 eight-month behind delay.  
7 Anderson County needs recreation this year.  We get
8 hundreds of calls every week.  Please put the water
9 park in.  If you don’t get the rest of the project put
10 up, please put the water park in.  
11 We have a park by the name of River Forks located
12 with amenities that we can allow our floating water
13 park, which is four hundred ninety-seven thousand
14 dollars sitting in a storage unit right now not being
15 used.  A water park is only good during summer months. 
16 So this project was derailed or put off the county
17 council board a couple of weeks ago.  And I understand
18 that we need to have public acknowledgment of that, but
19 I’m asking the county council to set a public date so
20 that this can come before the board and be voted on so
21 that we can put the water park up at River Forks for
22 this season.  It is a floating water park.  It can be
23 stuck in the water and then removed.  It can actually
24 be undone from the anchors and removed in less than
25 thirty minutes.  And we came up with an operation and
26 submitted that today of how the operations for this
27 park will work.  We’ve submitted traffic flow.  We’ve
28 submitted pricing for people that are saying that it
29 may not be feasible for everyone to use.  We have
30 submitted very reasonable pricing for that to happen.  
31 So I’m asking county council to please bind with us
32 and allow us to put the water park in at River Forks
33 this season.  Thank you.
34 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
35 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Ted
36 Wentzky.
37 TED WENTZKY:  Ted Wentzky, District 5.
38 Mr. Chairman, I want to just recommend that as the
39 last time we talked that you ensured us we would have a
40 public meeting before anything was done on this park. 
41 I hope that you will follow up with your words and
42 promises on this.
43 I live on River Forks Road.  I have a farm on River
44 Forks Road.  I have cows.  I have grandchildren that
45 play.  As of last Sunday, I did a little survey of my
46 own.  Between the hours of two and three o’clock, we
47 had thirty-six cars go down and four boats, two golf
48 carts, and the Sheriff’s Department arrested somebody
49 at the stop sign on Roberts Church Road and River Forks
50 Road.  Later in the day, four wheelers going up and



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 26

1 down the road with no mufflers.  The deputies were
2 called again.  They did not catch them.  We have a
3 serious problem with traffic.  A very serious problem. 
4 They speed.  You put up speed signs, a tractor sign and
5 a speed limit monitor sign that has the speed limits
6 have flashed out, did no good.  We don’t see deputies
7 in the morning.  We see them from eight till twelve. 
8 For the rest of the day we do not see a deputy go up
9 and down the road, even on weekends.  And there’s drug
10 traffic.  There’s a local known drug dealer that goes
11 up and down the road constantly, followed by other
12 cars, and they all come out together.  Nothing has been
13 done.  Of course, that’s not your fault or the
14 council’s fault.  That is the fault of lawyers that
15 gets him out of jail.  
16 We expect that you will let us have a public
17 hearing at Center Rock Fire Department as you promised
18 at the last meeting.  Thank you.
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Next.
20 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Nicole
21 Macheska.
22 NICOLE MACHESKA:   Hello again.  I just wanted
23 to talk a little bit more about what I do as an Early
24 Interventionist.  And I work directly with children
25 with special needs and developmental delays, as well as
26 medical diagnoses.  And I also just wanted to say that
27 myself, my family, and on behalf of many of the
28 families that I serve in my job, we are in full support
29 of this water park.
30 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
31 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is David
32 Standard.
33 DAVID STANDARD:    Hi.  I’m David Standard. 
34 And this is concerning the water park.  And I think we
35 need to do something as quickly as we can.  If you have
36 to have a public meeting, that’s fine.  Do it, but get
37 it over with.  Let’s move this water park forward so
38 the people of Anderson County can enjoy it.  It’s a
39 good benefit, I believe, coming out of COVID to get
40 everybody back motivated to get out and do things.  So
41 let’s see if we can come together and get this moving
42 pretty quickly for the children and everyone else.
43 Thank you.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
45 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Judy
46 Johnson.
47 JUDY JOHNSON:  I want to speak on the
48 water park, as well.  I live on -- off of River Forks
49 Road on Lake Ridge Lane and it’s a dead end road. 
50 That’s before you go onto the government property.  I



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 27

1 built my house in 1972 knowing what the restrictions
2 were from the corp and what was required of me and
3 understanding that near us was a recreation area for
4 swimming, boat ramp and picnicking.  Never was I to
5 think it was going to be like an amusement park.  
6 I have looked on the website for Asbury on the
7 Shores or the Shores of Asbury, and I’ve looked at this
8 water park that would go into the water.  And I
9 actually have a concern for the safety of even these
10 children that they’re talking about that would play on
11 this apparatus.  To me it looks dangerous for them in
12 the water, depending on how good they are at swimming
13 and so forth, even with protective gear.  
14 But from the standpoint of the community, I have a
15 concern.  It’s a two-lane road, unmarked, no shoulder,
16 that goes down to the boat ramp.  And this has, as Ted
17 has said, definitely been an issue for us even yet
18 before this type of activity in that area.  And concern
19 of littering and potential crime.  We have children on
20 our road.  It’s a dead end road.  People tend to turn
21 there when they see they have a gate that they’re going
22 to have to go through.  
23 And so I, too, am looking forward to this public
24 hearing that we can discuss more and understand what
25 has been discussed so far which seems to have gone very
26 far in the plans without having a public meeting.
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
28 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Barbara
29 Schaeffer.
30 BARBARA SCHAEFFER:  I live in the Cove by
31 exactly where you’re planning to put the water park and
32 all the paraphernalia that goes along with it.  It
33 would really destroy the area.  And I’m thinking mainly
34 of the animals in the area.  They would be moved out by
35 all the noise and all that goes along with a water
36 park.  
37 At this time we have egrets coming down the Cove. 
38 We have all sorts that come every year.  All of that
39 would be destroyed.  Thank you.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
41 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Bobby
42 Simmons.
43 BOBBY SIMMONS:  Bobby Simmons, District 2. 
44 What I want to speak about is the little safety that
45 when I pull up to a stop sign, the law say that when
46 you pull up to a stop sign, you stop behind the stop
47 sign.  If you cannot see from there, ease on up so you
48 can see the traffic in both directions.  But I find a
49 lot of obstacles in the way when you try to do that and
50 you almost wind up being in the middle of the road just



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 28

1 trying to see how to get out.  
2 Some people have signs there.  Some people have
3 bushes there.  And some it’s just old grass, grass has
4 done growed up.  So I think -- I realize and I think
5 that you have an ordinance to say that, you know, if
6 you have an area that a person cannot see, you should
7 have to clean it off.  
8 Also, I want to talk about the lanes in the roads 
9 -- in the county roads and the city roads and maybe
10 some of them is state roads.  That yellow line is faded
11 out so much that when at night -- maybe it’s because of
12 me because I’m old, seventy-four -- that, you know, I
13 can’t see well.  But some of the -- when a car is
14 facing you, you cannot see your lane, so you’ve almost
15 got be looking for the outside line in order to keep
16 yourself in the lane.  Sometimes that’s not there.  So
17 what I’m asking is that if the county could have some
18 kind of maintenance where when the yellow lines get
19 dull that they paint them.  I mean, paint shouldn’t
20 cost that much to paint the roads.  And we hear about a
21 lot of people running off the road.  Why are they
22 running off the road?  Is it because they’re not paying
23 attention or just because they don’t see the lane.  I
24 think it’s something that the county could look into to
25 maybe help people with -- old people like myself that’s
26 driving at night, it’s hard to see the yellow lines. 
27 And the last thing I want to talk about is the
28 bridge on 29 North, the one that the truck ran into. 
29 There was some talk about making some changes there
30 because the bridge was too low to allow the trucks --
31 some of the trucks to come through there.  And I’m
32 wondering what happened to that?  Is it still in effect
33 and takes a long time for the state to do anything or
34 county to do anything?  I just want to know what’s
35 going on so that we can have more business on 29. 
36 Thank you very much.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Harmon.
38 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, I’m not sure
39 about this next name.  Dara Morton.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Is there a Ms. Morton or
41 Mr. Morton?  Okay.
42 LEON HARMON:  Okay.  Wade Willark?
43 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Wade Willark?
44 LEON HARMON:  Myron Schaeffer.
45 MYRON SCHAEFFER:  I want to thank you for
46 letting me have time here with you.  I am a grandfather
47 and a parent.  I’m concerned about the safety of our
48 children.  And I met with Mr. Burns and Mr. Burriss
49 yesterday.  And part of my meeting was to find out if
50 there was a study made, feasibility study, about the



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 29

1 safety of this area?  And I do have some concern
2 because I tried to zero in on how many people or users
3 in vehicles will be coming into that area.  I was never
4 given that number.  I was told it had to come from the
5 Corp of Engineers.  And I believe the Freedom of
6 Information Act would make that available through the
7 council to see how many people, how many vehicles will
8 be going through that area.  So if you’re making a
9 feasibility study, you would be able to determine what
10 the usage would be.  If you’re going to be working from
11 nine a.m. to nine p.m. from May 1st to October 30th,
12 you’re going to have traffic issues.  If anybody -- I
13 challenge anybody who’s looking at this park to drive
14 from Dobbins Bridge Road all the way down to see the
15 situation before you proceed in having the study that
16 really protects our children.  I’m concerned about the
17 number of sanitation, because if you don’t know how
18 many people, how much sanitation do you have to have? 
19 How about safety?  I understand you’re going to have
20 lifeguards, but how do you know how many lifeguards
21 unless you know how many people are going to use it.  
22 Also, if you have a weather condition, a tornado
23 comes, how quickly can you get the people out of there? 
24 And then the other thing, when you have a group like
25 that for a long period of time, is there any control on
26 alcoholic beverages?  I don’t know.  And how are you
27 going to control the amount of people that go into the
28 area?  I really think we need a good feasibility study
29 taking those things into consideration.  And crime and
30 drugs, that’s a possibility.
31 The only other thing that Mr. Burns promised me, he
32 said that any future meetings in regard to this, he
33 would make sure there would be notifications and that
34 he would do it from the tax rolls, which I think is a
35 good thing because we never knew about it until just a
36 few weeks ago.  And we live on the Cove ---
37 LEON HARMON:  Time, Mr. Chairman.
38 MYRON SCHAEFFER:   Okay.  Thank you.
39 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
40 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Dan
41 O’Connor.
42 DAN O’CONNOR:  Mr. Chairman, council,
43 thank you for the time.  Apologies for even having to
44 come here and take extra time while I know you guys
45 want to get out to dinner.  
46 One thing that’s very clear in this whole thing is
47 because I think with good intentions that this was
48 tried to be made to happen out at River Forks to find a
49 solution to provide activities in Anderson County, it
50 skipped out of public notice a lot of the potential for



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 30

1 affected people to weigh in and express concerns.  I
2 think that there’s a lot of high emotions on both
3 sides.  That’s unfortunate.  And I think that was
4 caused, unfortunately, because it didn’t go through the
5 normal process.
6 So the one thing that I think that really needs to
7 happen relative to this effort for this water park is
8 an actual review of the use of the park, how it affects
9 the traffic, everything out relative to River Forks.  I
10 also met with Mr. Burns and Mr. Nelson yesterday with
11 Myron and Barbara.  Many of the questions that I asked
12 there were no answers for.  And it seemed to me that
13 those questions were basic questions.  As Myron said,
14 how do you control the traffic?  Will you just stop
15 people at the gate and then they turn around?  Well,
16 how are they going to turn around?  There’s no turn-
17 around there.  It just went on from there.  And no
18 offense to anybody here, but it was very obvious that
19 this really hadn’t been thought through.  
20 So my understanding also is that the trees on
21 Asbury were diseased or something.  They were taken
22 down by the Corp.  Sounds like another entity.  Don’t
23 know for sure who that was that went in and ground the
24 stumps.  Then it rained.  It caused some sort of DHEC
25 issue.  Caused penalties and fees.  I think if that’s
26 the case and the activities were outside the scope of
27 the lease which caused the problem, you should not
28 reward that effort by making it easy to come up with
29 another location for the water park, without a study
30 and due diligence.
31 Additionally, in our meeting yesterday, Mr. Burns
32 asked what my main concern was, and my only main
33 concern is to make sure that we review the development
34 and lake appropriately.  Mr. Burns had mentioned our
35 intention is to run River Forks exactly like the Corp
36 ran it.  Now Asbury is a different story.  The only
37 change at River Forks -- and if you need it in writing
38 I can get it in writing ---
39 LEON HARMON:  Time, Mr. Chairman.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Time.
41 DAN O’CONNOR:  Pardon?
42 TOMMY DUNN:  It’s time.  
43 DAN O’CONNOR:  Can I have ten more
44 seconds?
45 LEON HARMON:  No, sir, sorry.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  I’ll take care of this. 
47 Move on.
48 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Kelly Wood.
49 KELLY WOOD:  Hi.  Thank you so much. 
50 I’m Kelly Wood.  I’m in District 5.  I live in the Cove



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 31

1 right across from River Forks.  I’m a brand new
2 homeowner.  Just bought the house in November.  Excited
3 to be part of the lake.  Completely understand that
4 everybody wants things for kids to do.  I’m on that
5 same spectrum.  I want places for people to go and
6 things to do.
7 My main concern is that the first public mention of
8 this was two weeks ago on your agenda.  And I now,
9 thanks to the meeting yesterday with Rusty Burns and
10 Myron and Dan, you provided a letter that Ken had
11 written to your office with hundreds of names who are
12 in support of a water park at Asbury and River Forks. 
13 Now, what that tells me is that the developer has been
14 hard at work for weeks garnering support for a water
15 park at River Forks when there’s been no public mention
16 of it at River Forks.  That’s very concerning to me. 
17 It seems like the cart is going before the horse.  And
18 all of those names that you garnered on that list ---
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Address the chair, please,
20 ma’am.
21 KELLY WOOD:  All of those names on that
22 letter, none of the neighbors who live around River
23 Forks were contacted to ask how it was going to impact
24 us.  And there’s a lot of us who have a whole lot of
25 reasons of how it’s going to impact us, maybe
26 positively, but also negatively.  And so this isn’t,
27 this isn’t something where I’m opposed to having
28 development done at River Forks.  I just would like to
29 have a lot more input before the decision is rushed
30 through this summer.  That’s what I’m asking for.  
31 And the developer has created a Facebook page
32 called the Shores of Asbury.  And any comment that has
33 been put on there that has been clarifying questions or
34 a negative comment -- not even negative -- somebody
35 that might be in opposition to this has been removed
36 from that Facebook page.  I looked at it today.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  Everybody address the
38 chair, please.
39 KELLY WOOD:  I’m sorry.  I looked at
40 that Facebook page and I talked to Cheryl who has told
41 me she had no idea how those comments had been deleted. 
42 I am here representing one of those comments who could
43 not be here today; she is out of town.  She got a
44 response on that page.  Both of those have been
45 deleted.  And there are other people who had the same
46 experience where those comments in opposition to this
47 water park, right now going in so fast, have been
48 deleted off.  The only page that is open right now for
49 the public to see, and it’s called the Shores of
50 Asbury.  



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 32

1 So I also want to bring to the attention of the
2 council that on that same Facebook post it says, this
3 is the exciting news you were calling about.  If you
4 want this, please call or email your council and thank
5 them today for voting to bring it to River Forks this
6 season.  To my knowledge ---
7 LEON HARMON:  Time, Mr. Chairman.
8 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.
9 KELLY WOOD:  --- there’s been no vote on
10 that.
11 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
12 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Leanne
13 Nourse.
14 LEANNE NOURSE:  Hello council.  Thank you
15 for your time.  I won’t take the whole three minutes. 
16 It’s obvious there’s a lot of excitement that has been
17 said on all aspects of it.  I’m a healthcare worker and
18 I see Anderson County members of all spectrums; not
19 only kids, but the demographics of the outdoors people. 
20 I’m a fisherman.  I love to boat.  I love to kayak.  So
21 what are the impacts to (inaudible) and you access the
22 boat ramps.  What is the master plan?  Is it out of the
23 winds?  I watch the winds all the time.  They get to be
24 about hurricane speed.  Yes, I’m concerned for the
25 children.  So where is the plan.  We’d like to see it. 
26 What is the traffic study?  Who’s going to pay for the
27 road changes?  Without it and progressing with the
28 development without changing the county roads, stop
29 signs.  I almost watched five wrecks at River Forks
30 Café.  Great place, by the way.  I’m excited for the
31 development, but it has to be done in good
32 consciousness for all of Anderson County residents and
33 those that we welcome over here to hopefully generate
34 revenue.  
35 So my questions:  What’s the plan?  The revenue
36 that’s generated, will that be transparent on where it
37 goes within the county?  What’s the traffic proposal? 
38 Who’s going to pay for the roads?  And safety with
39 tornadoes?  As far as I know, I never had thirty
40 minutes for a tornado, otherwise I’d be packing up my
41 ham sandwich and going into my closet way ahead of
42 time.  So we’ve got to be sensible about how this is
43 executed.  
44 Obviously something has already gone wrong.  We
45 haven’t even gotten started yet.  Who’s on the hub for
46 EPA concerns?  I understand from the Corp Anderson
47 County is on the hook for liability for EPA issues.  It
48 has to be restored to the original condition upon
49 resignation of lease.  Is there a fund to make sure
50 that we’re going to be covered if Lake Hartwell



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 33

1 Development Group goes, whoop, we’re bankrupt.  You
2 guys are on the hook; we’re on the hook; we’re paying
3 for the clean-up.  
4 So there’s more to be explored.  I mentioned it in
5 the public hearing.  I’m anxious to know date and time.
6 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
7 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Dan
8 Harvell.
9 DAN HARVELL:  Dan Harvell, Council
10 District 7.  Mr. Chairman, members of council, I have
11 friends on both sides of this issue here tonight. 
12 Having served on the County Board of Appeals, Zoning
13 Board of Appeals for about fourteen years now, this is
14 the kind of thing that we see so often.  We’ve done
15 countless cases where we’ve had neighbors not satisfied
16 with what’s going on.  You know, the alteration of the
17 county ordinances to allow variances and special
18 exceptions.  And I understand the passion on both sides
19 of this.  
20 From that viewpoint, I would say it seems like for
21 this particular thing at River Forks, it is a temporary
22 situation.  It’s not a permanent situation.  And I
23 think a public hearing, of course, is appropriate.  But
24 I think it should be done as quickly as it could be
25 done.  
26 Anyway, it sounds like a great idea.  But I also
27 understand the other side, too, having heard this for
28 fourteen years or so on this board and I understand it
29 totally.  So anyway, I think the water park itself is a
30 great idea.  I think it’s a great idea to reinvigorate
31 Asbury.  It’s unfortunate what the Corp of Engineers
32 did out there.  I’m familiar with that because the lake
33 property in the family, we’ve had issues with the Corp
34 before and they do things that can’t be reversed
35 sometimes without what I think is proper thought.
36 But anyway, those are my thoughts on this.  And
37 thank you for hearing me. 
38 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
39 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Roger
40 Leduc.
41 ROGER LEDUC:  Yes, I’m Roger Leduc.  I
42 don’t actually know what district I’m in.  I live down
43 Providence Church Road.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  Be District 5.
45 ROGER LEDUC:  District 5.  Okay.  Thank
46 you.  Basically I heard about this through the
47 grapevine.  Fundamentally I promote this idea.  I think
48 it’s a good idea to have activities for families,
49 residents and visitors to have venues to enjoy the
50 lake.  It’s a great lake that we have out here and we



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 34

1 should do things to make it possible for more people to
2 get on, near, in, under, over the lake.  I do hear some
3 of these concerns.  And only having driven down to
4 River Forks a couple of times, I’m not real familiar
5 with that road.  This needs to be done properly.  I was
6 hoping for more details on what this project is about
7 tonight.  I came here very spontaneously.  And I will
8 be looking at the Facebook page to see if I can learn
9 more about it.  But fundamentally I just think it’s a
10 good idea to have more to enjoy this lake with.
11 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Harmon.
12 LEON HARMON:  Next name, and I apologize
13 in advance.  I’m not sure about this.  Last name
14 Zyrtill.
15 TOMMY DUNN:  Move on.
16 LEON HARMON:  Doug McNabb.
17 DOUG MCNABB:  I’m Doug McNabb, also in
18 District 5.  Thank you for allowing us to be heard
19 here.  I, too, live in the River Forks area, a couple
20 of coves over on the lake.  And I understand -- tonight
21 was the first time I’d heard about the special needs
22 kids.  And I think we definitely need, you know,
23 activities like the water park.  It’s unfortunate that
24 the Asbury Park property is not available for this
25 summer.  It concerns me that the diseased trees which
26 apparently had to be taken away at Asbury Park.  I
27 believe the same thing has happened at Saddler’s Creek. 
28 It would seem reasonable that the problem is there at
29 River Forks, too.  I don’t know if that’s been
30 identified or not.  I mean you may go in there and find
31 that that needs to happen there.
32 The other thing besides the traffic -- compounds
33 the traffic, there’s been a couple of new businesses
34 added at Dobbins Bridge and 187.  A new Dollar General
35 Store, River Forks Café.  We still have a little gas
36 station and convenience store.  And the traffic has
37 increased with that.  It also occurred to me that there
38 are a number of other recreational properties on the
39 lake.  And I don’t know all of them.  But have we
40 looked at partnering with some of the places like
41 Portland Marina, a big water marina.  Saddler’s Creek. 
42 Places that already have a recreational base where
43 there’s a lot of activity going on.  You know, I don’t
44 know if that’s a possibility. But I think the lack --
45 or the introduction of this with little input from the
46 residents in that area has contributed to a lot of
47 confusion.  So that’s what I’m looking for, is to help
48 kind of alleviate the confusion.  And definitely would
49 love to see a public meeting so that we can find out
50 what’s going on.  Thank you.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 35

1 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Harmon.
2 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Paul Kelly.
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Paul Kelly.  He’s fine. 
4 He’s good, Mr. Harmon.  Go ahead.  Next.
5 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Dona
6 Shiflette.
7 DONA SHIFLETTE:  Hello.  I’m Dona Shiflette,
8 District 5.  I want to voice my opinion that I think
9 that we need this water park.  It would be an asset to
10 Anderson County.  And would be a place, especially with
11 the opening up after COVID-19, for our children to have
12 and our grandchildren, to have a place to go and enjoy
13 the lake.  And the park is already there.  I don’t see
14 that it would cause a whole lot of additional traffic
15 out there.  It will have additional traffic, I’m sure,
16 but it was built for a recreational area and a boat
17 ramp.  And I think this water park would enhance that
18 area.  And it would be a real asset for the children
19 and also the special needs children that are looking
20 forward to getting out this summer.  Thank you.
21 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
22 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one else
23 is signed up.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Harmon.
25 Moving on now to comments from council members. 
26 Ms. Wilson.
27 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
28 I’m sure we’ll work through the water park -- temporary
29 water park very efficiently soon.
30 In responding to Mr. Simmons’ questions, the
31 Highway 29/Cherokee Road bridge was supposed to be
32 under construction removing and replacing in April.  I
33 don’t see that they’ve gotten started over there, but
34 it’s supposed to be underway right away.  
35 And our county does have a striping budget.  It
36 would be really good if you could give us a list of the
37 roads where you have trouble getting out of the -- into
38 the intersection and where there are problems with the
39 striping.  We get those calls frequently, and our Roads
40 and Bridges Department are very, very good at getting
41 out on the county roads.  And we call the district
42 engineer down in Greenwood and he gets people up on
43 state roads pretty quickly.  We’re all concerned about
44 safety.  And we’ve got a lot of new vegetation so it is
45 getting harder to see.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Ms. Wilson.
47 Mr. Wright?
48 JOHN WRIGHT:  No, sir, nothing at this
49 time.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Graham.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 36

1 RAY GRAHAM:  Nothing at this time.
2 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Graham.  
3 Mr. Sanders.
4 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman.  I
5 would just like to make it aware that May the 4th is
6 International Firefighter’s Day, and we’d just like to
7 thank any firemen here or any firemen or service first
8 responders, just let everyone know.  I appreciate what
9 they do for our community.  And thank you, sir.
10 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Sanders.  
11 Mr. Davis.
12 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair. 
13 Thank you all for being here tonight.  This is
14 important.  And I hope you’ll come back again and see
15 what’s going on in Anderson County, because we do the
16 business of the county here and we thank you for your
17 attendance.
18 I do want to thank all the county staff, including
19 the administrator for working so diligently to -- we
20 had a wonderful night at Dolly Cooper Park Friday
21 night.  We had a drive-in movie.  Several hundred
22 people were there.  The Powdersville Business Council
23 sponsored it.  Mr. Holt Hopkins and his staff did a
24 wonderful job preparing Dolly Cooper Park and it looked
25 fantastic.  Everybody had a great time.  And I thank
26 all that were a part of that in getting that done.
27 I also want to thank Rick Smith and his staff for 
28 -- Saturday, we had the Powdersville Pick-up.  We
29 picked up a hundred and twenty-five bags of trash and a
30 couple of pick-up loads of stuff that wouldn’t go in
31 bags.  So it was a great day.  We cleaned up Highway
32 153.  And I want to thank Joe Campbell and his group
33 that were out there.  Just everybody pitched in and
34 made a wonderful weekend in the northern part of
35 Anderson County.  I just want to thank you all.  Thank
36 you, Mr. Chair.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Davis.
38 A few comments.  Mr. Simmons, if you would, I echo
39 what Ms. Wilson said, if you would let me know or Mr.
40 Burns, the intersections you’ve talking about having
41 trouble about seeing on, and we’ll try to do something
42 about them.  If they’re county and if they’re highway,
43 we’ll forward that information on to the highway.  We
44 just had about a week ago, week and a half ago, a pick-
45 up on signs on the side of the road and keeping that
46 up.  So we do have a sign ordinance and try to keep
47 that up.  And all county roads don’t have striping on
48 them unfortunately, but the ones that do we try to keep
49 it up.  Mr. Hogan does a pretty good job of keeping
50 that up.  So if you’ve got any problems on that let us



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 37

1 know and we’ll try to get -- if it’s a highway
2 department road, we’ll try to get that information to
3 them to work with us on that.
4 On a couple of things right quick on this park
5 business.  Number one, I don’t need no reminders about
6 what I said.  I said if the people are putting this on
7 wanted to have a public meeting there would be one.  So
8 I’ve heard that tonight.  We’ll set one up.  It’ll be
9 at Center Rock Fire Station.  I’ve got to call them and
10 get it set up.  It won’t be this week.  Everybody will
11 have plenty of notice and plenty of time and get the
12 things out there on that.
13 And for the comment the lady made about this group
14 over here having weeks ahead of time and getting the
15 petition up.  No, there’s some people that don’t want
16 the park up got signs up and notified people.  She got
17 wind of it -- it’s her right -- and she done the same
18 thing.  That’s the thing going on about this.  It’s a
19 hot issues.  I understand that.  Like I said, we’ll get
20 the facts out.  There’s been -- all the facts haven’t
21 been out there saying exactly and explaining what this
22 is.  So some people has took it up on their self to
23 explain the fact, which I’ve heard some horrendous
24 things out of people’s mouth.  And the people that said
25 this was just -- it was just lies.  But we are -- there
26 will be a public meeting on this and get this out there
27 and questions asked or concerns.  I said that last time
28 and I’m saying that again tonight.
29 And please, please if y’all see anything on social
30 media or getting out -- I do very little of it because
31 of this, but I have seen some things, some posts about
32 it, this, that and the other.  Please call me.  I ain’t
33 never lied to y’all folks before and I didn’t get where
34 I’m at by lying.  I’ll tell you the truth.  My number
35 is 844-3765.  So feel free to call me.  
36 MALE:  (Inaudible.)
37 TOMMY DUNN:  I’ll write it down for you
38 and give it to you.  Okay?
39 One last thing -- well, two last things.  Again, I
40 want to appreciate everybody coming out tonight.  And
41 it is, as Mr. Davis said, what makes our government
42 work.  And wish more people would get involved.  Please
43 remember, May the 18th there’s going to be a vote
44 whether to raise your taxes or not from the Fire
45 Commission.  I’m not going to tell you how to vote, but
46 everybody needs to get out and vote either yes or no. 
47 It’s not county council.  It’s the fire commission and
48 the Anderson County Delegation.  Y’all need to get out
49 and make sure you vote.  And that’s May the 18th.
50 Thank y’all very, very much.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021 38

1 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT APPROXIMATELY 7:53 P.M.)



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

MAY 18, 2021

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
SETH RIDDLEY
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - May 18, 2021 2

1 TOMMY DUNN:  I’d like to call the
2 Anderson County Special Presentations meeting of May the
3 18th to order.  I’d like to welcome everyone here. Thank
4 y’all for coming out tonight.
5 The first item on the agenda is Resolution (a)
6 2021-024, a resolution to recognize and honor Mr. Wayne
7 Rogers upon the occasion of his 101st birthday. 
8 Councilwoman Ms. Wilson.
9 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
10 Mr. Rogers won’t be with us, of course, tonight, but
11 we’ll present this to him at a later date.  
12 THIS IS A RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE AND HONOR MR.
13 WAYNE ROGERS UPON THE OCCASION OF HIS 101ST BIRTHDAY.
14 WHEREAS, Mr. Wayne Rogers was born on April 24,
15 1920, a premature, three pound baby boy, the fifth child
16 born into the Rogers’ household of the Beaverdam
17 Community, his father saying to his mother, “Essie, I
18 don’t know if we’ll get to raise this one;” and,
19 WHEREAS, 101 years later, Mr. Rogers is still
20 celebrating birthdays in a full, inspiring life, and
21 although he is perhaps most well-known in the community
22 for his service as a public-school principal in Anderson
23 School District One, he has lived a life marked by
24 resilience, bravery, self-sacrifice, and generosity,
25 helping his family farm survive his father’s death and
26 drought during the Great Depression, and enlisting in
27 the United States Navy, serving 1939-1945, first on
28 board the USS Prairie in the North Atlantic, then on the
29 USS Mindanao in the perilous South Pacific, where 80 of
30 his fellow sailors perished in an explosion caused by a
31 Japanese suicide submarine, though he escaped serious
32 injury; and,
33 WHEREAS, upon returning home, Mr. Rogers enrolled at
34 Vanderbilt University, then returned home to major in
35 biology at Furman, marry Irene (Dickerson) Rogers,
36 and pursue a career in education, later earning a Master
37 of Educational Administration degree from Furman and
38 serving, in turn, the Navy Reserves, National Guard, and
39 the Army Reserves, from which he retired as a Lt.
40 Colonel and began many years doing electrical work
41 overseas on mission trips and service to his
42 friends, family, church, and community.
43  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson
44 County Council hereby wish Mr. Rogers a happy 101st
45 birthday and thank him for his long lifetime of service
46 to Anderson County, to the United States, and to
47 countries around the world.
48 RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 18th day
49 of May, 2021.
50 And may I put that into the form of a resolution?



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - May 18, 2021 3

1 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, you may.  We have a
2 motion.  Do we have a second?
3 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  Any
5 discussion?  
6 CINDY WILSON:  Life well lived.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, ma’am.  And we hope
8 he has some more.  All in favor of the motion show of
9 hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
10 unanimously.  Thank you, Ms. Wilson.
11 Moving on now to item number 2(b), R2021-025, a
12 resolution proclaiming May 22-28, 2021 as National Safe
13 Boating Week.  Mr. Sanders.
14 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman. 
15 Thank you.
16 THIS IS RESOLUTION R2021-025 A RESOLUTION TO
17 PROCLAIM MAY 22-28, 2021 AS NATIONAL SAFE BOATING WEEK;
18 AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.
19 Whereas, for nearly 100 million Americans, boating
20 continues to be a popular recreational activity.  From
21 coast to coast, and everywhere in between, people are
22 taking to the water and enjoying time together boating,
23 sailing, paddling and fishing.  During National Safe
24 Boating Week, the U.S. Coast Guard and its federal,
25 state, and local safe boating partners encourage all
26 boaters to explore and enjoy America’s beautiful waters
27 responsibly; and
28 Whereas, safe boating begins with preparation.  The
29 Coast Guard estimates that human error accounts for most
30 boating accidents and that life jackets could prevent
31 nearly 86 percent of boating fatalities.  Through basic
32 boating safety procedures – carrying lifesaving
33 emergency distress and communications equipment, wearing
34 life jackets, attending safe boating courses,
35 participating in free boat safety checks, and staying
36 sober when navigating – we can help ensure boaters on
37 America’s coastal, inland, and offshore waters stay safe
38 throughout the season; and
39 Whereas, National Safe Boating Week is observed to
40 bring attention to important life-saving tips for
41 recreational boaters so that they can have a safer, more
42 fun experience out on the water throughout the year; and
43 Whereas, on average, 600 people die each year in
44 boating-related accidents in the U.S.; 79 percent of
45 these are fatalities caused by drowning; the vast
46 majority of these accidents are caused by human error or
47 poor judgment and not by the boat, equipment or
48 environmental factors; and a significant number of
49 boaters who lose their lives by drowning each year would
50 be alive today had they worn their life jackets.



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - May 18, 2021 4

1 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson
2 County Council hereby supports the goals of the Safe
3 Boating Campaign and proclaims May 22-28, 2021 as
4 National Safe Boating Week and the start of the
5 year-round effort to promote safe boating, urging all
6 those who boat to practice safe boating habits and wear
7 a life jacket at all times while boating.
8 RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 18th day
9 of May, 2021.
10 And I’d like to put that in the form of a motion,
11 sir.
12 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a motion Mr.
13 Sanders.  Have a second?
14 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
15 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Wright.  Any
16 discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor of the motion
17 show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion
18 carries unanimously.
19 That’s all for this part of the meeting.  Meeting be
20 adjourned.  We’ll meet back here at six thirty.
21
22 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:07 P.M.)



5

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

MAY 18, 2021

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
SETH RIDDLEY



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021 6

1 TOMMY DUNN:  ... regular meeting of
2 May the 18th to order.  I want to welcome everyone here
3 and thank y’all for coming.  We’ve got a busy agenda
4 tonight, so we want to get busy and get through this
5 thing.  
6 At this time I’d like to ask Councilman Wright if he
7 would lead us in the invocation and pledge of
8 allegiance.
9 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY JOHN WRIGHT 
10 TOMMY DUNN:  If y’all would please
11 remain standing just for a moment of silence.  I’d like
12 for us to keep in mind, our thoughts and prayers of
13 Coach Frazier’s family, a long-time fixture in Anderson
14 County.  And also Mark Williamson, our head IT person
15 here in the county had some tragedy over the weekend
16 with his family.  So please keep them in our thoughts
17 and prayers and have a moment of silence for those two
18 families, please.  Amen.  Thank y’all.  Be seated.
19 At this time, item number 3, approval of minutes,
20 they’re not ready so we’ll be doing that -- hopefully
21 they’ll be ready for us for the next council meeting.
22 At this time we’ll move on to item number 4, which
23 is citizens comments.  As Mr. Harmon calls your name,
24 please come forward and state your name and district for
25 the record.  Address the chair.  You’ve got three
26 minutes.  And only on agenda items only this first go-
27 around.
28 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one is
29 signed up to speak at this point in the meeting.
30 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Harmon.
31 At this time, item number 5, gives me great pleasure
32 to allow Ms. Wilson to introduce our new head librarian. 
33 Ms. Wilson.
34 CINDY WILSON:  Well, this is a wonderful
35 occasion for Anderson County.  Our library system has
36 been in good hands for a long time, and we know that it
37 will continue.  Mr. Burns penned a letter that I will
38 read.  The Anderson County Library Board of Trustees is
39 pleased to announce Annie Sutton as the new Director of
40 the Anderson County Library System beginning May 1.  
41 Annie has worked as the Assistant Director since
42 January 2020.  I’m very pleased that Ms. Sutton has been
43 named Director of the Anderson County Library, says
44 Anderson County Administrator Rusty Burns.  I know of
45 her commitment to our community, to all the people in
46 our community.  She is following a legend, but I feel
47 she may become one in her own right.  
48 Annie Sutton began her career with the Anderson
49 County Library System in 2006.  She established the
50 Gambrell Teen Room and became the first Teen Librarian



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021 7

1 for ACLS.  
2 Annie then worked as the Branch Manager for the
3 Powdersville Library, one of the largest and fastest
4 growing libraries in Anderson County, before becoming
5 the head of Access Services for the library system.  
6 Over her fifteen year career with ACLS, she has led the
7 library system to new initiatives and improvements,
8 overseeing major branch library renovations and a
9 reworking of the Anderson Main Library for improved
10 access and accessibility.  She will do a great job, says
11 the Library Board of Trustee member Chris Huff.  I got
12 to know Annie when she managed the Powdersville Library
13 and she was always great to talk with when she had the
14 time.  Plus, she’s a dog lover.  
15 In 2019 Annie received the Outstanding Librarian
16 Award from the South Carolina Library Association for
17 her work and contributions to ACLS and librarianship. 
18 While Annie is instrumental in leading large initiatives
19 and events like Community Reads and How-to Fairs, she’s
20 also comfortable kicking back and listening to
21 discussions at Brews & Books, a book club sponsored
22 jointly by ACLS and Carolina Bauernhaus Ales.  I love
23 looking at creative and innovative ways the library can
24 serve our patrons, whether that’s partnerships with
25 local businesses, circulating unconventional items like
26 seeds and fishing poles, or simply providing high
27 quality literacy programs like Story Time, Annie says. 
28 I’m excited for the opportunity to lead a great team and
29 to find new ways to reach our community.  The Anderson
30 County Library System serves residents of all ages in
31 Anderson County at the main library in the city of
32 Anderson, eight library branches, a book mobile, and the
33 digital library.  The system’s staff and board are
34 committed to the freedom of access for all, offering a
35 forum for ideas.  For more information visit

www.andersonlibrary.org.  36
37 Welcome.  We’re so glad to have Ms. Sutton and I
38 know we’ll all look forward to going.  And I bet Mr.
39 Wright will be hauling those little children over to
40 pick out books and go to Story Time.
41 JOHN WRIGHT:  Absolutely.  Yes, ma’am.
42 CINDY WILSON:  And my aunt was there
43 getting books to go to the beach with a couple of weeks
44 ago.  We appreciate this wonderful asset in our county. 
45 Thank you.
46 APPLAUSE 
47 TOMMY DUNN:  We do want to welcome you
48 aboard and appreciate it.  And like I said -- Ms. Wilson
49 said in her comments, I think you’ve got some big shoes
50 to fill, but you do it your way and you certainly --

http://www.andersonlibrary.org.


Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021 8

1 we’re going to miss Ms. Faith, but I know you’ll do a
2 great job.  I’ve heard a lot of good things about you.
3 ANNIE SUTTON:  I look forward to working
4 with you all.
5 TOMMY DUNN:  Look forward to it, too. 
6 Anyone else have any comments?
7 BRETT SANDERS:  Just welcome aboard.
8 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  And if we can
9 do anything at all, you or your board let Mr. Burns know
10 or contact one of us and we’ll see what we can do. 
11 Okay?  Thank y’all for what all you do for the county.
12 At this time we’re going to move on to item number
13 6, ordinance third reading.  2021-026, an Ordinance
14 authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu
15 of tax agreement by and between Anderson County, South
16 Carolina and a company known to the county at this time
17 as Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc. with respect to
18 certain economic development property in the county,
19 whereby such property will be subject to certain
20 payments in lieu of taxes, including the provision of
21 certain special source credits; and other matters
22 related thereto.  Mr. Burriss.
23 BURRISS NELSON:  (Inaudible) fifty
24 thousand square foot -- sorry -- fifty thousand square
25 foot terminal facility that will be not only
26 distribution of less than truck load distribution
27 throughout a hundred mile radius of here, but also
28 storage and distribution to our local industries.  This
29 capital investment is 8.6 million, creating twenty-seven
30 jobs, with an average hourly pay of twenty-eight dollars
31 and forty-six cents.  Annual payroll of a little over
32 1.5 million.  
33 This project comes to -- and taxes over thirty
34 years, 4.4 million.  This comes to council as a
35 recommendation from staff, as well as the Economic
36 Development Advisory Board.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  Is it not proper to say
38 the location they’re going to or ---
39 BURRISS NELSON:  They’re on a tract of
40 land between U.S. 76 and U.S. 178, on that frontage road
41 area.  It’s about halfway down.  It’s a fifteen, sixteen
42 acre tract.  I don’t know the tax map number.  
43 BRETT SANDERS:  Hurricane Creek?
44 BURRISS NELSON:  Say that again.
45 BRETT SANDERS:  Is that Hurricane Creek
46 you’re talking about?
47 BURRISS NELSON:  I apologize, I don’t know
48 the name of that road.  I hate to say it’s right there
49 past the liquor store.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  To the right.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021 9

1 BURRISS NELSON:  Turn right.
2 TOMMY DUNN:  Go up the hill.
3 BURRISS NELSON:  Go across to the QT, it’s
4 about halfway.
5 BRETT SANDERS:  That’s Hurricane Creek
6 Road you’re talking about.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Nelson. 
8 Appreciate it.
9 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
10 TOMMY DUNN:  At this time we’re going
11 to go into a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to
12 this matter, please step forward.  Again, state your
13 name and district for the record and address the chair. 
14 Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public
15 hearing will be closed.
16 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
17 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
18 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders;
19 second Ms. Wilson.  Now, any discussions, questions or
20 comments for Mr. Burriss?  Any at all?  Seeing and
21 hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
22 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
23 unanimously.  
24 And for the record, I meant to say this earlier. 
25 Let the record show Mr. Graham is not present tonight. 
26 Hopefully he’ll come in.
27 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you for your
28 support.
29 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Thank y’all.
30 Moving on now to item number 7(a), second reading. 
31 This is 2021-030, an Ordinance to adopt the operating
32 and capital budget of Anderson County for the fiscal
33 year beginning July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2022.
34 At this time we’ll go into a public hearing.  Anyone
35 wishing to speak to this matter, please step forward and
36 state your name and district, again, for the record and
37 address the chair.  You have three minutes.  Anyone at
38 all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will
39 be closed.  
40 Now I’m going to ask the Chairman of the Finance
41 Committee, Mr. Sanders, to take this up because this
42 was, I believe, talked about -- it’s on down in the
43 report, but we need to talk about this before he gets to
44 his report.  This is on the agenda.  He can go ahead and
45 report out what his Finance Committee done on this
46 subject here.
47 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
48 On the 2021 budget, we just said in prior meetings, we
49 have at the present time a balanced budget with two
50 months of fund reserve which keeps our bond rating at



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021 10

1 the level it needs to be kept at.  We also have no tax
2 increase.  And it comes before council unanimously from
3 the Finance Committee.  We will be having another
4 meeting.  Some of our council members on the committee
5 had some questions, and I think Ms. Davis had actually
6 emailed us some more information that we requested. 
7 Everything seems to be moving along well.  And hopefully
8 we’ll have the third reading with everyone’s support by
9 June the 1st.  Thank you, sir.
10 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  We have a
11 motion to move this forward from the Finance Committee. 
12 It doesn’t need a second coming from committee.  So I
13 open the floor up for discussion.  Any discussion?  Ms.
14 Wilson.
15 CINDY WILSON:  While this has been an
16 incredibly rough year, past fiscal year that we’re
17 finishing up, it’s with great diligence that everybody
18 has worked together to try to keep it in line and make
19 our county move forward without an increase.  So it’s a
20 very helpful situation.  Thank you.
21 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Ms. Wilson. 
22 And I would just like to say we’re still in the process. 
23 Still got another reading to do and some more meetings. 
24 And the public is always invited and so is all of the
25 council members.  But I just wanted -- would like to
26 give a shout out.  I think we’ve got the best finance
27 team in the state.  They do a great job, headed by Ms.
28 Davis, to keep us on top of things.  And we’ve got
29 questions and gets them back to us.  Most of the time
30 she already knows the answer.  Does an outstanding job. 
31 Especially in these tough times, what all is going on
32 with this COVID and everything.  We appreciate you and
33 your team, Ms. Davis.  Thank you very, very much. 
34 Anyone else?
35 BRETT SANDERS:  It was her birthday
36 Friday during that meeting.  We would have taken it a
37 little easy on you if we have known that.
38 TOMMY DUNN:  All in favor of the 
39 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
40 motion carries unanimously.  
41 We’re going to move on now to item number 7(b), this
42 will be 2021-031, an Ordinance to amend Section 38-353
43 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South
44 Carolina so as to amend Section 38-353(a) and add a new
45 Section 38-353(d) regarding private road standards;
46 and other matters related thereto.  
47 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
48 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
49 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a motion.  Do we 
50 have a second?



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021 11

1 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
2 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a second by Mr.
3 Sanders.  Now discussion.  I’d like at this time if we
4 could for Mr. Harmon to read out some changes, and if
5 it’s all agreeable or somebody can make the motion to
6 amend this.
7 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, ---
8 TOMMY DUNN:  These will be just the
9 changes.  And y’all have got a copy of these in y’all’s
10 highlighted -- or in y’all’s packet.  I just want to
11 make sure for the record this goes on.
12 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, members of
13 council, these area changes in Exhibit A to the
14 ordinance for Section 38-353(d), private road standards.
15 The first change is in Section 1.  That would now
16 read, survey maximum of ten lots for a private road,
17 with each lot containing a minimum of two acres,
18 excluding the road right-of-way.  
19 Item 2, further subdividing of parcels are
20 prohibited.  
21 Item 4 would be changed to have a minimum driving
22 surface width of eighteen feet, constructed of no less
23 than six inches of compacted crusher run base.  And
24 later on in that same section number 4, roads designed
25 to be permanently closed at one end shall be terminated
26 by circular right-of-way of not less than fifty foot
27 radius from the center point of the circular right-of-
28 way, and a gravel radius of not less than thirty-five
29 feet from said center point.
30 And then the final change is in Section 7.  A
31 surveyor must provide a recorded plat after a registered
32 professional licensed engineer certifies that it meets
33 the private road standards found in Section 38-353.
34 TOMMY DUNN:  Y’all heard that.  Do we
35 have a motion to amend the main motion?
36 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Davis.  Do we
38 have a second?  Second Ms. Wilson.  Now discussion on
39 the amendment?
40 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chairman, if I may?
41 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Davis.
42 JIMMY DAVIS:  I just want to thank the
43 staff and the county attorney for taking care of this. 
44 We had several inputs on making these changes.  And this
45 is more or less just cleaning up some of the verbiage in
46 the ordinance to make it crystal clear what we’re doing
47 going forward.  Thank you.
48 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Anyone else? 
49 I’d just like to say I appreciate your input, Mr. Davis,
50 working on this and getting this.  I think it’ll be a



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021 12

1 good tool for Anderson to have in its tool box.  Also,
2 want to thank staff and also want to thank a few
3 citizens that helped out on this, putting this together. 
4 Anyone else?  We’re voting on the amendment now to the
5 main motion.  All in favor show of hands.  Opposed like
6 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
7 Now we’ll be voting on the main -- or discussion of
8 the main motion of the county private road standards. 
9 Any comments, questions, discussion?  Seeing and hearing
10 none, all in favor of the main motion show of hands. 
11 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
12 unanimously.
13 We’re going to be moving on now to item number 8,
14 first readings.  There are none.
15 Resolutions, item number 9, there are none.
16 Moving on to item number 10, bid approval of
17 Anderson County Transportation Committee, number 120,
18 resurfacing project.  Mr. Carroll.
19 ROBERT CARROLL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
20 We have one bid to bring before you tonight.  As you
21 said, ACTC 120 resurfacing.  The dollar amount has been
22 approved by the ACTC Committee and they recommend award
23 to Pickens Construction for eight hundred and eight
24 thousand six hundred fifty-three dollars.  And this is
25 roughly a mile and a half of roads, all located within
26 the city of Anderson.
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Do we have a
28 motion?
29 BRETT SANDERS:  Mr. Chairman?
30 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, sir.
31 BRETT SANDERS:  We actually -- this came
32 through the Finance Committee.  
33 TOMMY DUNN:  Oh, I’m sorry.
34 BRETT SANDERS:  We voted on it
35 unanimously, so I don’t know if it’ll need a second.
36 TOMMY DUNN:  No.  Coming from the
37 Finance Committee meeting ---
38 BRETT SANDERS:  It was supported
39 unanimously from the Finance Committee.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Coming from them it won’t
41 need a second.  Now any discussion?  Hearing none, all
42 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
43 sign.  
44 Mr. Carroll, hang on one second.  If you would, make
45 sure you and Mr. Burns see me before the meeting is over
46 with.  We’re going to set a committee meeting up for
47 Friday, maybe.  And also I’m going to take a point of
48 privilege here being the chairman to just ask you
49 something.  How is the -- I’m going to talk about this
50 in my final comments, but I don’t want to have you make



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021 13

1 you get back up.  How is the EMS proposals looking?
2 ROBERT CARROLL:  They’re in the hands of
3 the evaluators.  
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Y’all got three
5 evaluators?
6 ROBERT CARROLL:  Reading information.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.
8 ROBERT CARROLL:  Had nine responses.
9 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  
10 Moving on to item number 11 now, report from the
11 Finance Committee.  Mr. Chairman.
12 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, sir.  We’ve
13 already discussed the resurfacing project, the budget. 
14 We had some transfers that Ms. Davis brought before us. 
15 The majority of it was housekeeping and some insurance
16 that we needed to transfer funds for.  It came before
17 the Finance Committee unanimously.  We also was informed
18 that on the Corona State and Local Fiscal Recovery forms
19 that the county will be receiving right at forty
20 million, or forty million dollars.  They’re going to
21 have more discussion on how this can be spent and
22 utilized at the next Finance Committee meeting.
23 TOMMY DUNN:  I just -- go back to the
24 transfers.  We need to vote on that; don’t we?
25 BRETT SANDERS:  The transfers we will,
26 yes, sir.  I’m sorry.
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Coming from the Finance
28 Committee, it doesn’t need a second, a committee.  Are
29 there any discussion?  All of y’all have gotten copies
30 and seen what the transfers was.  Anybody got any
31 questions or comments on the transfers?  Seeing and
32 hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
33 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries on that.
34 Now I just want to make a thing on item number 4 on
35 the funds of the thing.  There are, for better lack of a
36 term, strings to be attached to this.  We just can’t go
37 out and spend money here and there.  It’s guidelines. 
38 And we’re still, if I’m understanding staff right, still
39 sorting through some of the guidelines, what it is and
40 all.  
41 Mr. Burns, you got anything you want to add to that?
42 RUSTY BURNS:  We need council to make a
43 motion to approve the acceptance of that money.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Do we have a
45 motion to accept those funds?
46 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, it came
47 unanimously from the Finance Committee.
48 TOMMY DUNN:  Also, okay.  We don’t
49 need a second on that, then.  Are there any discussion
50 on that?  Now if the time for discussion.  Anything you



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021 14

1 want to add to that, Mr. Burns, as far as the process or
2 anything?
3 RUSTY BURNS:  Rita has already spent
4 it.
5 TOMMY DUNN:  I’m sure she has.  We’ll
6 keep her wrapped.  On some of it, though, on helping
7 some departments that has really come up short because
8 of this pandemic, it’s going to help those, and that is
9 what it’s for.
10 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.
11 TOMMY DUNN:  Anyone else?  All in
12 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
13 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
14 And I would just like to say this.  When that money
15 is received and it is -- it’ll be voted on in public
16 record what that money is spent on and how it’s going
17 out and all that.  And it’ll be recorded and it’ll be on
18 our thing as we do all our stuff.  So don’t want nobody
19 thinking anything otherwise.  And hopefully, I’m talked
20 to Mr. Burns and Ms. Davis about this, as soon as we can
21 get it, put it in the bank and if it just draws a little
22 that’ll help us out and let that pot grow a little bit
23 and get some interest.
24 Okay.  We’ll be moving on now -- is that all you’ve
25 got, Mr. Chairman?
26 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.  Thank you.
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you and your
28 committee working and working on the budget.
29 Item number 12, appointments.  Are there any that I
30 don’t know about?  
31 Requests from council members.  Any requests I don’t
32 know about?
33 Moving on to item number 14, administrator’s report.
34 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this time, Mr.
35 Chairman.
36 TOMMY DUNN:  Moving on to citizens
37 comments.  At this time when Mr. Harmon calls your name,
38 please step forward and state your name and district for
39 the record.  You’ve got three minutes.  And address the
40 chair, please.
41 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, first
42 speaker is Jill O’Connor.
43 JILL O’CONNOR:   I just wanted to say
44 thank you to our county council members for scheduling a
45 public meeting regarding River Forks sublease and
46 potential development.  Thank you for doing so.
47 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Next.
48 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Tonya
49 Winbush.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Winbush.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021 15

1 TONYA WINBUSH:   Hello.  I’m Tonya
2 Winbush, District 1.  John Wright is my county council
3 person or that represents my district.
4 I just want to come to you all because I started a
5 petition and I want you all to help me to make this
6 happen because I’ve never done anything like this
7 before, and so I don’t know how to make this happen. 
8 But I’m going to read this and it is change Plantation
9 Road alongside of Nevitt Forest Elementary School to
10 Gracie Floyd Road.  
11 The historic connotation of the word plantation is
12 synonymous with chattel slavery.  Plantation is a word
13 that reminds us of the tragic part of black American
14 history.  Therefore it seems unconscionable that the
15 students of Nevitt Forest Elementary which has a
16 majority of black students will be subjected to the use
17 of Plantation Road to travel to school every day.  This
18 is why the road name should be changed to Gracie Floyd
19 Road.  
20 Ms. Gracie died earlier this year due to
21 complications from COVID-19.  She was an Anderson County
22 Council woman of District 2, and Nevitt Forest
23 Elementary is in that district.  This change will honor
24 and recognize a great leader in the community and will
25 also remove the negative image of a past with which we
26 have yet to come to terms from the minds of
27 impressionable elementary school students.  
28 So that being said, I would like for you all to not
29 only, you know, do what you do to make a resolution and
30 all that stuff, I want you all to help me to really make
31 this come to fruition, to physically change Plantation
32 to Gracie Floyd.  Thank you.
33 TOMMY DUNN:  I just want to say -- I’m
34 not saying we can’t do that or won’t do that or the
35 time, but I do just want to say that we’ll wait for a
36 little time to pass and Mr. Burns and Mr. Sanders both
37 have made some recommendations and had some thoughts
38 about doing something for Ms. Floyd and honoring her. 
39 And Mr. Burns, I ask you to lead that up, that
40 committee, you’ve got a lot of contacts and see if you
41 can follow through with that and make a recommendation,
42 because we definitely want to do something.  It’s right. 
43 And thank you.  Okay?  We appreciate it.
44 Next, Mr. Harmon.
45 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker, Mr.
46 Chairman, is Dan O’Connor.
47 TOMMY DUNN:  He’s -- oh, okay.  Thank
48 you.  I’m sorry.
49 LEON HARMON:  No one else is signed up.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Thank y’all.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021 16

1 We’re going to go on at this time with council
2 members’ comments.  We’ll start with Mr. Davis.
3 JIMMY DAVIS:  Nothing, sir.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Sanders.
5 BRETT SANDERS:  Nothing at this time,
6 sir.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  You must be on the --
8 under.  Mr. Wright.
9 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman, I’ll keep
10 it brief, but I think we just wrapped up National Law
11 Enforcement Appreciation Week this past week.  And so I
12 know we’ve got some of our law enforcement here present
13 at each meeting.  Just really appreciate everything that
14 you guys do.  I know that several council members have
15 been celebrating the Sheriff’s Office the last couple of
16 days with the appreciation picnic.  But just want to
17 recognize you folks and everything that y’all do for our
18 community.  That’s it.
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Wright.  
20 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.
21 TOMMY DUNN:  Well said.  And I think
22 the whole council appreciates y’all.  And thank y’all
23 very, very much for what all y’all do with our law
24 enforcement.  And good seeing y’all.  
25 Ms. Wilson.
26 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
27 Just a reminder.  Our Appalachian Council of Governments
28 Transportation Committee meets Friday at ten via Zoom in
29 our conference room.  Our council members are welcome to
30 come, and any members of the public.  We’ll get an
31 update on some of the projects.  Thank you.
32 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  And a couple
33 of things.  
34 One, invite all council members if you can make it
35 to the Center Rock Fire Station at six thirty Thursday. 
36 Be a community meeting about the River Forks projects. 
37 Hope we all can make that and hear for yourself and find
38 out.
39 And secondly, there will be a -- I haven’t talked to
40 Chairman Graham yet about this.  I’ve had other things,
41 but was going to do it tonight.  But as soon as they get
42 through -- staff gets through grading these proposals
43 for EMS, I want either the Public Safety Committee can
44 head it up or what not, but we’re going to have a full
45 council meeting to review all this at one time. 
46 Everybody ought to be able to -- whoever puts on the
47 proposal, the staff recommends or what not, is going to
48 come and do a presentation for full council.  That way
49 we can all hear it at the same time.  We can all ask
50 questions and all, because this is very important to our



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021 17

1 county and our citizenry to get this and get this right. 
2 So I want everybody to get that and have a fair change
3 to do it because all of us has got districts that this
4 is involved.
5 Anyone else?  Anything else?  I appreciate it. 
6 Appreciate everybody coming tonight.  Meeting will be
7 adjourned.
8
9 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:58 P.M.)



AGENDA
ANDERSON COUNTY FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

Tommy Dunn
Chairman

Council District 5

Brett Sanders
Vice Chairman
Council District 4

Friday May 28, 2021 9:30 a.m.
101 South Main Street, Anderson SC

Second Floor, Administrator’s Conference Room
Chairman Brett Sanders, Presiding

John B. Wright, Jr.
Council District 1

1. Call to Order Chairman Sanders

Council District 2 2. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance Honorable Brett Sanders

Ray Graham
Council District 3

3. Transfer Ms. Rita Davis

Jimmy Davis
Council District 6

4. Continued Discussion of FY 21-22 Operating
& Capital Budget

Ms. Rita Davis

M. Cindy Wilson
Council District 7

Lacey Croegaert
Clerk to Council

Rusty Burns
County Administrator

5. Citizens Comments

6. Adjourn

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION
Rusty Burns I County Administrator

0: 864-260-4031 F: 864-260-4548 I rburns@andersoncounfysc.org
Historic Courthouse 101 South Main Street, Anderson SC 29624

P0 Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 www.andersoncountysc.org



FROM:

BUDGET TRANSFER

DIVISION: PRT

DEPARTMENT: Parks

TO: AMOUNT:

TITLE
ACCT.#

TITLE
ACCT.#

TITLE
ACCT#

TITLE
ACCT.#

TITLE
ACCT.#

Professional Services
001-5065-000-304

TITLE Meals
ACCT# 001-5065-000-236

TITLE
ACCT#

TITLE
ACCT#

TITLE
ACCT#

TITLE
ACCT#

Total

2,500.00

2,500.00

Explain, in COMPLETE DETAIL, the reason for the transfer.

REASON:
Our funds for meals are depleted for this budget year but we still have several events that will require meals.
1. Saluda River Rally - meals are provided for crews working after hours doing prep work for the Rally
2. Meals for Matt Schell and Neil Paul while attending the Bassmaster Classic as 2022 Event Hosts
3. Imagine Anderson lunch at the Museum
4. Meals for staff working outside normal hours for the TBF High School World Finals

(Circle One)

(Circle One) No

DEPT. HEAD:

DIVIS HEAD:
FINANCE:
ADMINISTRATOR:

DATE:

DATE:
DATE:
DATE: c. Z.3-1

Is this transfer within your department?

Is this transfer within your division?

No

Journal Entry # DATE:



1 
 

 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY COUNCIL FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 
 

ORDINANCE NO 2021-030 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT THE OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS OF 
ANDERSON COUNTY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2021, 
AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2022, AND TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS FOR SUCH 
ANDERSON COUNTY BUDGETS FOR COUNTY ORDINARY PURPOSES 
AND FOR OTHER COUNTY PURPOSES FOR WHICH THE COUNTY MAY 
LEVY A TAX OTHER THAN FOR TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
PURPOSES; TO PROVIDE FOR THE LEVY OF TAXES ON ALL TAXABLE 
PERSONAL AND REAL ESTATE PROPERTIES IN ANDERSON COUNTY FOR 
SUCH COUNTY ORDINARY PURPOSES, INCLUDING SUFFICIENT TAX TO 
PAY THE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON OUTSTANDING INDEBTEDNESS 
OF ANDERSON COUNTY MATURING DURING SAID FISCAL YEAR; TO 
ADOPT THE OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS OF ANDERSON 
COUNTY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2021, AND ENDING 
JUNE 30, 2022, AND TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS FOR SUCH ANDERSON 
COUNTY BUDGETS, FOR TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE; TO 
PROVIDE FOR THE LEVY OF TAXES ON ALL PERSONAL AND REAL 
PROPERTIES IN ANDERSON COUNTY ON WHICH SCHOOL TAXES MAY 
BE LEVIED FOR SUCH TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE PURPOSES; 
TO PROVIDE FOR THE LEVY, ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION OF 
CERTAIN OTHER TAXES AND FEES; TO PROVIDE FOR THE 
EXPENDITURE OF SAID TAXES AND OTHER REVENUES COMING TO THE 
COUNTY DURING SAID FISCAL YEAR; AND TO PROVIDE FOR OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING TO ANDERSON COUNTY.   

 
 BE IT ENACTED by the County Council for Anderson County, South Carolina ("Anderson 

County"), as follows: 
 
The following operating and capital budgets for Anderson County for the fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2022, are hereby adopted and directed to be implemented by the 
Anderson County Administrator and staff. 
 
SECTION I-ADOPTION OF OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS FOR COUNTY 
ORDINARY AND OTHER PURPOSES 
 
 Pursuant to Section 4-9-140 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended (the 
"Code"), the operating and capital budgets of Anderson County (the "Anderson County Budgets"), 
for County ordinary purposes and for other County purposes for which the County may levy a tax 
other than for Tri-County Technical College purposes, as hereinafter set forth, by reference and 
otherwise, are hereby adopted for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022. 
 



2 
 

SECTION II-LEVYING OF A SUFFICIENT TAX FOR COUNTY ORDINARY AND 
OTHER PURPOSES 
 

 A tax of sufficient millage to fund the appropriations for the Anderson County Budgets, herein 
made, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, after crediting against such 
appropriations all other revenue anticipated to accrue to Anderson County during said fiscal year, not 
designated for any other specific purpose, is hereby directed to be levied upon all taxable property of 
Anderson County upon which the County may levy County ordinary taxes, for County ordinary 
purposes and for other County purposes for which the County may levy a tax, other than for the 
Anderson County Library, Tri-County Technical College purposes, County sewer, Countywide 
Emergency Medical Service, Solid Waste fees, Sewer fees, Civic Center fees, Animal Shelter fees, 
9-1-1 tariffs, and road encroachment fees, all as separately levied in this Ordinance, such tax to fund 
the following amounts or millage, which shall be separately identified, levied, collected, and 
accounted for, as millage, for the purposes shown, as required by subsequent sections of this 
Ordinance (excluding Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes), with the total millage so levied, exclusive of debt service 
millage to be set by the Anderson County Auditor, not to exceed 83.9 mills. This Ordinance shall 
serve as Anderson County Council’s written certification to the Anderson County Auditor required 
under Section 12-43-285 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976, as amended). 
 

County Ordinary $49,975,400 65.2 Mills 
2007 General Obligation Bonds $760,000 1.0 Mills* 
2020 General Obligation Bonds $600,000 .8 Mills* 
 

*Debt service levies are statutorily set by the Auditor in the fall. This is an estimate for budget 
purposes. 

 

Other taxes and uniform assessments levied by this Ordinance are: 
 

Anderson County Library $5,200,000 6.9 Mills 
Infrastructure Reserve Fund $1,075,000  1.4 Mills 
Capital Fund $2,895,000 3.8 Mills 
Tri-County Technical College $2,361,100  3.1 Mills 
Anderson County Sewer $1,795,000  3.0 Mills 
County EMS  $5,005,000  6.6 Mills 
Solid Waste/Recycling Fees As set in Section XV $75.00 per household 

  $85.81 per commercial 
Sewer Fees As set in Section XVI  
Civic Center Fees As set in Section XXXIV  
Animal Shelter Fees As set in Section XXXV  
911 Tariff As set in Section XXXVII  
Road Encroachment Fees As set in Section XXXVIII  

 

SECTION III-GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUES  
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 

 



3 
 

GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS 
  

FUNCTION 
                       AMOUNT 
         APPROPRIATED 

 County Government Administration $31,085,16531,477,745 
 Health and Welfare 3,163,310 
 Public Safety 40,953,545 
 Public Works 9,361,920 
 Culture and Recreation 3,087,785 
 Transfer Out 1,288,645 
 Contingency 350,000 
 Total Appropriations-General Fund $89,290,37089,682,950 

GENERAL FUND REVENUE 
LOCAL SOURCES-4100 
100-101 Property Taxes-RPC Current                 $43,045,845 
100-102 Property Taxes-RPC Delinquent 2,500,000 
100-103 Property Taxes-Vehicles 6,929,555 
100-105 Property Taxes-Fee-In-Lieu of  Taxes 2,800,000 
000-115 Concessions-Civic Center 6,000 
000-121 Ticket Sales-Civic Center 20,000 
000-140 Rent of Property-Civic Center 210,000 
000-180 Vendor Fees 3,000 
001-105 Baseball-Sports Complex 35,000 
001-106 Soccer-Sports Complex 10,000 
001-107 Softball-Sports Complex 5,000 
001-108 Tennis-Sports Complex 250 
001-115 Concessions-Sports Complex 6,000 
001-125 Rental-Sports Complex 2,500 
003-115 Concessions-Amphitheatre 2,000 
003-140 Rental-Amphitheatre 16,000 
200-110 Fees/Fines-Court Division 165,000 
200-120 Fees/Fines-Family Court 385,000 
200-121 Fees/Fines-Family Court Filing Fees 8,000 
200-125 Fees/Fines-Worthless Check Unit 5,000 
200-135 Fees/Fines-Register of Deeds 2,200,000 
200-140 Fees/Fines-Judge of Probate 450,000 
200-150 Fees/Fines-Master-in-Equity 90,000 
200-155 Fees/Fines-Sheriff 25,000 
200-158 Fees/Fines-Magistrates 800,000 
200-162 Decal Fees 150,000 
200-163 City of Anderson-Forensics 43,000 
200-164 Fees-Coroner 3,000 
200-165 Oconee County Master-in-Equity 36,055 
200-166 Oconee County Drug Lab Match 46,375 
200-168 Medical Examiner Reimbursement 145,000140,000 
200-175 School Crossing Guards 120,000 
200-176 School Resource Officers 2,200,000 



4 
 

300-105 Fees-Animal Shelter 75,000 
300-110 Fees-Cablevision Franchise 1,630,000 
300-120 Fees-Maps and Plats 40,000 
300-125 Fees-Municipal Collection 30,000 
300-132 Fees-Delinquent Tax Posting Fee 20,000 
300-140 Permits-Building 1,400,000 
300-145 Permits-Electrical 300,000 
300-150 Permits-Heating and Air 150,000 
300-155 Permits-Land Use 135,000 
300-157 Fees-Plan Reviews 150,000 
300-158 Fees-Driveway Aprons 130,000 
300-160 Permits-Plumbing 180,000 
300-165 Permits/License-Mobile Homes 55,000 
300-174 Permits-Encroachment 30,000 
300-180 Fees-Re-inspections 5,000 
300-181 Sex Offender Registry 20,000 
300-182 Inspections-Engineering 40,000 
300-190 Miscellaneous 85,000 
400-160 Library Security Reimbursement 105,000 
600-140 Rent of Property 610,000 
600-143 Booth Rental-Farmer’s Market 2,500 
600-144 Farmer’s Market-Event Rental 5,000 
600-145 Broadway Lake Rental 30,000 
900-120 Interest Income 500,000 
3700-000-101 Fund Balance 9,336,430 
 Total Amount of Local 77,526,510 
STATE SOURCES-4200 
400-218 Flood Control 105,000 
400-220 Health and Environmental 5,000 
500-115 Registration and Elections 155,200 
500-125 Local Government Fund 8,162,525 
500-135 Merchants Inventory 273,260 
500-150 Homestead Exemption 2,310,000 
500-160 Salary Assistance 7,875 
 Total Amount of State 11,018,860 
FEDERAL SOURCES-4300 
500-150 Corps of Engineers 95,000 
500-165 DSS Reimbursement 75,000 
 Total Amount of Federal 170,000 
TRANSFER IN-6400 
100-168 Transfer In-Documentary 530,000 
100-175 Transfer In-State ATAX 45,000 
 Transfer In-Economic Development 397,580 
 Total Amount of Transfer In 575,000972,580 
 Total Revenue-General Fund $89,290,37089,682,950 

No amount of the Local Government Fund revenue shall be used for lobbying purposes. 
 

Formatted: No underline



5 
 

 
SECTION IV-SPECIAL REVENUE FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 

 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND APPROPRIATIONS 
 Total Appropriated $95,061,32095,096,320 
   

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND REVENUE 
Special Revenue Funds Other Than Sheriff’s Office 
102 Grants-Local Contributions $3,343,380 
 State Grants 707,500 
 Transfer In-AFEE 30,000 
 Fund Balance 94,225 
103 Museum Store 15,000 
104 American Rescue Plan 39,284,880 
105 Emergency Rental Assistance Grant 4,415,900 
108 Water Recreation-Local Contributions 50,000 
 State Grants 100,000 
 Federal Grant 500,000 
 Transfer In-AFEE 80,000 
114 Public Defender-Local Contributions 240,000 
 State Revenue 1,300,000 
 Municipal Funding 55,000 
 Transfer In-General Fund 564,590 
 Fund Balance 31,140 
118 HOME Program-Federal Grant 795,000 
 Transfer In-General Fund 125,000 
126 Textile Communities Revitalization-Federal Grant 500,000535,000 
 Transfer In-General Fund 300,000 
127 CDBG Rehabilitation-Federal Grant 1,089,150 
 Transfer In-General Fund 24,350 
137 Transfer In-“C” Funds 2,000 
139 “C” Funds 3,500,000 
 Fund Balance 5,352,000 
 Transfer In-Infrastructure 150,000 
140 Tri-County Technical College-Millage 2,361,100 
 Delinquent Taxes 85,000 
 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 158,400 
 Merchants Inventory 12,000 
 Homestead Exemption 129,360 
 Fund Balance 342,540 
142 Airport 2,080,705 
143 Anderson County Library-Millage 5,200,000 



6 
 

 Delinquent Taxes 195,000 
 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 300,000 
 Homestead Exemption 248,000 
 Fund Balance (122,710) 
145 Re-Entry Navigator Grant-Local Contributions 76,200 
150 Title IV-D/Family Court-Incentive Payments 513,170 
152 DSS Incentive Payments 10,000 
 Fund Balance 65,000 
156 Victim Bill of Rights 149,615 
 Transfer In-General Fund 130,400 
157 Victims of Crime Act Grant 144,400 
 Transfer In-General Fund 38,870 
163 HAZMAT-Local Contributions 50,000 
 Fund Balance 42,975 
165 Federal Emergency Management Agency-Federal Grant 927,410 
 State Grant 74,515 
168 Documentary Stamps 4,000,000 
 Fund Balance 530,000 
173 Detention Center Canteen-Concessions 200,000 
 Fund Balance 145,920 
174 E-911 Revenues 1,665,000 
 Transfer In-2020 Lease-Software 485,645 
 Fund Balance (413,180) 
175 State Accommodation Tax 469,500 
176 Infrastructure-Transfer In-Infrastructure Reserve 876,815 
177 County Accommodations Tax 800,000 
 Fund Balance 52,355 
180 PARD/Recreation-State Grants 105,000 
 Transfer In-General Fund 17,500 
 Transfer In-Capital Projects 67,500 
 Fund Balance 2,500 
181 Office of Justice Programs-Federal Grant 242,415 
 Transfer In-General Fund 8,470 
191 Duke Energy-EPD 15,000 
 Fund Balance 49,075 
193 EMS-Millage 5,005,000 
 Delinquent Taxes 185,000 
 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 290,000 
 Local Contributions 660,000 
 State Grant 16,680 
 Homestead Exemption 235,000 
 Fund Balance 38,090 
194 Animal Shelter Donations 375,000 
 Fund Balance 75,000 
195 Sheriff Forfeiture Fund 400,000 
 Fund Balance 100,000 



7 
 

196 Infrastructure Reserve Fund-Millage 1,075,000 
 Delinquent Taxes 40,000 
 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 58,000 
 Homestead Exemption 50,000 
 Fund Balance 1,077,970 
198 Sheriff Forfeiture Non-Drug Fund 30,000 
 Fund Balance 170,000 
 Total Special Revenue Fund Revenue $95,061,32095,096,320 
   

 

SECTION V-DEBT SERVICE AND OTHER FINANCING APPROPRIATIONS AND 
REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND DEBT SERVICE APPROPRIATIONS 
BOND APPROPRIATED 
2008 General Obligation Bond $845,880 
2020 General Obligation Bond 671,050 
  
Total General Obligation Bond Debt Service Appropriated $1,516,930 

 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND DEBT SERVICE REVENUE 

SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
Property taxes $1,409,000 
Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 79,000 
Merchants Inventory 66,000 
Homestead Exemption 64,000 
Fund Balance  (101,070) 
Total General Obligation Bond Debt Service Revenue $1,516,930 

 

REVENUE BOND DEBT SERVICE APPROPRIATIONS 
BOND APPROPRIATED 
Special Source Revenue Bonds $864,790 
Total Revenue Bond Debt Service Appropriated $864,790 

 

REVENUE BOND DEBT SERVICE REVENUE 
SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
Transfer In-Economic Development Fund $864,790 
Total Revenue Bond Debt Service Revenue $864,790 

 

SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT APPROPRIATIONS 
SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT AMOUNT 
Hidden Brooks $7,975 
Knight’s Bridge 5,840 
Ashwood Subdivision 10,890 

Formatted: Font: 4 pt



8 
 

Sharen Ridge 9,655 
The Farm 5,595 
Total Special Tax District Appropriations $39,955 

 

SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT REVENUE 
SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
Special Tax District Fees $39,955 
Total Special Tax District Revenue $39,955 

LEASE PURCHASE FINANCINGS ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS 
Equipment Lease Purchase  
Total Lease Purchase Financings Annual Appropriations $2,313,605 
Total Lease Purchase Financings Annual Appropriations $2,313,605 

LEASE PURCHASE FINANCINGS REVENUE 
SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
Transfer In-General Fund $79,465 
Transfer In-E-911 167,175 
Transfer In-Infrastructure Reserve Fund 705,970 
Transfer In-Capital 1,360,995 
Total Lease Purchase Financings Revenue $2,313,605 
Total Debt Service and Other Financings Appropriations $4,735,280 
Total Debt Service and Other Financings Revenue $4,735,280 

 

To the extent that any monies remain in any debt service funds of the County, upon complete 
satisfaction of the debt for which such funds were collected, the County Administrator may transfer 
all such excess and otherwise unused funds to, and utilize such funds for any other Anderson 
County debt service fund which has been lawfully created by Anderson County Council to pay 
debt service on any lawful debt obligation of the County. Further, to the extent that any monies 
remain in the capital project accounts of the County, upon complete satisfaction of the stated 
purposes for which such funds were initially authorized, the County Administrator may transfer 
all such excess and otherwise unused funds to, and utilize such funds for any other Anderson 
County activity or purpose which has been duly authorized by Anderson County Council and for 
which debt funds of the County may be lawfully used. 
 

SECTION VI-CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS APPROPRIATIONS 
FUND ACTIVITY APPROPRIATED 
312 Green Pond Landing Event Center $800,000 
317 TTI Building 1,000,000 
319 2020 General Obligation Bond 7,168,185 
320 2020 Lease-Software 1,315,410 
346 2018 SSRB 8,000,000 
360 Capital Reserve Fund 11,542,46013,678,205 
368 Economic Development 2,879,7504,923,075 

Formatted: Font: 2 pt

Formatted: Font: 2 pt



9 
 

Total Capital Funds Appropriations $36,884,87532,705,805 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS REVENUES 

FUND SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
312 Green Pond-State Grant $600,000 
 Transfer In-Accommodation Fee 200,000 
317 TTI Building-State Grant 415,280 
 Federal Grant 500,000 
 Transfer In-Economic Development 84,720 
319 2020 General Obligation Bond 6,600,000 
 Transfer In-Infrastructure 568,185 
320 2020 Lease-Software-Fund Balance 1,315,410 
346 Special Source Revenue Bond-Fund Balance 8,000,000 
360 Capital Reserve Fund-Property Taxes 2,895,000 
 Delinquent Property Taxes 105,000 
 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 168,075 
 Local Contributions 30,000310,000 
 Homestead Exemption 136,000 
 Sale of Capital 100,000 
 Insurance Proceeds 65,000 
 State Grant 1,450,0001,660,000 
 Transfer In-2020 Lease-Software 829,765 
 Transfer In-Economic Development 2,092,1203,737,865 
 Fund Balance 3,671,500 
368 Economic Development-Property Taxes 975,000 
 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 2,600,000 
 Fund Balance (695,250)1,348,075 
Total Capital Funds Revenue $32,705,80536,884,875 

 

SECTION VII-ENTERPRISE FUNDS APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein; provided, however that to the extent, only, that 
revenues for Enterprise Fund activities exceed the revenue projections shown below, the 
Appropriations shown for Enterprise Funds herein may be adjusted by the Administrator to match the 
increased revenues, subject to the requirements of Section XXVII, hereof. Provided, further, that the 
Administrator is authorized to write off, discharge, or otherwise adjust uncollectible and otherwise 
unenforceable debt owed to the enterprise funds of the county, utilizing the same standards used by 
the Anderson County Treasurer to adjust nulla bona debt of the County. 

 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS APPROPRIATIONS 

ACTIVITY APPROPRIATED 
Sewer $10,711,15510,740,455 
Stormwater 762,760 
Solid Waste/Recycling 10,476,53510,544,935 
Total Enterprise Funds Appropriations $21,950,45022,048,150 



10 
 

 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS REVENUES 

REVENUES AMOUNT 
Sewer Property Taxes, State Revenue, Fees & Interest $10,387,095 
Sewer-Federal Grant 500,000 
Sewer-Fund Balance (175,940)(146,640) 
Stormwater-Fees 145,315 
Stormwater-Transfer In from Sewer 617,445 
Solid Waste/Recycling 8,245,215 
Solid Waste/Recycling State Grant 1,809,325 
Solid Waste Fund Balance 421,995490,395 
Total Enterprise Funds Revenues $21,950,45022,048,150 

 
SECTION VIII-LEVYING OF A SUFFICIENT TAX FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 
LIBRARY PURPOSES 
 

 A tax of sufficient millage to fund the appropriations in the amount of $5,200,000 (excluding 
delinquent taxes totaling approximately $195,000, fee-in-lieu of taxes totaling approximately 
$300,000, homestead exemption totaling approximately $248,000 and increase in fund balance 
totaling approximately $122,710), for the Anderson County Library budgets, herein made, for the 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, is hereby directed to be levied on all 
personal and real property in Anderson County, and shall be identified as such on Anderson County 
tax bills.  To the extent such levy results in excess revenues, above those stated above, all such 
revenues shall be placed and maintained in the Anderson County Library fund balance. Any funds in 
the Anderson County Library fund balance at any point in time in excess of those required for the 
Anderson County Library budgets herein made, may be utilized by the Anderson County Library 
Board of Trustees; provided, however, the expenditures of said surplus funds shall never exceed the 
amount of the most recent approved budget of the Library. There shall be credited against said 
appropriations all other revenues anticipated to accrue to Anderson County during said year for 
Anderson County Library.  All such taxes and other revenues shall be levied, collected, deposited, 
disbursed and accounted for in the Anderson County Library Fund, with a specific levy and account 
for the library appropriation category listed herein.   
 

SECTION IX-ANDERSON COUNTY LIBRARY FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND 
REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if 
set forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, 
the following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the 
anticipated revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 

 

ANDERSON COUNTY LIBRARY FUND APPROPRIATIONS 
ACTIVITY APPROPRIATED 
Anderson County Library Fund $5,820,290 
Total Anderson County Library Fund 
Appropriations 

$5,820,290 

 
 



11 
 

 
ANDERSON COUNTY LIBRARY FUND APPROPRIATIONS 

SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
Property Taxes $5,200,000 
Delinquent Taxes 195,000 
Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 300,000 
Homestead Exemption 248,000 
Fund Balance (122,710) 
Total Anderson County Library Fund Revenue $5,820,290 

 

The Anderson County Auditor is hereby directed to levy as separately identified County ordinary 
millage and the Anderson County Treasurer hereby directed to collect, disburse monthly (if funds are 
available), and account for as a separate fund the sums identified herein for the Anderson County 
Library Fund.  
 

SECTION X-ADOPTION OF OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS FOR TRI-
COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE PURPOSES 
 

 Pursuant to Section 4-9-70 of the Code, the operating and capital budgets of Anderson County 
specifically for Tri-County Technical College as hereinafter set forth, by reference and otherwise, are 
hereby adopted for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022. 
 

SECTION XI-LEVYING OF A SUFFICIENT TAX FOR TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL 
COLLEGE PURPOSES 
 

 A tax of sufficient millage to fund the appropriations in the amount of $2,361,100 (excluding 
delinquent taxes totaling approximately $85,000, fee-in-lieu of payments totaling approximately 
$158,400, merchants inventory payments totaling $12,000, homestead exemption payments totaling 
$129,360, and usage of fund balance totaling approximately $342,540) for the Tri-County Technical 
College Budgets, herein made, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, 
is hereby directed to be levied on all personal and real property in Anderson County on which school 
taxes may be levied, and shall be identified as such on Anderson County tax bills. To the extent such 
levy results in excess revenues, above those stated above, all such revenues shall be placed and 
maintained in the Tri-County Technical College fund balance. There shall be credited against said 
appropriations all other revenues anticipated to accrue to Anderson County during said year for Tri-
County Technical College.  All such taxes and other revenues shall be levied, collected, deposited, 
disbursed and accounted for in the Tri-County Technical College Fund, with a specific levy and 
account for the special education appropriation category listed herein.   
 

SECTION XII. TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE FUND APPROPRIATIONS 
AND REVENUES 

 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 
 

TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE APPROPRIATIONS 
ACTIVITY APPROPRIATED 
Tri-County Technical College $3,088,400 



12 
 

Total Tri-County Technical College Appropriations $3,088,400 
TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE REVENUES 

SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
Property Taxes $2,361,100 
Delinquent Taxes 85,000 
Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 158,400 
Merchants Inventory 12,000 
Homestead Exemption 129,360 
Fund Balance 342,540 
Total Tri-County Technical College Revenues $3,088,400 

 
SECTION XIII-TAX FOR ANDERSON COUNTY SEWER 
 
 There is hereby directed to be levied a tax of three (3) mills on all county ordinary taxable and 
real property in all unincorporated areas of Anderson County, pursuant to Anderson County 
Ordinance Number 164 of 1986, in order to provide sewer service in the County. 

 
SECTION XIV. LEVYING OF A TAX FOR COUNTYWIDE EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
SERVICES 
 
 There is hereby directed to be levied a tax of six and six-tenths mills (6.6 mills) to provide 
such emergency medical services in the County; to be subject to and dependent upon the approval 
by County Council, prior to the levy of County taxes, of: the creation and organization of an 
oversight and governance board for County emergency medical services not addressed elsewhere; 
bylaws and agreements and other organizational documents for such board; applicable minimum 
standards for County providers of emergency medical services; oversight rules and agreements for 
County providers of emergency medical services; approval by County Council of funding for such 
emergency medical services including any required levy of County taxes; and a plan and procedure 
for the distribution of such levied funds to the County providers of emergency medical services on 
a fair and equitable basis.   

SECTION XV-SOLID WASTE/RECYCLING FEES 
 There shall be a uniform $75.00 Residential Solid Waste/Recycling Fee annually imposed 
upon the owner of record of each residence in the County, including all single and multi-family 
homes, mobile homes, and all lease and rental properties, and a uniform Commercial $85.81 Solid 
Waste/Recycling Fee annually imposed upon every business, excepting industries, located in a 
municipality in the County, and to be collected by such municipality not less frequently than 
annually and remitted to the County within thirty (30) days from the deadline imposed by the 
municipality for such collections. Together, these fees, plus the Starr C&D Landfill usage fee of 
$28/ton and revenues received from the sale of recycled materials, interest income, state grant and 
tire revenue are currently estimated to produce approximately $10,054,540 for this fiscal year, and 
constitute the total anticipated fiscal year 2021-2022 revenues of the Solid Waste and Recycling 
Department. 

 The residential Solid Waste and Recycling Fees shall be levied as a uniform assessment by 
the Anderson County Auditor and placed upon the annual real estate tax notice and collected by 
the Anderson County Treasurer, pursuant to state law. The fiscal officers of the County shall have 



13 
 

the authority to nulla bona or abate these fees to the same extent and under the same conditions as 
they do for a comparable tax.   

 Further, there shall be imposed a late fee and supplemental processing charge of $6.00, for 
all Solid Waste/Recycling Fees not timely remitted to the County Treasurer by March 16 of the 
year when due. For all past due accounts in excess of one year, the County shall impose an 
additional annual penalty of $12.00. The County shall pursue all legal remedies available to it to 
recover past due amounts, and shall hold the property owner responsible for all costs of collection, 
including reasonable attorney fees, as a part of such collection efforts and as a part of the fees 
imposed by County Council pursuant to state law, in order that lawful tax-paying citizens not be 
forced to subsidize those taxpayers who do not pay this lawful fee in a timely manner. Failure by 
a municipality to collect the uniform Commercial Solid Waste/Recycling Fee or to remit such 
collected fees to the County in accordance with this section may result in the County terminating 
solid waste disposal privileges for such municipality until all such collections and/or remittances 
are made current. 

 All proceeds collected from these fees shall be accounted for in a separate fund to be used 
solely to account for solid waste operations in the County, including but not limited to, the 
collection, disposal, transfer, and recycling of solid waste, including, without limitation, the 
purchase or construction of machinery, equipment, and facilities for such operations, as well as the 
administrative expenses incurred in the operation of the Anderson County Solid Waste and 
Recycling Department and collection of the annual solid waste/recycling fee. The County is 
authorized to issue appropriate legal obligations, including bonds, as appropriately authorized by 
normal County processes to pay for all of the foregoing costs, utilizing the proceeds from these 
fees to pay for such costs, including, without limitations, to pay the debt service for such bond 
obligations. The fees addressed in this section may be set or changed by simple vote of County 
Council, and will be adjusted by the County Administrator and the Public Works Division Director 
of the County accordingly to reflect these changes by County Council. The provisions of this 
Section shall be codified in a separate ordinance of the County pertaining to Solid Waste/Recycling 
Fees, which shall include provisions for enforcement, including civil and criminal penalties for 
non-payment. 

 Because empirical evidence indicates that senior citizens generate less Solid Waste, by 
consuming less, than younger residents, the Anderson County Auditor shall only levy and collect 
a $40 Residential Solid Waste/Recycling Fee for every household which qualifies for and is 
granted the State Homestead Exemption. 
 
SECTION XVI-SEWER FEES 
 
 The County is party to multiple agreements with the City of Anderson, South Carolina (the 
"City"), which have been in effect for many years and are of indefinite duration.  Those agreements 
require the County to pay a pro rata share of the cost of certain upgrades to the City's sewer system, 
based on the volume of discharge and the nature of the discharge.  Because the County does not set 
the amount of such costs and because the costs are based on actual use by customers using the system, 
the only equitable method to use for paying the cost of increase charged by the City, pursuant to 
contractual agreements of long standing, is to increase the County sewer use charges affected, by the 
respective percentage or amount of increase charged by the City, i.e., to treat the amount charged by 
the City as a "pass-through" charge to the system users. In addition, the County has certain debt 



14 
 

instruments in effect, with the South Carolina State Revolving Fund and others, which require the 
County to set sewer user charges in such an amount as will generate sufficient funds to pay all debt 
service on such debt instruments. The County Administrator and the Public Works Division Director 
may effect such “pass-through” charges by insuring that amounts charged by the City are correct and 
then passing those charges along, pro rata, to the users of the County sewer system impacted by the 
City charges, in the form of adjusted sewer use charges, based on the same cost increase factors 
utilized by the City, and may otherwise adjust such sewer use charges as required to adequately meet 
all debt service requirements of sewer system debt instruments and obligations duly authorized by 
County Council. 
 
SECTION XVII-STORMWATER REQUIREMENTS AND PERSONNEL 
 
 Federal and state law mandates the management of stormwater runoff by Anderson County. 
Accordingly, certain Public Works employees have been assigned to the management of Anderson 
County’s Stormwater Runoff management program. Anderson County Council may utilize funds 
from the Sewer Fund for the Stormwater Runoff management program, to the extent such funds are 
available and sufficient for that purpose and exceed stormwater fees collected for that purpose, rather 
than impose additional federally and state mandate-created fees for such purposes. 
 
SECTION XIII-CREATION AND APPROPRIATION OF PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE 
FUND 

 

 There has heretofore been established, and shall be maintained as a separate budgetary and 
operational fund of the County, the Anderson County Public Infrastructure Fund (the “Fund”).  The 
County shall deposit into such Fund those revenues of the County derived from fee-in-lieu-of-tax 
(“FILOT”) payments from the several joint county industrial and business parks of the County 
(“multi-county parks” or “MCIPs”), which are designated to be so deposited by this Ordinance or 
other ordinances of Anderson County, including, without limitation, Ordinance #2004-041, as 
amended from time to time (“Ordinance #2004-041”).  Moneys deposited into the Fund shall be 
utilized for the costs of infrastructure serving economic development purposes in Anderson County 
(“Infrastructure”) in accordance with the provisions of 4-1-170, et seq., Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 1976, as amended, and as directed by Anderson County Administrator. Such expenditures 
are hereby authorized by Anderson County Council.  Deposits into such Fund shall include, without 
limitation, those revenues from the Anderson County-Greenville County multi-county park which are 
allocated to that purpose by Ordinance #2004-041, (exclusive of such revenues as are being utilized 
for separate special source revenue bonds issued to fund Infrastructure).  Moreover, Anderson County 
Council affirms that distribution of the FILOT revenues received by Anderson County pursuant to 
the multi-county park agreements with Clarendon County and with Abbeville/McCormick Counties 
for park premises under those two agreements which are located in Anderson County shall be 
distributed in the same manner and pursuant to the same allocation methodology as set forth in 
Ordinance #2004-041.  All monies and revenues received by Anderson County pursuant to Ordinance 
#2004-041 and this Section shall be accumulated in, accounted for, and distributed from such Fund 
as provided in such Ordinance and in this Section. Expenditures may be made from such Fund to pay 
the cost of such Infrastructure directly or to make debt service payments on bonds or notes payable 
issued by the County to fund such Infrastructure. 
 There is hereby created a Capital Renewal an Replacement Fund that is to be funded in 
accordance with the wishes of Anderson County Council. 
 



15 
 

SECTION XIX-SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS 
 

 The County Finance Department shall receive and account for those revenues of the County 
levied and collected for the special tax districts of the county, as authorized, required, and levied by 
the County ordinances creating such special tax districts. The County Finance Department will 
disburse moneys from such funds in accordance with the County ordinances creating the special tax 
districts, including, without limitation, for reimbursements of the County Public Works Division in 
accordance with such ordinances. Such monies are hereby appropriated for those purposes. 
 

SECTION XX-FUNDING OF COUNTY ORGANIZATIONS 
 

 All dependent boards, agencies, commissions, and organizations of the County, funded by 
these budgets, except for County Rescue Squads shall be disbursed funds on a quarterly basis upon 
a letter of request to the County Administrator any time after the beginning of the first month of 
the quarter.  A brief report shall be submitted along with the letter of request, detailing how County 
funds were expended in the previous quarter. An audit report shall be presented to the County 
Administrator within six months following the end of the respective fiscal year for each 
organization addressed by this Section following receipt of request by the County Administrator.  

SECTION XXI-SETTING OF A MILLAGE RATE 
 
 The Anderson County Council, working in cooperation with the Anderson County Auditor 
and Treasurer and in accordance with the laws and Constitution of the State of South Carolina, shall 
calculate and fix the amount of the millage necessary, not to exceed 83.9 mills total, exclusive of debt 
service millage to be set by the Anderson County Auditor, as set forth herein, to support the 
appropriations herein made, with the exception of those appropriations and portions thereof supported 
by revenues other than property taxes, and shall so advise the Auditor and Treasurer of Anderson 
County who shall levy and collect said millage, respectively, as hereby directed by the County 
Council, in addition to any millage (for debt service or otherwise) for which the statutory authority to 
determine and levy is granted to the Anderson County Auditor and the authority to collect is given to 
the Anderson County Treasurer. All such levies of taxes authorized herein by Anderson County 
Council for County of Anderson purposes shall be set forth, stated, and mailed to the taxpayers of 
Anderson County on a tax notice showing such levies separate and independent of levies of taxes by 
any other legal entity or political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, whether on a two-sided 
tax notice or a multi-page tax notice or any other form of tax notice accomplishing the purpose set 
forth in this paragraph. Anderson County Council will provide forms for such tax notices and no funds 
appropriated by this budget ordinance are authorized for the procurement or preparation of any other 
form of tax notice. 
 

SECTION XXII-COMPLIANCE WITH COUNTY CODE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
 All funds for County ordinary purchases and procurements shall be obligated in accordance 
with the County Code through the County Central Purchasing Department and will be disbursed by 
the Finance Department so as to provide for necessary auditing, unless specifically exempted by 
County Council in public session.   
 All State and Federal Grants will be administered, coordinated, and accounted for by the 
Anderson County Finance Department.   
 Use of funds appropriated by County Council district or otherwise, to reimburse members of 
County Council for reimbursable expenses (that is, for lodging, travel, registration fees, training, 



16 
 

meals, and telephone usage) incurred in the discharge of their official duties shall be in accordance 
with the terms and provisions of the County Code. 
 
 
SECTION XXIII-DEPOSITS 
 
 All service charges, reimbursements, fees, fines, other funds received by county departments 
shall be deposited with the County Treasurer as soon as possible after collection; but in no case shall 
the time lapse between collection and deposit with the Treasurer exceed thirty (30) days.  The 
Treasurer is authorized and directed to deposit all funds received into the appropriate interest-bearing 
accounts, and any surplus funds and all accumulative interest shall be deposited into the General Fund 
of Anderson County.   
 
SECTION XXIV-SURPLUS FUNDS 
 
 Except as otherwise noted herein, any surplus in the General Fund of the County or any 
moneys accruing therefrom shall be used as a contingency fund and shall be spent as authorized and 
directed by the Anderson County Council during the fiscal year addressed by this Ordinance, only.  
At the end of such fiscal year those funds shall be accounted for as addressed in the next succeeding 
Section.  Any surplus in other funds of the County or any monies accruing therefrom shall be retained 
and accounted for in such other fund or funds and shall be carried forward from year to year as fund 
balances in such funds. 
 
SECTION XXV-END OF FISCAL YEAR ACCOUNTING 
 
 All appropriations made by this Ordinance for which monies have not been obligated or 
encumbered by the end of June 30, 2022, shall lapse and expire at that time.  All appropriations made 
by this Ordinance for which the funding monies have been obligated or encumbered by June 30, 2022 
shall remain on the books of Anderson County at June 30, 2022 for matching of the applicable 
expenditure for year-end accrual purposes. Once the ledgers are closed for year-end accrual purposes, 
the unused encumbrance amount will be removed from the encumbrance system. Unobligated 
General Fund budgetary appropriations and monies received by County departments and existing 
without obligation at the close of the fiscal year addressed by this Ordinance shall revert to the General 
Fund of Anderson County to be accounted for as fund balance; no existing appropriation or actual 
revenues on hand at the end of the fiscal year may be expended by any department during the 
succeeding fiscal year without new appropriation by County Council.  Any surplus in other funds of 
the County or any moneys accruing therefrom shall be retained and accounted for in such other fund 
or funds and shall be carried forward from year to year as fund balances in such funds.  
  
SECTION XXVI-TRANSFERRING OF FUNDS 
 

The Administrator may approve changes in a department budget from one line item to 
another in an amount up to and including $10,000 at any one time; provided, however, the total 
department budget shall not increase, no new positions may be created, or capital expenses, may 
be accomplished by such a transfer without County Council approval. No transfer for any one type 
of good or services may be subdivided, split or “stacked” for purposes of evading the requirements 
of this section.  



17 
 

Aggregate transfers within the fiscal year within a department which exceed $20,000 shall 
require County Council approval thereafter. All transfers shall be included in the “Administrator’s 
Report” section of the County Council agenda for Council’s review. 
 

 
 
SECTION XXVII-DISBURSEMENTS 
 
 The County Administrator, based on financial conditions and cash-flow considerations, shall 
determine the proper rate of disbursement of the above-enumerated appropriations during the fiscal 
year. Transfers from fund to fund in order to properly account for and manage County funds and 
appropriations in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards continue to be explicitly 
approved notwithstanding any other language of this Ordinance, subject always to the reporting 
requirements of this Ordinance. All out of state travel for official County government business shall 
be approved in advance by the County Administrator to include any lodging, registration fees or meals 
associated with the trip. The County Administrator and the County Treasurer are hereby granted 
authority to enter into agreements with the Anderson County Board of Education and the School 
Districts of Anderson County, consistent with this Ordinance, to make accelerated disbursements of 
Anderson County school tax receipts to the School Districts of Anderson County and to the Anderson 
County Board of Education.   
 
SECTION XXVIII-PAUPER BURIALS 
 
 Pauper burials shall be funded in the budget of the Coroner (5131) at the rate established by 
sealed bid. Documentation for each such burial will be maintained at the Coroner’s Office and, as 
further, the Coroner is hereby authorized to arrange for the disposition of deceased indigent persons 
in accordance with state law including, but not limited to, Title 32, Chapter 8 of the South Carolina 
Code of Laws (1976, as amended). 
 
SECTION XXIX-RETIREMENT OF AUTOMOTIVE  AND HEAVY EQUIPMENT 
 

 Unless otherwise directed by County Council, automotive and heavy equipment will be 
retired from service by any department receiving replacement equipment on a one for one basis as the 
replacement equipment is received.  Retired equipment will be appropriately evaluated for 
reassignment or disposition by the Public Works Division Director and the County Administrator for 
those departments under the director of the County Administrator and the Sheriff for those vehicles 
used by those departments reporting to this elected official. 
 
SECTION XXX-TAX ANTICIPATION NOTES 
 
 As permitted by Article X, Section 14, of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 
1895, as amended and Section 11-27-40, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, County 
Council is hereby empowered to authorize the issuance of tax anticipation notes in the aggregate 
principal amount of not exceeding $10,000,000 (the "TANS") in anticipation of the collection of taxes 
imposed and levied by this Ordinance.  The TANS may be issued at any time or from time to time 
during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022; shall be issued pursuant to a 
Resolution adopted by County Council; may be issued in bearer form or fully registered upon terms 
and conditions prescribed in such Resolution; shall be issued in the principal amounts, mature and 
bear interest as prescribed in such Resolution; may be sold by negotiated or public sale upon such 
terms and conditions as County Council prescribes in the Resolution. 



18 
 

 

SECTION XXXI-CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS 
 
 To the maximum extent authorized by and in accordance with law, and in accordance with 
County procurement policies, all Anderson County offices, including those of elected officials, are 
authorized to adopt and implement uniform procedures, through the County Central Administrative 
Services Division, to accept credit card payments for all payments due to the County or processed by 
County offices. 
 

SECTION XXXII-CREDIT CARD POLICY 
 

 All Anderson County credit card charges and purchases made utilizing an Anderson County 
credit card, to include purchasing cards, are to be reported to the Finance Office, and accompanied by 
a detailed receipt and a written report, the format of which is to be designed and determined by the 
County Administrator or his designee.  The written report shall contain sufficient detail to show who 
made the charge, what the charge was for, when the charge was made, where the charge was made, 
and why the charge was incurred.   Charges incurred for or associated with economic development 
projects must still be reported, as addressed above, and accompanied by the receipt and report 
described above, but may be reported by project codename, until such time as the project is publicly 
announced or finally terminated. 
 

SECTION XXXIII-GRANTS AND GRANT MATCHING FUNDS 
 
 The Anderson County Administrator, or his duly authorized representative, is hereby 
authorized to apply for all grants of any nature whatsoever where no County matching funds are 
required, or for those grants for which County matching funds are required when all necessary County 
matching funds have been made available by Anderson County Council through the annual Anderson 
County operating and capital budgets or are available in applicable County enterprise fund balances, 
for County Council authorized programs, institutions, and facilities of Anderson County, and to 
receive and expend such grant funds for the purposes authorized in the respective grant applications. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, County staff shall conduct an analysis identifying any recurring 
expense or monetary obligation for which the County may be responsible in the future where said 
expense or obligation will be payable from funding sources other than the grant being applied for. 
Any grant opportunity which involves such expenses or obligations shall require County Council 
approval prior to the submission of the grant application. 
 No funds appropriated by this Ordinance may be utilized as matching funds for any parks and 
recreation grant, including, without limitation, grants received from the South Carolina Department 
of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism, except for Anderson County Council District Recreation Funds 
appropriated hereby, except as otherwise provided herein. 
  

SECTION XXXIV-APPLICABLE CIVIC CENTER RATES 
 

 Rates as set forth on rate sheets as may be in effect during the fiscal year (subject to 
amendment) shall be applied by the Civic Center of Anderson for all rental contracts entered into 
between July 1, 2021 and June 30, 2022.  
 
SECTION XXXV-APPLICABLE ANIMAL SHELTER RATES 
 
 Rates as set forth on Animal Shelter rate sheets dated July 1, 2021 shall be applied by the 
Anderson County Animal Shelter for all services rendered between July 1, 2021 and June 30, 2022. 
 

SECTION XXXVI-APPLICABLE JUROR REIMBURSEMENT RATES 



19 
 

 

 There shall be paid unto the Grand Jurors in Circuit Court the sum of $20 per diem and Petit 
Jurors shall be paid the sum of $12 per diem. There shall be paid unto Jurors in Summary Court the 
sum of $10 per diem Jurors. In addition to the aforesaid sum, jurors shall be reimbursed twenty-five, 
$.25, cents per mile per day from their home to the Anderson County Courthouse for the term for 
which they are drawn to serve. These rates shall be effective for all services rendered between July 1, 
2021 and June 30, 2022. 
 

SECTION XXXVII-FUNDING OF E-911 SERVICES 
 

 In order to provide all citizens of Anderson County with the best emergency dispatch services 
available and to fund those services in the most effective, efficient manner possible, the County 
Administrator is hereby directed to utilize and apply the maximum E-9-1-1 tariff funds available by 
current South Carolina law to the County's E-9-1-1 system, in accordance with County procurement 
policies and state law. 
 

SECTION XXXVIII-ROAD ENCROACHMENT PERMITS 
 

The Anderson County Public Works Division is authorized to charge fees for encroachments 
on County roads and rights-of-way and for encroachment permits for such encroachments in 
accordance with an encroachment fee schedule prepared, from time to time, by the Anderson County 
Public Works Division, and approved by Anderson County Council by appropriate Council action. 
Such fees for encroachments on Anderson County roads and rights-of-way and for encroachment 
permits for such fees shall be sufficient to fully reimburse the County for all costs of supervising, 
inspecting, and repairing, as necessary, all damage to County roads and rights-of-way caused by such 
encroachments. 
 

SECTION XXXIX-FUND BALANCE POLICY 
 

 Maintenance of an adequate and appropriate fund balance is critical to an overall sound 
fiscal policy and practice of the County. Maintenance of such fund balance not only protects the 
County against emergencies and unexpected contingencies, it actually saves the County significant 
amounts of money, through less reliance on tax anticipation notes and through lower interest rates 
for borrowing money and issuing debt. A fund balance policy is looked upon favorably by rating 
agencies and investors. County Council, therefore, and hereby, establishes a policy that the County 
will maintain a general fund balance of approximately six (6) months of current budget 
expenditures, including operating transfers out, but not less than two (2) months of such 
expenditures. 
 

SECTION XXXX-REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION POLICY 
 

Anderson County is a participant in the Federal Community Development Block Grant 
Program for the purpose of undertaking various important community and economic development 
activities throughout the County. The Community Development Block Grant Program requires a 
reasonable accommodations policy for Section 504 regulations. Anderson County, acting by and 
through the Anderson County Council, desires to comply with all necessary Grant requirements. 
Anderson County, acting by and through the Anderson County Council, is hereby willing to make 
reasonable accommodations for the known physical or mental impairments of an otherwise 
qualified participant, applicant or employee, providing it does not cause undue financial or 
administrative burden on the County or cause a fundamental alteration of the County’s program. 
Anderson County Council hereby recognizes that the policy created hereunder includes 



20 
 

employees, applicants for employment, and the public when the public is involved in County 
activities. The Anderson County Administrator, for and on behalf of the County, is hereby 
authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary or appropriate in connection with this 
Policy. 

SECTION XXXXI-SMALL, WOMEN-OWNED AND MINORITY-OWNED BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISES 
 
 To promote free competition and equal opportunity, Anderson County is committed, within 
the parameters of the County procurement code, to assisting small, minority-owned and woman-
owned businesses in becoming active vendors with the County. Anderson County encourages and 
invites small, woman, and/or minority owned businesses located inside and outside of the County to 
participate in the County’s procurement process. It is the policy of the County to prohibit 
discrimination against any person or business in pursuit of procurement opportunities on the basis of 
race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, disability, political affiliation or gender. 
 
SECTION XXXXII-SOLICITOR CASE FACILITATOR 
 

Funding for the temporary Case Facilitator in the Solicitor’s Office is budgeted for an 
additional year and is intended to provide representation for Anderson County in the Magistrates 
Courts of Anderson County. This is a temporary position only. In order for this position to be 
considered in future budget years, the Solicitor’s Office must provide the Administrator with 
quarterly reports indicating the number of new cases referred each quarter, the number of court 
appearances each quarter, and a certification from the Solicitor that this position was only used for 
representation in Magistrate Court on Anderson County cases during the quarter. 

SECTION XXXXIII-SEVERABILITY 
 

 If any clause, phrase, sentence, paragraph, appropriation, or section of this Ordinance shall be 
held invalid for any reason, it shall not affect the validity of this Ordinance as a whole or the remaining 
clauses, phrases, sentences, paragraphs, appropriations, or sections hereof, which are hereby declared 
separable. 
 
SECTION XXXXIV-EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

 This Ordinance shall become effective and enforced from and after July 1, 2021. 



21 

ADOPTED in meeting duly assembled this 1st  day of June, 2021. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns   Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 

John Wright, Jr. District #1 Seth A. Riddley
Assistant Clerk to Council 

Vacant, District #2 

Ray Graham, District #3 

Brett Sanders, District #4 

Jimmy Davis, District #6 

M. Cindy Wilson, District #7
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading:  May 4, 2021 

Second Reading: May 18, 2021 

Third Reading:  June 1, 2021 

Public Hearing: May 18, 2021 



Ordinance #2021-032 
Page 1 of 3 

Jackson Circle 

 
Ordinance #2021-032 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 1.03 acres from R-20 (Single Family 
Residential) to R-D (Residential Duplex) on a parcel of land, identified as 
Jackson Circle in the Fork No. 1 Precinct shown in Deed Book 13059 page 
164. The parcel is further identified as part of TMS #46-00-02-002 (Lot 1-A & Lot 
2-A). 
 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from R-20 to R-D for +/- 1.03 acres of TMS #46-00-02-002 (Lot 1-A & 
Lot 2-A) described above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on April 14, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed rezoning 
from to R-20 to R-D +/- 1.03 acres of TMS #46-00-02-002 (Lot 1-A & Lot 2-A) 
described above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on June 1, 2021 regarding said amendment of the Anderson County Official 
Zoning Map:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



Ordinance #2021-032 
Page 2 of 3 

Jackson Circle 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from R-20 to R-D +/- 1.03 acres of 
TMS 46-00-02-002 (Lot 1-A & Lot 2-A) described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-032 
Page 3 of 3 

Jackson Circle 
 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2021-032 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Seth A. Riddley      
Interim Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading:      June 1, 2021 
 
2nd Reading:      June 15, 2021 
 
3rd Reading:  July 6, 2021 
 
Public Hearing:  June 1, 2021 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-033 
Page 1 of 3 

Jackson Circle 

 
Ordinance #2021-033 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 1.25 acres from R-20 (Single Family 
Residential) to R-D (Residential Duplex) on 2 parcels of land, identified as 
Jackson Circle in the Fork No. 1 Precinct shown in Deed Book 14195 page 
183. The parcels are further identified as TMS #46-00-03-026 & #46-00-03-027. 
 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from R-20 to R-D for +/- 1.25 acres of TMS #46-00-03-026 & #46-00-03-
027 described above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on April 14, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed rezoning 
from to R-20 to R-D +/- 1.25 acres of TMS #46-00-03-026 & #46-00-03-027 described 
above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on June 1, 2021 regarding said amendment of the Anderson County Official 
Zoning Map:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



Ordinance #2021-033 
Page 2 of 3 

Jackson Circle 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from R-20 to R-D +/- 1.25 acres of 
TMS #46-00-03-026 & #46-00-03-027 described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-033 
Page 3 of 3 

Jackson Circle 
 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2021-033 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Seth A. Riddley       
Interim Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading:      June 1, 2021 
 
2nd Reading:      June 15, 2021 
 
3rd Reading:  July 6, 2021 
 
Public Hearing:  June 1, 2021 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-034 
Page 1 of 3 

104 & 106 Chippewa Ln, Williamston 

 
Ordinance #2021-034 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 1.08 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial) 
to S-1 (Service District) on a parcel of land, identified as 104 & 106 Chippewa 
Ln in the Williamston Mill Precinct shown in Deed Book 14262 page 300. The 
parcel is further identified as TMS #220-06-01-003 & TMS #220-06-01-004. 
  
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from C-2 to S-1 for +/- 1.08 acres of TMS #220-06-01-003 & TMS #220-
06-01-004. described above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on April 14, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed rezoning 
from to C-2 to S-1 +/- 1.08 acres of TMS #220-06-01-003 & TMS #220-06-01-004. 
described above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on June 1, 2021 regarding said amendment of the Anderson County Official 
Zoning Map:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



Ordinance #2021-034 
Page 2 of 3 

104 & 106 Chippewa Ln, Williamston 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-2 to S-1 +/- 1.08 acres of 
TMS #220-06-01-003 & TMS #220-06-01-004. described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-034 
Page 3 of 3 

104 & 106 Chippewa Ln, Williamston 
 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2021-034 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Seth A. Riddley       
Interim Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading:      June 1, 2021 
 
2nd Reading:      June 15, 2021 
 
3rd Reading:  July 6, 2021 
 
Public Hearing:  June 1, 2021 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-035 
Page 1 of 3 

702 Belton Highway, Williamston 

 
Ordinance #2021-035 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 18.07 acres from PD (Planned 
Development) & R-20 (Single Family Residential) to R-A (Residential 
Agricultural) on 3 parcels of land, identified as 702 Belton Highway in the 
Williamston Mill Precinct shown in Deed Book 10154 page 39, Deed Book 
13038 page 54 & Deed Book 13038 page 50. The parcels are further identified 
as TMS #222-00-03-007, TMS #221-00-09-042 & TMS #221-00-09-043. 
 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from PD & R-20 to R-A for +/- 18.07 acres of TMS #222-00-03-007, TMS 
#221-00-09-042 & TMS #221-00-09-043. described above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on April 14, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed rezoning 
from to PD & R-20 to R-A +/- 18.07 acres of TMS #222-00-03-007, TMS #221-00-09-
042 & TMS #221-00-09-043. described above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on June 1, 2021 regarding said amendment of the Anderson County Official 
Zoning Map:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



Ordinance #2021-035 
Page 2 of 3 

702 Belton Highway, Williamston 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from PD & R-20 to R-A +/-18.07 
acres of TMS #222-00-03-007, TMS #221-00-09-042 & TMS #221-00-09-
043 described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-035 
Page 3 of 3 

702 Belton Highway, Williamston 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2021-035 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Seth A. Riddley       
Interim Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading:      June 1, 2021 
 
2nd Reading:      June 15, 2021 
 
3rd Reading:  July 6, 2021 
 
Public Hearing:  June 1, 2021 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  2021-028 
 

A RESOLUTION TO NAME SETH A. RIDDLEY AS ASSISTANT CLERK TO COUNTY 
COUNCIL TO SERVE DURING THE ABSENCE OF THE CLERK TO COUNCIL; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-36(3) of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, 

South Carolina the County Council may appoint and has appointed a person, not a member of the 

County Council, to serve as Clerk at the pleasure of County Council; and 

 WHEREAS, the County Council finds it advisable to name an Assistant Clerk to Council 

to serve during any absence of the Clerk to Council. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 

assembled that: 

 1. The County Council hereby names Seth A. Riddley to serve as Assistant Clerk to 

Council during any absence of the clerk to council. 

 2. All orders and resolutions in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict 

only, repealed and rescinded.   

 3. Should any part or portion of this resolution be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding shall not affect the 

remainder hereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable.  

 4. This resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon enactment.  

 RESOLVED this 1st day of June, 2021, in meeting duly assembled. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
              
Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   
    
       
Seth A. Riddley 
Assistant Clerk to County Council 











State of South Carolina
Office of the Secretary of State
The Honorable Mark Hammond

South Carolina Secretary of State, Division of Public Charities
1205 Pendleton Street, Suite 525, Columbia, SC 29201

Phone (803) 734-1790 Fax (803) 734-1604 Email: charities@sos.sc.gov www.sos.sc.gov

Jan 22, 2021

American Red Cross
David Hines
2424 CITY HALL LN
N CHARLESTON, SC 29406

RE: Exemption Confirmation Charity Public ID: C37953492

Dear David Hines :

This letter confirms that the Secretary of State's Office has received and accepted your Application for Exemption.
If you submitted your Application for Exemption using the Charities Online Filing System, this letter of
confirmation has been issued pending further review by Division of Public Charities staff.

The exemption for your charitable organization will expire on Nov 15, 2021. If any of the information on your
Application for Exemption form changes throughout the course of the year, please contact our office to make
updates. It is important that this information remain updated so that our office can keep you informed of any
changes that may affect your charitable organization. Additionally, if at any time your charitable organization no
longer qualifies for an exemption, the organization must immediately register with the Secretary of State's Office.
Please note that failure to comply with the registration provisions of the Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act may
result in fines of up to $2,000.00 for each separate violation.

If you have any questions or concerns, please visit our website at www.sos.sc.gov or contact our office using the
contact information below.

Sincerely,

Kimberly S. Wickersham
Director, Division of Public Charities



RESOLUTION R2021-026 

A RESOLUTION TO HONOR AND RECOGNIZE THE WHITEFIELD FIRE 
DEPARTMENT ON THE OCCASION OF ITS FIFTIETH ANNIVERSARY 

WHEREAS, at a moment’s notice, volunteer firefighters respond to uncertain and perilous 
situations to combat the threat of destructive fire in order to protect individuals, families, 
and the economic wellbeing of our community, following a long line of tradition and honor 
that inspires them to help others, neighbors and strangers alike; and 

WHEREAS, for fifty years, the Whitefield Fire Department has served the Whitefield 
community and all of Anderson County, covering more than twenty-five square miles and 
responding to hundreds of incidents each year with honor, self-sacrifice, and bravery; and 

WHEREAS, one recent instance of such bravery occurred on May 5, 2019 when Whitefield 
Fire dispatched to a residential fire with at 2063 Cheddar Road. Captain Chase Rapien 
arrived first on scene in his personal vehicle, and, after a neighbor reported two people were 
trapped inside, he entered the structure without protection of breathing device or hose, 
kicked in the front door, and brought an individual out of the front room to safety just as 
Firefighters Jacob Garrett and Daniel McCuen arrived on scene and entered the burning 
structure without protection of a hose line and located an unconscious individual, after 
which they were directed out of the house by Assistant Chief Bob Mosley from a nearby 
doorway where medical care was provided by Firefighters Chase Rapien, Bob Moley, Jacob 
Garrett, Daniel McCuen, Charlie King, Billy Guin, Adam Cromer, Landon Rogers, and 
Christopher McBee to give the victim, who later tragically  succumbed to his injuries, the 
best chance at survival until EMS arrived on scene.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby 
expresses its profound appreciation to the dedicated volunteer members of the Whitefield 
Fire Department, past and present, for their half-century of protecting and saving lives and 
property through great-sacrifice and diligent, heroic service to the Whitefield community 
and all of Anderson County. 

RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 1st day of June, 2021. 

 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY    ATTEST 
 
 
____________________     ____________________ 
M. Cindy Wilson      Rusty Burns 
County Council       County Administrator 
District Seven     
 
        ____________________ 
        Seth A. Riddley 

Assistant Clerk to Council 



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

MAY 4, 2021

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
SETH RIDDLEY
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - May 4, 2021
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:  At this time I’d like to
2 call the regular special presentation meeting at 6:00
3 at Anderson County Council to order.  I’d like to
4 welcome each and every one of you here tonight, and
5 thank y’all for coming.  
6 At this time we’ll get started with Resolution
7 2(a), R2021-023, Councilman Graham.
8 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
9 Mr. Chairman, I’d like to bring before you and
10 council Resolution 2021-023.
11 THIS IS A RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE AND HONOR THE
12 2021 CLASS 2A-1A STATE CHAMPION CRESCENT HIGH SCHOOL
13 WRESTLING TEAM; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.
14 WHEREAS, amateur wrestling represents the ultimate
15 synthesis of individual accomplishment and team
16 success; and,
17 WHEREAS, the 2021 Crescent High School wrestling
18 squad entered the season on a mission to claim its
19 first state team championship since 2006; and,
20 WHEREAS, under the leadership of first-year head
21 coach Austin Powell, the Crescent Tigers earned their
22 first appearance in the state dual-meet tournament
23 since 2016; and
24 WHEREAS, the Tigers stormed their way through the
25 tournament’s Upper State bracket, recording wins over
26 regional rivals Chesnee and Ninety-Six to set up a
27 confrontation with Bamberg-Ehrhardt, winners of the
28 last three Class 2A-1A team wrestling championships;
29 and,
30  WHEREAS, against long odds the Tigers battled their
31 way to glory, winning the state championship by a final
32 tally of 37-32; and,
33 WHEREAS, the Crescent Tigers were also well-
34 represented during individual meets for championships
35 in the various weigh classifications, having three
36 wrestlers earning state titles with one additional
37 second-place and four third-place finishers; and,
38 WHEREAS, individual state titles were won by Brady
39 Adams at 106 pounds, Kade Williams at 145 pounds, and
40 Cam Ellis at 160 pounds;
41 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson
42 County Council hereby congratulates the Crescent High
43 School wrestling team and coaching staff on their
44 outstanding team and individual accomplishments. We
45 thank Head Coach Austin Powell for his efforts to
46 represent our community with the pride, grit, and
47 determination for which School District Three is known.
48 We wish all of you great success in your future
49 endeavors, and we take pride of your achievements.
50 Mr. Chairman, let this be resolved in a meeting



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - May 4, 2021
3

1 duly assembled this 4th day of May, 2021.  I bring this
2 forth in a motion.
3 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a motion by Mr.
4 Graham.  Do we have a second.
5 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
6 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Ms. Wilson.  Any
7 discussion?
8 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman, I just want
9 to congratulate each one of the wrestlers.  I know this
10 is a true sport.  A lot of it is individual
11 competitions and then you come together as a team for
12 your state championship, as well.  But to see you guys
13 go this far and bring the state home, definitely
14 congratulate each and every one of you.  I know each
15 one of you have worked hard for this, along with the
16 coaches and parents.  I know it’s taken a lot of
17 dedication and commitment to continue to grow.  And you
18 definitely brought home the championship and definitely
19 want to congratulate you for that.
20 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Graham. 
21 Anyone else?  I think the whole council concurs with
22 that and congratulates y’all and appreciate y’all
23 representing Anderson County in an outstanding way. 
24 Hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
25 Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
26 unanimously.
27 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman, if we could
28 have the wrestlers, coaches, all you guys come down
29 front for a presentation.
30 APPLAUSE
31 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
32 FEMALE:   Okay.  So I have been a
33 part of the wrestling team since my freshman year.  I
34 have definitely been able to watch a lot of these guys
35 grow and it’s been very heartwarming to watch them and
36 the coaches grow and achieve this.  Last year we made
37 it to a few rounds through -- or playoffs.  So it’s
38 been a blessing to see these guys achieve that and work
39 hard every day at practice because we’re there every
40 day and we have watched them sweat their butts off and
41 work their tails off to get to where they are today. 
42 So I am very proud of them.
43 APPLAUSE
44 AUSTIN POWELL:   Hey, I’m Coach
45 Powell.  Sorry, I was hiding in the back.  Yeah, we
46 really -- we had a great year.  Some of the best guys
47 and girls we could have asked for.  Of course, this is
48 my first year as the head coach.  We did overcome great
49 odds.  Not just winning the state championship but
50 actually having a season at all.  That’s what I’ve told



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - May 4, 2021
4

1 people over and over again is that we were very blessed
2 just to even have that first match, let alone finish it
3 off the way we did.  
4 So yeah, hats off to family members that have
5 helped us, community members, Crescent High School, our
6 Superintendent Kathy Hipp, our Athletic Director Jeff
7 Craft, all the coaching staff, my mat cats, my
8 rustlers.  Because, yeah, couldn’t have done this
9 without all of them.
10 APPLAUSE
11 TOMMY DUNN:  This part of the meeting
12 will be over with.  We’ll commence the regular council
13 meeting at 6:30.  
14
15 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:08 P.M.)



5

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

MAY 4, 2021

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
SETH RIDDLEY



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
6

1 TOMMY DUNN:  At this time I’d like to
2 call the Anderson County Council meeting of May the 4th
3 regular meeting to order.  I’d like to welcome each and
4 every one of you here tonight.  Thank y’all for coming
5 and participating in your local government.
6 At this time I’d like to ask Councilman Jimmy Davis
7 if he would lead us in the invocation and pledge of
8 allegiance.  If we’d all rise, please.
9 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY JIMMY DAVIS
10 TOMMY DUNN:  At this time the chair
11 recognizes Ms. Wilson.  You asked for a minute, Ms.
12 Wilson.
13 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I
14 appreciate it.  We’ve very blessed to have tonight with
15 us a wonderful, highly valued citizen from District 7
16 who has played many roles, who has been a neuro
17 intensive care nurse, volunteer fire fighter, former
18 EMS Commissioner and an all around good neighbor in
19 that area.  
20 But tonight she is here in her role as a special
21 needs nurse advocating for her children for a water
22 park that will be of great benefit to them.  And I
23 wanted to ask Teresa Morgan, please, to stand, and all
24 the folks with her who would prefer that we had a water
25 park.  Thank you.
26 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Ms. Wilson.
27 Moving on to approval of minutes of April 20.  Do
28 we have a motion to accept or any changes to be made?
29 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
30 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson; second
31 Mr. Sanders.  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
32 Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
33 unanimously.
34 At this time we’ll have citizens comments.  Mr.
35 Harmon, our attorney, will call your name.  Please, for
36 the record state your name, your district you live in
37 and you’ve got three minutes.  And it’s only on agenda
38 items only on the first go around.
39 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one is
40 signed up to speak at this point.  There are a number
41 of citizens signed up to speak at the end of the
42 meeting.
43 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr.
44 Harmon.
45 Moving on to item number 5, bridge on Shackleburg
46 Road.  Mr. Burns.
47 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, as you know,
48 the bridge on Shackleburg has been out for sometime. 
49 It is almost completed.  We have received numerous
50 requests from citizens in that area to honor a family



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
7

1 who’s lived in that area really right on that spot for
2 over a hundred and thirty years.  And in order not to
3 reveal who that is at this time, we would request
4 permission -- I believe every member of council is
5 aware of that name.  If not it’s my fault that they
6 aren’t.  But we would do that at the unveiling and
7 reopening of that bridge.  And just request permission
8 from council to proceed.
9 TOMMY DUNN:  We need a motion to move
10 this forward.
11 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
12 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
13 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders and
14 second Mr. Davis.  Now discussion.  Mr. Sanders, I
15 believe it’s your district.
16 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, it is actually
17 what Mr. Burns just said. (Inaudible.)  
18 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Anyone else? 
19 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  Turn the
20 volume up just a little bit if y’all would.  Can y’all
21 turn the volume up just a little bit.
22 BRETT SANDERS:  I didn’t have my mic on. 
23 I’m sorry.  I’ve got it on now.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Well, good.  Again, all in
25 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
26 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
27 We’re going to move on to item number 6(a), 2021-
28 014, ordinance third reading, an Ordinance authorizing
29 the execution and delivery of an amendment to an
30 existing fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes agreement to
31 provide for changes to the legal description of the
32 project for a company now identified as Anderson Solar
33 Farms, LLC and previously known to the county as
34 Project Tarpon; the amendment of the county’s
35 multi-county industrial park agreement with Greenville
36 County, South Carolina; and other matters related
37 thereto.  
38 This will be third reading.  Mr. Nelson, you got
39 anything you want to add to this before we have the
40 public hearing?
41 BURRISS NELSON:  Well, sir, nothing other
42 than it’s just a name change.  Nothing changes about
43 the fee agreement or the fee payment being made to the
44 county.  It’s just a company bought out that particular
45 portion of that total project.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  Just a legal thing; right,
47 to get the name changes on legal papers.
48 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir, that’s right.
49 TOMMY DUNN:  At this time we’ll go into
50 a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to this



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
8

1 matter please step forward, state your name and
2 district.  Speak to the chair, please.  Anyone at all? 
3 Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will be
4 closed.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
5 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
6 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders; second
7 Ms. Wilson.  Now any discussion?  All in favor of the
8 motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the
9 motion carries unanimously.
10 Moving on again, Ordinance 6(b), third reading,
11 2021-018, an Ordinance authorizing the execution and
12 delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by
13 and among Anderson County, South Carolina, South City
14 Holdings, LLC and Brett R. Baumgarten as trustee of the
15 Baumgarten Family trust dated June 26, 2001, with
16 respect to certain economic development property in the
17 county, whereby such property will be subject to
18 certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the
19 provision of certain special source credits; and other
20 matters related thereto.  Project B-4 is what this one
21 is called.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
22 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
23 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Davis and second
24 Ms. Wilson.
25 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, we need to do
26 a public hearing on this.  
27 TOMMY DUNN:  That’s right.  I’m sorry.
28 LEON HARMON:  That rolled over to the
29 second page.
30 TOMMY DUNN:  I didn’t catch it.  My
31 fault.  Thank you for catching that.  We have a public
32 hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to this matter,
33 please step forward and state your name and district
34 and address the chair, please.  Anyone at all?  Seeing
35 and hearing none, the public hearing will be closed. 
36 We have a motion Mr. Davis and second Ms. Wilson.  Now
37 any discussion?  Hearing and seeing none, all in favor
38 of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show
39 the motion carries unanimously.
40 Moving on to item number (c), 6(c), 2021-020, an
41 Ordinance to amend Section 2-632 of the Code of
42 Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina so as to
43 establish the membership, meeting requirements, and
44 procedure of the purchasing review panel; and other
45 matters related thereto.
46 This will be a public hearing.  This is where we’re
47 changing doing the way to -- if you’ve got a grievance
48 to come forward on our purchasing.  We have not had --
49 this group hasn’t met since the twelve years I’ve been
50 on council.  So we’re tightening this up and changing



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
9

1 the make-up of this.  Anyone wishing to step forward on
2 this, please step forward and state your name and
3 district again, and address the chair.  Anyone at all? 
4 Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will be
5 closed.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
6 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders; second
8 Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  Hearing none, all in
9 favor of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign. 
10 Show the motion carries unanimously.  
11 Moving on to item number 6(d), 2021-021, an
12 Ordinance to amend section 10-63 of the Code of
13 Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, so as to
14 establish the membership meeting requirements, and
15 procedure of the construction board of adjustment and
16 appeals; and other matter related thereto.
17 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
18 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do we
20 have a second?
21 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
22 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  At
23 this time I make a motion to amend the motion to add
24 the part in there -- y’all got a copy of it -- add the
25 two licensees where we have licensed people on this. 
26 Do we have a second?
27 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
28 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Davis.  Now, any
29 discussion on the amendment?  Got to go to public
30 hearing.  I’m sorry.  This will be a public hearing on
31 this.  This again is a committee of appeals where if
32 anybody gets turned down by Building and Code
33 officials, this is their right to appeal it.  And that
34 board has not met neither in the twelve years I’ve been
35 on it and we’ve had some.  So this is bringing it up to
36 date and more modernizing it and putting people that’s
37 got licenses on this to hear what’s coming up and the
38 administrator -- I hope it’ll make it better and
39 quicker if we have to have this process.  So anyone
40 wishing to speak to this matter, please step forward
41 and state your name and district and address the chair,
42 please.  Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing none,
43 public hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion to
44 move this forward?
45 JOHN WRIGHT:  So moved.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Wright.  Do we
47 have a second?
48 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
49 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Ms. Wilson.  And I,
50 again, make a motion to amend this to include the



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
10

1 wording on our license holders, two licenses, and we
2 got a copy of that.  Do I have a second on my
3 amendment?
4 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
5 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Davis.  Now any
6 discussion on the amendment?  Seeing and hearing none,
7 all in favor of the amendment, show of hands.  Show the
8 motion carries unanimously. 
9 Now we’ll be moving on to the main motion.  Are
10 there any discussion on it?  Hearing and seeing none,
11 all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
12 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
13 Moving on to item number 6(e), 2021-022, an
14 Ordinance to amend section 30-81, 30-82, and 30-83 of
15 the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina
16 so as to dissolve the emergency medical services
17 advisory committee by deleting these sections of the
18 Code of Ordinances and reserving these sections for
19 future use; and other matters related thereto.
20 Going to a public hearing on this.  And this is
21 just dissolving a committee that doesn’t meet any more,
22 we don’t need.  We’ve got a Public Safety Committee of
23 the council that handles these now and been doing an
24 outstanding job.  We’ll go into a public hearing. 
25 Anyone wishing to speak to this matter now, please step
26 forward and state your name and district and address
27 the chair, please.  Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing
28 none, public hearing will be closed.  Do we have a
29 motion to move this forward?
30 JIMMY DAVIS:  I so moved.
31 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Graham; second
32 Mr. Davis.  Now any discussion?
33 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, I just want to
34 thank Mr. Sanders for going through all of these and
35 cleaning up some of this old business and getting some
36 of this stuff kind of straightened out and more
37 simplified.  Thank you.
38 TOMMY DUNN:  Couldn’t agree more.
39 CINDY WILSON:  May I, Mr. Chairman?
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
41 CINDY WILSON:  Just a big thank you to the
42 EMS Commission that went through a lot of turmoil as we
43 adjusted to the change in requirements statewide,
44 nationally, and how it impacted our EMS squads here in
45 the county.  That was an incredible undertaking and Mr.
46 Graham has been very good to help in getting things
47 sorted out.  And I think there’s a request for
48 proposals now going out.  So it’s a constantly changing
49 area.  But we have a lot of good folks like Ms. Morgan
50 who worked hard on that.  Thank you.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
11

1 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, ma’am.  I agree.
2 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman?
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Graham.
4 RAY GRAHAM:  I just want to -- with Ms.
5 Morgan being here tonight, she has served on that
6 committee for quite sometime.  And anyone that has been
7 involved in the EMS system in Anderson County, we have
8 came so far.  We had a great program back in the day of
9 volunteer rescue squad systems.  But it’s just like
10 everything else, time restraints, training
11 requirements, commitments, it just -- we had to make
12 change and move with the change to make our system
13 better.  We have made great strides in our EMS system. 
14 I will be the first to say we still have got a ways to
15 go.  We continue to make changes regularly to improve
16 our system.  But just the members that have served on
17 that committee for so long, it was a very valuable
18 committee back in the day.  It’s just with the change
19 of times and the way things are going with the system,
20 it just -- it wasn’t needed any more.  But definitely
21 we continue, hopefully, to grow the program and move
22 the EMS system forward to basically better protect the
23 citizens of Anderson County.  Thank you.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Graham. 
25 Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
26 Opposed like sign.  So the motion carries unanimously.
27 Moving on to item number 6(f), 2021-024, an
28 Ordinance to approve the Ground Lease Agreement between
29 Anderson County, South Carolina and TCTC Research
30 Foundation, LLC for location of an asphalt research and
31 laboratory at 1428 Pearman Dairy Road Facility owned by
32 Anderson County; and other matters related thereto. 
33 This is the old TTI building.  This will be a public
34 hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to this matter,
35 please step forward and state your name and district
36 and address the chair, please.  Anyone at all?  Seeing
37 and hearing none, the public hearing will be closed. 
38 Do we have a motion?
39 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders.  Do we
41 have a second?  Second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion? 
42 Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of the motion
43 show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion
44 carries unanimously.
45 Moving on now to item number 6(g), 2021-025, an
46 Ordinance to approve a governmental real estate lease
47 between Anderson County, South Carolina and Tri-County
48 Technical College Enterprise Campus Authority for a
49 portion of the building located at 1428 Pearman Dairy
50 Road for an Enterprise Campus; and other matters



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
12

1 related thereto.  This, again, will be the old TTI
2 building.
3 This will be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to
4 speak to this matter, please step forward, state your
5 name and district and address the chair, please. 
6 Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public
7 hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion to move
8 this forward?
9 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
10 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Davis; second
11 Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing none,
12 all in favor of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like
13 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
14 Now we’re moving on to item number 7(a), second
15 readings, 2021-021 (verbatim), an Ordinance authorizing
16 the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax
17 agreement by and between Anderson county, South
18 Carolina and a company known to the county at this time
19 as [Project Greenlight] with respect to certain
20 economic development property in the county, whereby
21 such property will be subject to certain payments in
22 lieu of taxes, including the provision of certain
23 special source credits; and other matters related
24 thereto.  Mr. Nelson, would you like to speak to this
25 matter?
26 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman,
27 members of council.  This is an economic development
28 project investing 8.6 million dollars, creating twenty-
29 seven jobs, with an average pay of twenty-eight dollars
30 and forty-six cents an hour, unburdened, with health
31 benefits and retirement, in addition to that.  Annual
32 payroll 1.5 million.  Taxes on this property paid last
33 year were twenty-five thousand.  Anticipated projected
34 taxes in 2022 are eighty-four thousand dollars a year. 
35 And over thirty years 4.4 million in total property
36 tax.  
37 And Mr. Chairman, as requested on each one of these
38 documents the breakdown of all the property taxes
39 behind each one of these, even the ones we’ve passed
40 already, so that you can see the amount from the
41 county, the schools and the multi-county park
42 contribution.  
43 This comes to council as a recommendation from
44 staff and the Economic Development Advisory board. 
45 Thank you, sir.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  If I said 021,
47 I meant 2021-026.  Any more discussion?
48 BRETT SANDERS:  Mr. Chairman, I’d like to
49 thank Mr. Burriss and his department for the way he’s
50 got these done now.  



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
13

1 TOMMY DUNN:  Yeah.
2 BRETT SANDERS:  I know it’s more work, but
3 I like the way it’s done with the fees and the taxes
4 broken down and tabbed out.  So thank you for that.
5 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes.  Appreciate it.
6 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.  
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Anyone else?  All in favor
8 of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show
9 the motion carries unanimously.
10 Moving on now to item number 7(b), second reading, 
11 2021-029, an Ordinance authorizing pursuant to title
12 12, chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina
13 1976, as amended, the execution and delivery of one or
14 more incentive agreements, by and between Anderson
15 County, South Carolina and Project Mullet, as sponsor,
16 and one or more existing or to-be-formed or acquired
17 subsidiaries, or affiliated or related entities and
18 certain sponsor affiliates, to provide for a
19 fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes incentive and certain
20 special source revenue credits; authorizing the
21 expansion of the boundaries of a multi county park to
22 include the project; to enter into any other necessary
23 agreements with the sponsor to effect the intent of
24 this ordinance; and other matters related thereto.
25 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
26 BRETT SANDERS:  So move.
27 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
28 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders; second
29 Mr. Graham.  Now discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
30 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
31 This is a solar project, a little over six hundred
32 acres of solar array, sixty-eight million dollars in
33 total capital investment.  Will be paying property tax
34 each year totaling -- well, current the property paid
35 about twenty-seven hundred dollars last year in
36 property tax.  In the 2021 projected will be almost two
37 hundred and seventy thousand dollars a year in total
38 property tax.  And over forty years, 10.7 million in
39 total property tax.  And of course, the breakdown for
40 the schools, the county and the multi-county park are
41 listed there.  This comes to council as a
42 recommendation from staff and from the Economic
43 Development Advisory Board.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Nelson. 
45 Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
46 Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
47 unanimously.
48 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank y’all so much for
49 your support.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Appreciate the job you and



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
14

1 your staff do, Mr. Nelson.
2 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir, thank you.
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Moving on to item number
4 8(a), ordinance first reading, 2021-030, an Ordinance
5 to adopt the operating and capital budgets of Anderson
6 County for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, and
7 ending June 30, 2022.  Mr. Sanders is Chairman of the
8 Finance Committee.  Do you want to ...
9 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, this was
10 basically to keep us on time.  Ms. Rita Davis is not
11 here.  We’ve got our books and are working diligently
12 now.  There will be two more -- two or more Finance
13 Committee meetings coming up.  But in order to have the
14 budget done in a timely fashion, we need to pass this
15 in title only today so we can have it completed by June
16 1st.
17 TOMMY DUNN:  Do you make this in the
18 form of a motion?
19 BRETT SANDERS:  I’ll put that in the form
20 of a motion, sir.
21 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a second?
22 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Graham.  Now
24 discussion.  I just want to go -- we’ve got our budget
25 books and I know we’re doing this in title only.  But
26 the budget we have is a balanced budget; right?
27 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.
28 TOMMY DUNN:  No tax increases; right?
29 BRETT SANDERS:  No, sir.  We’re just
30 tweaking some final things.  And I think some of the
31 members on the Finance Committee had some questions
32 they wanted answered and we’ll take care of that in the
33 next Finance Committee meeting.  But right now
34 everything looks good.  And I’m happy to say no tax
35 increase and the budget is balanced as of right now,
36 sir.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  And all council members are
38 welcomed to come to the meeting and all ---
39 BRETT SANDERS:  Council members ---
40 TOMMY DUNN:  --- citizens can come to
41 this?
42 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir. 
43 TOMMY DUNN:  Any more discussion? 
44 Seeing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
45 Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
46 unanimously.
47 Moving on to item number 8(b), 2021-031, an
48 Ordinance to amend Section 38-353 of the Code of
49 Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina so as to
50 amend Section 38-353 (a) and add a new Section 38-353



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
15

1 (d) regarding private road standards; and other matters
2 related thereto.  Councilman Davis.
3 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  This
4 is -- basically this came out of our flag lot ordinance
5 where we updated the language with that.  And this
6 ordinance, once passed, will give property owners in
7 Anderson County more options to do with their property. 
8 It’ll give them the freedom to be able to develop their
9 property for themselves or their family without having
10 to go through the expensive process of going and
11 working with a track home type developer.  So this is
12 something that’s good for Anderson County.  It’s good
13 for the landowners of Anderson County.  And I’m excited
14 to see it.  And the reason it’s on first reading
15 tonight is we changed the section that the Code of
16 Ordinances was going on.  So Mr. Harmon just thought it
17 best we pull it back to first reading.  So we’ll have
18 two more readings on this.  But I’m excited for this
19 opportunity.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
20 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Put that in the
21 form of a motion, Mr. Davis?
22 JIMMY DAVIS:  I make that in the form of
23 a motion.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Do we have a second?
25 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
26 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  Now
27 any discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor
28 of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show
29 the motion carries unanimously.  
30 Item number 9.  There are no resolutions.  
31 And we go on to item number 10, bid approvals. 
32 This will be the PAWS Dog Park construction.  Ms.
33 Davis.
34 BRETT SANDERS:  Oh, there’s Ms. Davis.  I
35 didn’t see you hiding back there.  Sorry I said you
36 weren’t here.  You’re always here.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  She wasn’t going to come up
38 till the budget passed.
39 RITA DAVIS:  Yes, sir.  We’ve asking
40 council’s permission to award the dog park to Sterling
41 Construction Company LLC.  The bid was sent out to
42 thirty-four vendors.  Only two responded.  And we’re
43 only asking for the base price (inaudible).  We’re
44 thankful Abney gave a hundred and fifty-two thousand. 
45 We’ve got other donations of almost a hundred and
46 twenty-nine thousand.  And our capital projects
47 (inaudible) ninety-one thousand.  So it’s in the budget
48 coming before council getting your permission
49 (inaudible).
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Do we have a motion to move



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
16

1 this forward?
2 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
3 RITA DAVIS:  Motion Mr. Sanders.  Have a
4 second?
5 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
6 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Ms. Wilson.  Now
7 discussion?
8 BRETT SANDERS:  I would like ---
9 TOMMY DUNN:  Go ahead.
10 BRETT SANDERS:  --- to say something, Mr.
11 Chairman.  I do know that Ms. Wilson, I think, and I
12 discussed this.  But there was a lot of the work that
13 was done out there by county employees already, getting
14 it to the stage that it is now.  And it’s to the point
15 to where we have to have professionals come out there. 
16 But I checked and that was what that was, Ms. Wilson.
17 TOMMY DUNN:  I just want to tag along
18 with you for just a second.  We have had the county out
19 there -- county Roads and Bridges Department out there
20 and done a great amount of work.  And take no offense,
21 they are professionals and they’ve done an outstanding
22 job.  They just due to rain and other things, they get
23 behind on regular roads and ditches stuff and other
24 things.  To get them back doing the stuff for the
25 citizens, we put this out.  And like I said, we’ve very
26 thankful to the Abney Foundation and very thankful of
27 other folks who donated the money to make this happen. 
28 And I appreciate Dr. Sanders out there and her staff
29 for what they’re doing.  This will be a great asset to
30 the animal shelter, I think.  Anyone else?  All in
31 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
32 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
33 Moving on to item number (b), approval of airport
34 engineering firm.
35 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, we have
36 received requests for proposals from airport
37 engineering firms.  Our group narrowed it down to two. 
38 We did this in accordance with FAA regulations.  And
39 the final recommendation is for Holt Engineering out of
40 Columbia, South Carolina.
41 TOMMY DUNN:  Do we have a motion?
42 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
43 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders; and
44 second by Mr. Davis.  Now discussion.
45 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  Go ahead, Mr. Sanders.
47 BRETT SANDERS:  We had a lot of great
48 engineering firms reach out and respond.  I’m
49 personally happy to see that Holt Consulting was
50 chosen.  Their entire focus is strictly on airports and



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
17

1 they’re not into other things.  So I think that focus
2 will help us do a lot more things out at the airport
3 and get us a lot more funding.  So thank you.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Sanders. 
5 It’s my understanding they come highly recommended, I
6 think.  And I also think it’s time their services is
7 needed because some stuff’s coming up; some grants and
8 what not.  Very thankful for that and getting that
9 going and get that money coming to Anderson County. 
10 Any more discussion?  All in favor of the motion show
11 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
12 carries unanimously.
13 Moving on to item number 10(c), Anderson County
14 transportation number 116 resurfacing project.
15 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, in your
16 agenda books you will notice that we have a
17 recommendation from the Anderson County Transportation
18 Committee on county roads valued at one million four
19 hundred fifty-nine thousand three hundred and forty-
20 nine dollars.  The roads to be paved are attached.  If
21 council approves this, they will begin shortly to begin
22 this paving because we’ve getting into paving weather.
23 TOMMY DUNN:  Do we have a motion to move
24 this forward?  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do we have a second?
25 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
26 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  Now
27 any discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of
28 hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
29 unanimously.
30 Now moving on to item number 11, report from the
31 Finance Committee meeting held on April 29, 2021. 
32 Chairman Sanders.
33 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
34 At the Finance Committee meeting we had Mr. Glenn Brill
35 come in, Director of our Parks, Recreation and Tourism
36 and brought to our attention our short term rentals,
37 VRBOs and things of that nature.  I don’t feel that --
38 there’s a lot of people that’s paying a state version,
39 but they’re not aware that there’s also a county
40 accommodations fee, as well.  I don’t think anyone is
41 trying to get out of those, but just on the research
42 alone that Mr. Brill done, it’s the equivalent of eight
43 hotels not paying the accommodations fee, which every
44 one knows that goes into a special revenue fund to be
45 used for capital projects to support tourism and
46 tourism services here in the county.  I’m putting in
47 the form of a motion, it came unanimously from the
48 Finance Committee, to allow them to send out a RFP to
49 seek out companies to do further research and manage
50 those operations.  Put that in the form of a motion,



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
18

1 sir.
2 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a motion.  Coming
3 from the Finance Committee it doesn’t need a second. 
4 Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor
5 of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
6 Show the motion carries unanimously.
7 Moving on to item number 4, Mr. Chairman.
8 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.  The second thing
9 was the Sheriff’s Department had came out and they’re
10 looking to purchase Vitra 300 Law Enforcement Simulator
11 that is a de-escalation tool that is pretty -- I mean
12 it is like a real scenario.  I think with what’s going
13 on in the nation, that we’re going to see other
14 counties and things and departments probably make
15 something of this nature mandatory.  The money for this
16 is coming out of the Sheriff’s Department’s seizure
17 funds budget and the sale of old guns.  I think it will
18 be beneficial to the citizens of Anderson County and to
19 the Sheriff’s Department.  They also said that the city
20 of Anderson and other local municipalities are welcomed
21 to use it, as well.  And this comes as an approval from
22 the Finance Committee unanimously.  And I would like to
23 put that in the form of a motion, sir.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a motion.  Again,
25 coming from the Finance Committee, it doesn’t need a
26 second.  Any discussion?
27 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman?
28 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Graham.
29 RAY GRAHAM:  Just want to tag along on
30 that.  I actually looked a little bit more into this
31 simulator and kind of dug into it a little bit on my
32 own because there was definitely a great interest when
33 the Sheriff’s Department brought this up.  This is an
34 awesome program.  I truly think it can be a game
35 changer for our law enforcement in Anderson County. 
36 And you know, as Chairman stated, it also is going to
37 be open to the municipalities.  
38 And with what’s going on in our nation today, you
39 literally -- coming from law enforcement, you’ve got
40 officers that they’re almost fearful to make a
41 decision.  And when I say that, because they’re wanting
42 to make the right decision, but sometimes with some of
43 these new officers, due to lack of training, lack of
44 experience, the pressure from the media and everything
45 else we’ve got going on, we literally are putting our
46 law enforcement’s lives in danger.  And this here, it’s
47 not a system to train an officer to shoot.  It’s a
48 system to train the officer to make the right decision
49 on how to de-escalate a situation, how to actually in
50 the event that it is a choice where an engagement has



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
19

1 to be made, it’s to teach them to do it the proper way,
2 the safe way; not only for them but also for the
3 citizens.  The scenarios, it’s just -- there’s not even
4 a limit on what can be done with these scenarios.  So I
5 mean to see this forward thinking from our agency
6 that’s going to benefit our guys and gals from Anderson
7 County and again from the municipalities, I definitely
8 commend the Sheriff’s Department for taking this step. 
9 I think it truly is a great step in moving to ensure
10 the safety of our officers, but also the safety of our
11 citizens.  Because every one of them is important.  And
12 I mean there’s so many different scenarios out there,
13 anything from some -- if there’s a situation from
14 mental health or whatever, it can train them on
15 situations on how to de-escalate that.  I mean it’s
16 just numerous activities that they can truly train on
17 and get better at as times goes, which will better
18 prepare them to protect our county.  
19 So definitely glad to see this come through and
20 definitely excited to see what happens with it.  
21 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
22 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Graham. 
23 Anyone else?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of
24 the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the
25 motion carries unanimously.
26 Moving on to item number 12, road acceptance into
27 the county inventory.  Bronson Ridge Subdivision Phase
28 2 ---
29 BRETT SANDERS:  Excuse me, Mr. Chairman. 
30 Transfers.
31 TOMMY DUNN:  I’m sorry.  Yeah,
32 transfers.  I was trying to get out of that.
33 BRETT SANDERS:  I know Ms. Davis cringed
34 back there.
35 TOMMY DUNN:  I know she didn’t what you
36 call it.
37 BRETT SANDERS:  To just make it brief,
38 there were some transfers from different departments,
39 some money to go out to fund some retirement. 
40 Basically just bookkeeping, so to speak.  And we went
41 through those and came from the Finance Committee as
42 unanimous approval.  And I put that in the form of a
43 motion before council, sir.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a motion.  Again,
45 coming from the Finance Committee, it doesn’t need a
46 second.  Open the floor up for discussion now.  Mr.
47 Sanders, Chairman, this is all without our budget, it
48 was just putting it in the right columns.
49 BRETT SANDERS:  Oh, yeah, it’s just putting
50 it in the right -- yes, sir.  I’m sorry.  And Ms. Davis



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
20

1 is here if anyone has any questions to elaborate on.
2 TOMMY DUNN:  Anyone else?  All in favor
3 of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
4 Show the motion carries unanimously.
5 Now moving on to item number 6.  Is there anything
6 to add to that, Mr. Chairman?
7 BRETT SANDERS:  No, sir, other than at the
8 present time when we started out, there was a millage
9 increase in there.  I thank the Finance Committee for
10 working hard.  I thank the Finance Department for what
11 we’ve got done now to have a budget with no tax
12 increase that’s balanced and still providing quality
13 services for the citizens of Anderson County, sir. 
14 Thank you.
15 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  
16 Now we’re moving on to item number 12, road
17 acceptance into the county inventory.  Bronson Ridge
18 Subdivision Phase 2.  If no one has a problem with
19 this, we’ll take all of these at one time.  Be Bronson
20 Ridge, Greer Farm Lane and Fairfield Street.  Do I have
21 a motion to move this forward?  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do
22 we have a second?
23 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Wright.  Now
25 discussion?
26 CINDY WILSON:  May I have a quick comment?
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
28 CINDY WILSON:  This is a development that
29 is literally across the street from Hanna High School. 
30 And I don’t get there early in the mornings and late in
31 the evenings like I used to, but I still have concerns
32 remaining about the traffic from the development and
33 the traffic from the school and thoroughfare traffic
34 there all being able to get in and out safely.  I hope
35 we’re now in the position to have the requirements of
36 the accel, decel and turn lanes where we have this
37 congestion.  Thank you.
38 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Ms. Wilson.  
39 Mr. Burns, all this meets all our ---
40 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.
41 TOMMY DUNN:  --- county criteria to move
42 this forward?  Any more discussion?  All in favor of
43 the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the
44 motion carries unanimously.
45 Mr. Burns, could I get you at some point to maybe
46 talk to the City Manager and see if we couldn’t have
47 maybe a little committee or however y’all want to do
48 this, of workshops for council members or you and him
49 and a couple council or all council, however you want
50 to do it.  That’s a growing area out in there.  And we



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
21

1 all know it’s prime ripe for annexation.  We ain’t
2 going to have trouble.  I’d like to make sure we’re all
3 on the same page about this traffic problem.  Because
4 it’s only going to get worse if we don’t get ahead of
5 it.
6 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  If we can work together on
8 this and not be butting heads.
9 RUSTY BURNS:  Got you.  Yes, sir, I’ll
10 set it up.
11 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Thank you.
12 CINDY WILSON:  Mr. Chairman, may I add
13 that we’ve already had a near fatality right in that
14 area, a pedestrian.
15 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, ma’am, we have.
16 CINDY WILSON:  And the city is annexing
17 about -- enough property, they’re planning to put about
18 six hundred houses.
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, ma’am.  And they’re,
20 I’m sure, looking at some more.  We need to get ahead
21 of this.  And I appreciate you.
22 Now requests from council members.  Mr. Davis.
23 BRETT SANDERS:  Appointments.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  I’m sorry.  Mr. Wright has
25 got an appointment.
26 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.  Thank you, Mr.
27 Chairman.
28 TOMMY DUNN:  I had marked through that. 
29 I’m getting ahead of myself.  Go ahead, Mr. Wright. 
30 I’m sorry.  Library board.
31 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir, after years of
32 service Ms. Rosalyn Silverstein has resigned her
33 position as the District 1 Library Board appointment. 
34 And this evening I’d like to put in the form of a
35 motion to nominate Ms. Elaine Stoll.  She’s been a
36 member of the Friends of the Library for several years,
37 giving both her time and money to the library.  I think
38 she’ll be a great addition to the Library Board, and
39 I’d like to make a motion that she be the appointment
40 for District 1.
41 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
42 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a motion Mr. Wright
43 and second Mr. Graham.  Any discussion?  Hearing and
44 seeing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
45 Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
46 unanimously.
47 Mr. Burns, I know we’ve got a new librarian.
48 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir, and she wants ---
49 TOMMY DUNN:  She needs to come to the
50 council meeting or us come out there.  We want to



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
22

1 congratulate her and we also want to thank Ms. Line for
2 the job she’s done for many years for Anderson County.
3 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Now request by council
5 members.  Mr. Davis.
6 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I
7 just have one from the District 6 recreation account, I
8 would like to appropriate two thousand five hundred
9 dollars to the Powdersville YMCA Y Mentor Program. 
10 This allows them to have mentors for kids that don’t
11 necessarily have someone to mentor them in life.  So I
12 would like to make that in the form of a motion.
13 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a motion Mr. Davis;
14 second Mr. Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of
15 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
16 the motion carries unanimously.
17 Mr. Burns, would you like to comment on 14(a)?
18 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir, on 14(a), that is
19 Welfare Baptist Church, but it’s not the church, it’s
20 the non-profit associated with the church because we
21 cannot give money to churches.  But this church has
22 participated with us on food distribution drives. 
23 They’ve made their place available.  Now they’re going
24 to become a COVID vaccination center and it’s
25 desperately needed.  And we just want to assist them
26 with some financial assistance to allow them to do
27 this.  And the request is twenty-one hundred dollars.
28 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Wanted to get that
29 out there.  Mr. Sanders.
30 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman.  I
31 would like that we go down and come back to me.  I’ve
32 talked with Mr. Burns about Welfare, I think it’s a
33 good project.  I know we’re doing them at the Civic
34 Center.  With the fair coming in town, we’re not going
35 to be able to vaccinate.  They need a total of twenty-
36 one hundred and I would like to make up the difference
37 from what any other council member would be willing to
38 give.  So if you could ---
39 TOMMY DUNN:  We’ll come back to you. 
40 Mr. Graham.
41 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
42 I’d like to do three hundred dollars to Generation 4
43 COVID-19; three hundred dollars to Anderson Jets Track
44 Club; Starr Athletic Association, we actually done that
45 last meeting; right?
46 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir, we did.
47 RAY GRAHAM:  So that’ll be all I
48 request.  I bring that in the form of a motion.
49 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a motion by Mr.
50 Graham; second by Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
23

1 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
2 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
3 Mr. Wright.
4 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.  Thank you, Mr.
5 Chairman.  I would like to appropriate three hundred
6 dollars for -- are we doing 14(a) and (b), Mr.
7 Chairman?
8 TOMMY DUNN:  Yep.
9 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.  Three hundred
10 dollars from the District 1 recreational fund for the
11 General 4 Covid-19 and the Anderson Jets Track Club, as
12 well.
13 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
14 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Wright; second
15 Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
16 motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the
17 motion carries unanimously.
18 Ms. Wilson.
19 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
20 District 7 is nearing the end of funds in our little
21 till.  May we appropriate two hundred dollars for the
22 Anderson Jet’s Track team.  And that’s in the form of a 
23 motion.  Thank you.
24 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
25 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson; second
26 by Mr. Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
27 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
28 motion carries unanimously.
29 TOMMY DUNN:  Out of District 5's special
30 appropriations account appropriate three hundred
31 dollars for the Jet’s Track Club.  And I think that
32 leaves fifteen hundred dollars for the COVID?
33 BRETT SANDERS:  Correct.
34 TOMMY DUNN:  I’ll split the difference
35 with you, Mr. Sanders, and I’ll do seven fifty for
36 that.
37 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, sir.
38 TOMMY DUNN:  Put that in the form of a
39 motion
40 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
41 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Wright.  Any
42 discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
43 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
44 unanimously. 
45 Moving on, Mr. Sanders.
46 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, I would like to
47 put in the form of a motion the balance of seven fifty
48 for Generation 4, and I’d also like to do three hundred
49 to the Anderson Jet’s Track Club, sir.  Put that in the
50 form of a motion.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
24

1 TOMMY DUNN:  Second by Ms. Wilson;
2 motion Mr. Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in favor of
3 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
4 the motion carries unanimously.
5 Anything else?  
6 Moving on to administrator’s report.  Mr. Burns.
7 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this time, Mr.
8 Chairman.
9 TOMMY DUNN:  Moving on to citizens
10 comments.  When Mr. Harmon calls your name, please step
11 forward, state your name and district for the record
12 and address the chair.  And you’ve got three minutes.
13 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, first speaker
14 is Teresa Morgan.
15 TERESA MORGAN:  Hello.  My name is Teresa
16 Locke Morgan.  Karen, could you please come up here? 
17 And Nicole, could you please come with me?  I want to
18 stand together united as women that are taking up for
19 children and special needs people in this county and
20 people that don’t -- they can’t stand up for
21 themselves.  Karen, please introduce yourself.
22 KAREN ELAINE MCCULLOUGH:   Karen Elaine
23 McCullough, President of the Lake Hartwell Development
24 Group.
25 NICOLE MACHESKA:    I’m Nicole Macheska and
26 I’m an Early Interventionist for all of Anderson
27 County.
28 TERESA MORGAN:     This woman helps me help
29 children to get better in this county with special
30 needs.  This woman is going to help us allow these
31 children and these special needs people that absolutely
32 have a good life to go out and enjoy our lake.  And I
33 pray, because I’ve been sitting here looking In God We
34 Trust, we all trust in God together, and we want this
35 to happen for our children.  So together we stand for
36 the children that can’t stand for themselves.  
37 Thank you.
38 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Harmon.
39 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Karen
40 Elaine McCullough.
41 KAREN ELAINE MCCULLOUGH:   I want to thank the
42 county council here represented today, the
43 administrator, economic development group and the
44 chairman.  I appreciate you guys for allowing our group
45 to partner with Anderson County and the Army Corp of
46 Engineers to bring great recreation to Anderson County. 
47 You have done a fine job bringing in commerce and
48 development and industry to this county.  And I really
49 appreciate you guys believing in us to bring
50 recreation.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
25

1 I know our park was scheduled to be put at Asbury
2 this year.  With rain delays, utility underground
3 delays, Corp of Engineers coming in and taking out
4 diseased pine trees and now us left with the cleanup --
5 it looks like a bomb went off -- that’s put us with an
6 eight-month behind delay.  
7 Anderson County needs recreation this year.  We get
8 hundreds of calls every week.  Please put the water
9 park in.  If you don’t get the rest of the project put
10 up, please put the water park in.  
11 We have a park by the name of River Forks located
12 with amenities that we can allow our floating water
13 park, which is four hundred ninety-seven thousand
14 dollars sitting in a storage unit right now not being
15 used.  A water park is only good during summer months. 
16 So this project was derailed or put off the county
17 council board a couple of weeks ago.  And I understand
18 that we need to have public acknowledgment of that, but
19 I’m asking the county council to set a public date so
20 that this can come before the board and be voted on so
21 that we can put the water park up at River Forks for
22 this season.  It is a floating water park.  It can be
23 stuck in the water and then removed.  It can actually
24 be undone from the anchors and removed in less than
25 thirty minutes.  And we came up with an operation and
26 submitted that today of how the operations for this
27 park will work.  We’ve submitted traffic flow.  We’ve
28 submitted pricing for people that are saying that it
29 may not be feasible for everyone to use.  We have
30 submitted very reasonable pricing for that to happen.  
31 So I’m asking county council to please bind with us
32 and allow us to put the water park in at River Forks
33 this season.  Thank you.
34 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
35 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Ted
36 Wentzky.
37 TED WENTZKY:  Ted Wentzky, District 5.
38 Mr. Chairman, I want to just recommend that as the
39 last time we talked that you ensured us we would have a
40 public meeting before anything was done on this park. 
41 I hope that you will follow up with your words and
42 promises on this.
43 I live on River Forks Road.  I have a farm on River
44 Forks Road.  I have cows.  I have grandchildren that
45 play.  As of last Sunday, I did a little survey of my
46 own.  Between the hours of two and three o’clock, we
47 had thirty-six cars go down and four boats, two golf
48 carts, and the Sheriff’s Department arrested somebody
49 at the stop sign on Roberts Church Road and River Forks
50 Road.  Later in the day, four wheelers going up and



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
26

1 down the road with no mufflers.  The deputies were
2 called again.  They did not catch them.  We have a
3 serious problem with traffic.  A very serious problem. 
4 They speed.  You put up speed signs, a tractor sign and
5 a speed limit monitor sign that has the speed limits
6 have flashed out, did no good.  We don’t see deputies
7 in the morning.  We see them from eight till twelve. 
8 For the rest of the day we do not see a deputy go up
9 and down the road, even on weekends.  And there’s drug
10 traffic.  There’s a local known drug dealer that goes
11 up and down the road constantly, followed by other
12 cars, and they all come out together.  Nothing has been
13 done.  Of course, that’s not your fault or the
14 council’s fault.  That is the fault of lawyers that
15 gets him out of jail.  
16 We expect that you will let us have a public
17 hearing at Center Rock Fire Department as you promised
18 at the last meeting.  Thank you.
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Next.
20 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Nicole
21 Macheska.
22 NICOLE MACHESKA:   Hello again.  I just wanted
23 to talk a little bit more about what I do as an Early
24 Interventionist.  And I work directly with children
25 with special needs and developmental delays, as well as
26 medical diagnoses.  And I also just wanted to say that
27 myself, my family, and on behalf of many of the
28 families that I serve in my job, we are in full support
29 of this water park.
30 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
31 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is David
32 Standard.
33 DAVID STANDARD:    Hi.  I’m David Standard. 
34 And this is concerning the water park.  And I think we
35 need to do something as quickly as we can.  If you have
36 to have a public meeting, that’s fine.  Do it, but get
37 it over with.  Let’s move this water park forward so
38 the people of Anderson County can enjoy it.  It’s a
39 good benefit, I believe, coming out of COVID to get
40 everybody back motivated to get out and do things.  So
41 let’s see if we can come together and get this moving
42 pretty quickly for the children and everyone else.
43 Thank you.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
45 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Judy
46 Johnson.
47 JUDY JOHNSON:  I want to speak on the
48 water park, as well.  I live on -- off of River Forks
49 Road on Lake Ridge Lane and it’s a dead end road. 
50 That’s before you go onto the government property.  I



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
27

1 built my house in 1972 knowing what the restrictions
2 were from the corp and what was required of me and
3 understanding that near us was a recreation area for
4 swimming, boat ramp and picnicking.  Never was I to
5 think it was going to be like an amusement park.  
6 I have looked on the website for Asbury on the
7 Shores or the Shores of Asbury, and I’ve looked at this
8 water park that would go into the water.  And I
9 actually have a concern for the safety of even these
10 children that they’re talking about that would play on
11 this apparatus.  To me it looks dangerous for them in
12 the water, depending on how good they are at swimming
13 and so forth, even with protective gear.  
14 But from the standpoint of the community, I have a
15 concern.  It’s a two-lane road, unmarked, no shoulder,
16 that goes down to the boat ramp.  And this has, as Ted
17 has said, definitely been an issue for us even yet
18 before this type of activity in that area.  And concern
19 of littering and potential crime.  We have children on
20 our road.  It’s a dead end road.  People tend to turn
21 there when they see they have a gate that they’re going
22 to have to go through.  
23 And so I, too, am looking forward to this public
24 hearing that we can discuss more and understand what
25 has been discussed so far which seems to have gone very
26 far in the plans without having a public meeting.
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
28 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Barbara
29 Schaeffer.
30 BARBARA SCHAEFFER:  I live in the Cove by
31 exactly where you’re planning to put the water park and
32 all the paraphernalia that goes along with it.  It
33 would really destroy the area.  And I’m thinking mainly
34 of the animals in the area.  They would be moved out by
35 all the noise and all that goes along with a water
36 park.  
37 At this time we have egrets coming down the Cove. 
38 We have all sorts that come every year.  All of that
39 would be destroyed.  Thank you.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
41 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Bobby
42 Simmons.
43 BOBBY SIMMONS:  Bobby Simmons, District 2. 
44 What I want to speak about is the little safety that
45 when I pull up to a stop sign, the law say that when
46 you pull up to a stop sign, you stop behind the stop
47 sign.  If you cannot see from there, ease on up so you
48 can see the traffic in both directions.  But I find a
49 lot of obstacles in the way when you try to do that and
50 you almost wind up being in the middle of the road just



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
28

1 trying to see how to get out.  
2 Some people have signs there.  Some people have
3 bushes there.  And some it’s just old grass, grass has
4 done growed up.  So I think -- I realize and I think
5 that you have an ordinance to say that, you know, if
6 you have an area that a person cannot see, you should
7 have to clean it off.  
8 Also, I want to talk about the lanes in the roads 
9 -- in the county roads and the city roads and maybe
10 some of them is state roads.  That yellow line is faded
11 out so much that when at night -- maybe it’s because of
12 me because I’m old, seventy-four -- that, you know, I
13 can’t see well.  But some of the -- when a car is
14 facing you, you cannot see your lane, so you’ve almost
15 got be looking for the outside line in order to keep
16 yourself in the lane.  Sometimes that’s not there.  So
17 what I’m asking is that if the county could have some
18 kind of maintenance where when the yellow lines get
19 dull that they paint them.  I mean, paint shouldn’t
20 cost that much to paint the roads.  And we hear about a
21 lot of people running off the road.  Why are they
22 running off the road?  Is it because they’re not paying
23 attention or just because they don’t see the lane.  I
24 think it’s something that the county could look into to
25 maybe help people with -- old people like myself that’s
26 driving at night, it’s hard to see the yellow lines. 
27 And the last thing I want to talk about is the
28 bridge on 29 North, the one that the truck ran into. 
29 There was some talk about making some changes there
30 because the bridge was too low to allow the trucks --
31 some of the trucks to come through there.  And I’m
32 wondering what happened to that?  Is it still in effect
33 and takes a long time for the state to do anything or
34 county to do anything?  I just want to know what’s
35 going on so that we can have more business on 29. 
36 Thank you very much.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Harmon.
38 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, I’m not sure
39 about this next name.  Dara Morton.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Is there a Ms. Morton or
41 Mr. Morton?  Okay.
42 LEON HARMON:  Okay.  Wade Willark?
43 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Wade Willark?
44 LEON HARMON:  Myron Schaeffer.
45 MYRON SCHAEFFER:  I want to thank you for
46 letting me have time here with you.  I am a grandfather
47 and a parent.  I’m concerned about the safety of our
48 children.  And I met with Mr. Burns and Mr. Burriss
49 yesterday.  And part of my meeting was to find out if
50 there was a study made, feasibility study, about the



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
29

1 safety of this area?  And I do have some concern
2 because I tried to zero in on how many people or users
3 in vehicles will be coming into that area.  I was never
4 given that number.  I was told it had to come from the
5 Corp of Engineers.  And I believe the Freedom of
6 Information Act would make that available through the
7 council to see how many people, how many vehicles will
8 be going through that area.  So if you’re making a
9 feasibility study, you would be able to determine what
10 the usage would be.  If you’re going to be working from
11 nine a.m. to nine p.m. from May 1st to October 30th,
12 you’re going to have traffic issues.  If anybody -- I
13 challenge anybody who’s looking at this park to drive
14 from Dobbins Bridge Road all the way down to see the
15 situation before you proceed in having the study that
16 really protects our children.  I’m concerned about the
17 number of sanitation, because if you don’t know how
18 many people, how much sanitation do you have to have? 
19 How about safety?  I understand you’re going to have
20 lifeguards, but how do you know how many lifeguards
21 unless you know how many people are going to use it.  
22 Also, if you have a weather condition, a tornado
23 comes, how quickly can you get the people out of there? 
24 And then the other thing, when you have a group like
25 that for a long period of time, is there any control on
26 alcoholic beverages?  I don’t know.  And how are you
27 going to control the amount of people that go into the
28 area?  I really think we need a good feasibility study
29 taking those things into consideration.  And crime and
30 drugs, that’s a possibility.
31 The only other thing that Mr. Burns promised me, he
32 said that any future meetings in regard to this, he
33 would make sure there would be notifications and that
34 he would do it from the tax rolls, which I think is a
35 good thing because we never knew about it until just a
36 few weeks ago.  And we live on the Cove ---
37 LEON HARMON:  Time, Mr. Chairman.
38 MYRON SCHAEFFER:   Okay.  Thank you.
39 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
40 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Dan
41 O’Connor.
42 DAN O’CONNOR:  Mr. Chairman, council,
43 thank you for the time.  Apologies for even having to
44 come here and take extra time while I know you guys
45 want to get out to dinner.  
46 One thing that’s very clear in this whole thing is
47 because I think with good intentions that this was
48 tried to be made to happen out at River Forks to find a
49 solution to provide activities in Anderson County, it
50 skipped out of public notice a lot of the potential for



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
30

1 affected people to weigh in and express concerns.  I
2 think that there’s a lot of high emotions on both
3 sides.  That’s unfortunate.  And I think that was
4 caused, unfortunately, because it didn’t go through the
5 normal process.
6 So the one thing that I think that really needs to
7 happen relative to this effort for this water park is
8 an actual review of the use of the park, how it affects
9 the traffic, everything out relative to River Forks.  I
10 also met with Mr. Burns and Mr. Nelson yesterday with
11 Myron and Barbara.  Many of the questions that I asked
12 there were no answers for.  And it seemed to me that
13 those questions were basic questions.  As Myron said,
14 how do you control the traffic?  Will you just stop
15 people at the gate and then they turn around?  Well,
16 how are they going to turn around?  There’s no turn-
17 around there.  It just went on from there.  And no
18 offense to anybody here, but it was very obvious that
19 this really hadn’t been thought through.  
20 So my understanding also is that the trees on
21 Asbury were diseased or something.  They were taken
22 down by the Corp.  Sounds like another entity.  Don’t
23 know for sure who that was that went in and ground the
24 stumps.  Then it rained.  It caused some sort of DHEC
25 issue.  Caused penalties and fees.  I think if that’s
26 the case and the activities were outside the scope of
27 the lease which caused the problem, you should not
28 reward that effort by making it easy to come up with
29 another location for the water park, without a study
30 and due diligence.
31 Additionally, in our meeting yesterday, Mr. Burns
32 asked what my main concern was, and my only main
33 concern is to make sure that we review the development
34 and lake appropriately.  Mr. Burns had mentioned our
35 intention is to run River Forks exactly like the Corp
36 ran it.  Now Asbury is a different story.  The only
37 change at River Forks -- and if you need it in writing
38 I can get it in writing ---
39 LEON HARMON:  Time, Mr. Chairman.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Time.
41 DAN O’CONNOR:  Pardon?
42 TOMMY DUNN:  It’s time.  
43 DAN O’CONNOR:  Can I have ten more
44 seconds?
45 LEON HARMON:  No, sir, sorry.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  I’ll take care of this. 
47 Move on.
48 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Kelly Wood.
49 KELLY WOOD:  Hi.  Thank you so much. 
50 I’m Kelly Wood.  I’m in District 5.  I live in the Cove



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
31

1 right across from River Forks.  I’m a brand new
2 homeowner.  Just bought the house in November.  Excited
3 to be part of the lake.  Completely understand that
4 everybody wants things for kids to do.  I’m on that
5 same spectrum.  I want places for people to go and
6 things to do.
7 My main concern is that the first public mention of
8 this was two weeks ago on your agenda.  And I now,
9 thanks to the meeting yesterday with Rusty Burns and
10 Myron and Dan, you provided a letter that Ken had
11 written to your office with hundreds of names who are
12 in support of a water park at Asbury and River Forks. 
13 Now, what that tells me is that the developer has been
14 hard at work for weeks garnering support for a water
15 park at River Forks when there’s been no public mention
16 of it at River Forks.  That’s very concerning to me. 
17 It seems like the cart is going before the horse.  And
18 all of those names that you garnered on that list ---
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Address the chair, please,
20 ma’am.
21 KELLY WOOD:  All of those names on that
22 letter, none of the neighbors who live around River
23 Forks were contacted to ask how it was going to impact
24 us.  And there’s a lot of us who have a whole lot of
25 reasons of how it’s going to impact us, maybe
26 positively, but also negatively.  And so this isn’t,
27 this isn’t something where I’m opposed to having
28 development done at River Forks.  I just would like to
29 have a lot more input before the decision is rushed
30 through this summer.  That’s what I’m asking for.  
31 And the developer has created a Facebook page
32 called the Shores of Asbury.  And any comment that has
33 been put on there that has been clarifying questions or
34 a negative comment -- not even negative -- somebody
35 that might be in opposition to this has been removed
36 from that Facebook page.  I looked at it today.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  Everybody address the
38 chair, please.
39 KELLY WOOD:  I’m sorry.  I looked at
40 that Facebook page and I talked to Cheryl who has told
41 me she had no idea how those comments had been deleted. 
42 I am here representing one of those comments who could
43 not be here today; she is out of town.  She got a
44 response on that page.  Both of those have been
45 deleted.  And there are other people who had the same
46 experience where those comments in opposition to this
47 water park, right now going in so fast, have been
48 deleted off.  The only page that is open right now for
49 the public to see, and it’s called the Shores of
50 Asbury.  



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
32

1 So I also want to bring to the attention of the
2 council that on that same Facebook post it says, this
3 is the exciting news you were calling about.  If you
4 want this, please call or email your council and thank
5 them today for voting to bring it to River Forks this
6 season.  To my knowledge ---
7 LEON HARMON:  Time, Mr. Chairman.
8 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.
9 KELLY WOOD:  --- there’s been no vote on
10 that.
11 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
12 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Leanne
13 Nourse.
14 LEANNE NOURSE:  Hello council.  Thank you
15 for your time.  I won’t take the whole three minutes. 
16 It’s obvious there’s a lot of excitement that has been
17 said on all aspects of it.  I’m a healthcare worker and
18 I see Anderson County members of all spectrums; not
19 only kids, but the demographics of the outdoors people. 
20 I’m a fisherman.  I love to boat.  I love to kayak.  So
21 what are the impacts to (inaudible) and you access the
22 boat ramps.  What is the master plan?  Is it out of the
23 winds?  I watch the winds all the time.  They get to be
24 about hurricane speed.  Yes, I’m concerned for the
25 children.  So where is the plan.  We’d like to see it. 
26 What is the traffic study?  Who’s going to pay for the
27 road changes?  Without it and progressing with the
28 development without changing the county roads, stop
29 signs.  I almost watched five wrecks at River Forks
30 Café.  Great place, by the way.  I’m excited for the
31 development, but it has to be done in good
32 consciousness for all of Anderson County residents and
33 those that we welcome over here to hopefully generate
34 revenue.  
35 So my questions:  What’s the plan?  The revenue
36 that’s generated, will that be transparent on where it
37 goes within the county?  What’s the traffic proposal? 
38 Who’s going to pay for the roads?  And safety with
39 tornadoes?  As far as I know, I never had thirty
40 minutes for a tornado, otherwise I’d be packing up my
41 ham sandwich and going into my closet way ahead of
42 time.  So we’ve got to be sensible about how this is
43 executed.  
44 Obviously something has already gone wrong.  We
45 haven’t even gotten started yet.  Who’s on the hub for
46 EPA concerns?  I understand from the Corp Anderson
47 County is on the hook for liability for EPA issues.  It
48 has to be restored to the original condition upon
49 resignation of lease.  Is there a fund to make sure
50 that we’re going to be covered if Lake Hartwell



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
33

1 Development Group goes, whoop, we’re bankrupt.  You
2 guys are on the hook; we’re on the hook; we’re paying
3 for the clean-up.  
4 So there’s more to be explored.  I mentioned it in
5 the public hearing.  I’m anxious to know date and time.
6 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
7 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Dan
8 Harvell.
9 DAN HARVELL:  Dan Harvell, Council
10 District 7.  Mr. Chairman, members of council, I have
11 friends on both sides of this issue here tonight. 
12 Having served on the County Board of Appeals, Zoning
13 Board of Appeals for about fourteen years now, this is
14 the kind of thing that we see so often.  We’ve done
15 countless cases where we’ve had neighbors not satisfied
16 with what’s going on.  You know, the alteration of the
17 county ordinances to allow variances and special
18 exceptions.  And I understand the passion on both sides
19 of this.  
20 From that viewpoint, I would say it seems like for
21 this particular thing at River Forks, it is a temporary
22 situation.  It’s not a permanent situation.  And I
23 think a public hearing, of course, is appropriate.  But
24 I think it should be done as quickly as it could be
25 done.  
26 Anyway, it sounds like a great idea.  But I also
27 understand the other side, too, having heard this for
28 fourteen years or so on this board and I understand it
29 totally.  So anyway, I think the water park itself is a
30 great idea.  I think it’s a great idea to reinvigorate
31 Asbury.  It’s unfortunate what the Corp of Engineers
32 did out there.  I’m familiar with that because the lake
33 property in the family, we’ve had issues with the Corp
34 before and they do things that can’t be reversed
35 sometimes without what I think is proper thought.
36 But anyway, those are my thoughts on this.  And
37 thank you for hearing me. 
38 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
39 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Roger
40 Leduc.
41 ROGER LEDUC:  Yes, I’m Roger Leduc.  I
42 don’t actually know what district I’m in.  I live down
43 Providence Church Road.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  Be District 5.
45 ROGER LEDUC:  District 5.  Okay.  Thank
46 you.  Basically I heard about this through the
47 grapevine.  Fundamentally I promote this idea.  I think
48 it’s a good idea to have activities for families,
49 residents and visitors to have venues to enjoy the
50 lake.  It’s a great lake that we have out here and we



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
34

1 should do things to make it possible for more people to
2 get on, near, in, under, over the lake.  I do hear some
3 of these concerns.  And only having driven down to
4 River Forks a couple of times, I’m not real familiar
5 with that road.  This needs to be done properly.  I was
6 hoping for more details on what this project is about
7 tonight.  I came here very spontaneously.  And I will
8 be looking at the Facebook page to see if I can learn
9 more about it.  But fundamentally I just think it’s a
10 good idea to have more to enjoy this lake with.
11 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Harmon.
12 LEON HARMON:  Next name, and I apologize
13 in advance.  I’m not sure about this.  Last name
14 Zyrtill.
15 TOMMY DUNN:  Move on.
16 LEON HARMON:  Doug McNabb.
17 DOUG MCNABB:  I’m Doug McNabb, also in
18 District 5.  Thank you for allowing us to be heard
19 here.  I, too, live in the River Forks area, a couple
20 of coves over on the lake.  And I understand -- tonight
21 was the first time I’d heard about the special needs
22 kids.  And I think we definitely need, you know,
23 activities like the water park.  It’s unfortunate that
24 the Asbury Park property is not available for this
25 summer.  It concerns me that the diseased trees which
26 apparently had to be taken away at Asbury Park.  I
27 believe the same thing has happened at Saddler’s Creek. 
28 It would seem reasonable that the problem is there at
29 River Forks, too.  I don’t know if that’s been
30 identified or not.  I mean you may go in there and find
31 that that needs to happen there.
32 The other thing besides the traffic -- compounds
33 the traffic, there’s been a couple of new businesses
34 added at Dobbins Bridge and 187.  A new Dollar General
35 Store, River Forks Café.  We still have a little gas
36 station and convenience store.  And the traffic has
37 increased with that.  It also occurred to me that there
38 are a number of other recreational properties on the
39 lake.  And I don’t know all of them.  But have we
40 looked at partnering with some of the places like
41 Portland Marina, a big water marina.  Saddler’s Creek. 
42 Places that already have a recreational base where
43 there’s a lot of activity going on.  You know, I don’t
44 know if that’s a possibility. But I think the lack --
45 or the introduction of this with little input from the
46 residents in that area has contributed to a lot of
47 confusion.  So that’s what I’m looking for, is to help
48 kind of alleviate the confusion.  And definitely would
49 love to see a public meeting so that we can find out
50 what’s going on.  Thank you.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
35

1 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Harmon.
2 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Paul Kelly.
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Paul Kelly.  He’s fine. 
4 He’s good, Mr. Harmon.  Go ahead.  Next.
5 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Dona
6 Shiflette.
7 DONA SHIFLETTE:  Hello.  I’m Dona Shiflette,
8 District 5.  I want to voice my opinion that I think
9 that we need this water park.  It would be an asset to
10 Anderson County.  And would be a place, especially with
11 the opening up after COVID-19, for our children to have
12 and our grandchildren, to have a place to go and enjoy
13 the lake.  And the park is already there.  I don’t see
14 that it would cause a whole lot of additional traffic
15 out there.  It will have additional traffic, I’m sure,
16 but it was built for a recreational area and a boat
17 ramp.  And I think this water park would enhance that
18 area.  And it would be a real asset for the children
19 and also the special needs children that are looking
20 forward to getting out this summer.  Thank you.
21 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.
22 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one else
23 is signed up.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Harmon.
25 Moving on now to comments from council members. 
26 Ms. Wilson.
27 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
28 I’m sure we’ll work through the water park -- temporary
29 water park very efficiently soon.
30 In responding to Mr. Simmons’ questions, the
31 Highway 29/Cherokee Road bridge was supposed to be
32 under construction removing and replacing in April.  I
33 don’t see that they’ve gotten started over there, but
34 it’s supposed to be underway right away.  
35 And our county does have a striping budget.  It
36 would be really good if you could give us a list of the
37 roads where you have trouble getting out of the -- into
38 the intersection and where there are problems with the
39 striping.  We get those calls frequently, and our Roads
40 and Bridges Department are very, very good at getting
41 out on the county roads.  And we call the district
42 engineer down in Greenwood and he gets people up on
43 state roads pretty quickly.  We’re all concerned about
44 safety.  And we’ve got a lot of new vegetation so it is
45 getting harder to see.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Ms. Wilson.
47 Mr. Wright?
48 JOHN WRIGHT:  No, sir, nothing at this
49 time.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Graham.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
36

1 RAY GRAHAM:  Nothing at this time.
2 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Graham.  
3 Mr. Sanders.
4 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman.  I
5 would just like to make it aware that May the 4th is
6 International Firefighter’s Day, and we’d just like to
7 thank any firemen here or any firemen or service first
8 responders, just let everyone know.  I appreciate what
9 they do for our community.  And thank you, sir.
10 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Sanders.  
11 Mr. Davis.
12 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair. 
13 Thank you all for being here tonight.  This is
14 important.  And I hope you’ll come back again and see
15 what’s going on in Anderson County, because we do the
16 business of the county here and we thank you for your
17 attendance.
18 I do want to thank all the county staff, including
19 the administrator for working so diligently to -- we
20 had a wonderful night at Dolly Cooper Park Friday
21 night.  We had a drive-in movie.  Several hundred
22 people were there.  The Powdersville Business Council
23 sponsored it.  Mr. Holt Hopkins and his staff did a
24 wonderful job preparing Dolly Cooper Park and it looked
25 fantastic.  Everybody had a great time.  And I thank
26 all that were a part of that in getting that done.
27 I also want to thank Rick Smith and his staff for 
28 -- Saturday, we had the Powdersville Pick-up.  We
29 picked up a hundred and twenty-five bags of trash and a
30 couple of pick-up loads of stuff that wouldn’t go in
31 bags.  So it was a great day.  We cleaned up Highway
32 153.  And I want to thank Joe Campbell and his group
33 that were out there.  Just everybody pitched in and
34 made a wonderful weekend in the northern part of
35 Anderson County.  I just want to thank you all.  Thank
36 you, Mr. Chair.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Davis.
38 A few comments.  Mr. Simmons, if you would, I echo
39 what Ms. Wilson said, if you would let me know or Mr.
40 Burns, the intersections you’ve talking about having
41 trouble about seeing on, and we’ll try to do something
42 about them.  If they’re county and if they’re highway,
43 we’ll forward that information on to the highway.  We
44 just had about a week ago, week and a half ago, a pick-
45 up on signs on the side of the road and keeping that
46 up.  So we do have a sign ordinance and try to keep
47 that up.  And all county roads don’t have striping on
48 them unfortunately, but the ones that do we try to keep
49 it up.  Mr. Hogan does a pretty good job of keeping
50 that up.  So if you’ve got any problems on that let us



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
37

1 know and we’ll try to get -- if it’s a highway
2 department road, we’ll try to get that information to
3 them to work with us on that.
4 On a couple of things right quick on this park
5 business.  Number one, I don’t need no reminders about
6 what I said.  I said if the people are putting this on
7 wanted to have a public meeting there would be one.  So
8 I’ve heard that tonight.  We’ll set one up.  It’ll be
9 at Center Rock Fire Station.  I’ve got to call them and
10 get it set up.  It won’t be this week.  Everybody will
11 have plenty of notice and plenty of time and get the
12 things out there on that.
13 And for the comment the lady made about this group
14 over here having weeks ahead of time and getting the
15 petition up.  No, there’s some people that don’t want
16 the park up got signs up and notified people.  She got
17 wind of it -- it’s her right -- and she done the same
18 thing.  That’s the thing going on about this.  It’s a
19 hot issues.  I understand that.  Like I said, we’ll get
20 the facts out.  There’s been -- all the facts haven’t
21 been out there saying exactly and explaining what this
22 is.  So some people has took it up on their self to
23 explain the fact, which I’ve heard some horrendous
24 things out of people’s mouth.  And the people that said
25 this was just -- it was just lies.  But we are -- there
26 will be a public meeting on this and get this out there
27 and questions asked or concerns.  I said that last time
28 and I’m saying that again tonight.
29 And please, please if y’all see anything on social
30 media or getting out -- I do very little of it because
31 of this, but I have seen some things, some posts about
32 it, this, that and the other.  Please call me.  I ain’t
33 never lied to y’all folks before and I didn’t get where
34 I’m at by lying.  I’ll tell you the truth.  My number
35 is 844-3765.  So feel free to call me.  
36 MALE:  (Inaudible.)
37 TOMMY DUNN:  I’ll write it down for you
38 and give it to you.  Okay?
39 One last thing -- well, two last things.  Again, I
40 want to appreciate everybody coming out tonight.  And
41 it is, as Mr. Davis said, what makes our government
42 work.  And wish more people would get involved.  Please
43 remember, May the 18th there’s going to be a vote
44 whether to raise your taxes or not from the Fire
45 Commission.  I’m not going to tell you how to vote, but
46 everybody needs to get out and vote either yes or no. 
47 It’s not county council.  It’s the fire commission and
48 the Anderson County Delegation.  Y’all need to get out
49 and make sure you vote.  And that’s May the 18th.
50 Thank y’all very, very much.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 4, 2021
38

1 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT APPROXIMATELY 7:53 P.M.)



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

MAY 18, 2021

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
SETH RIDDLEY
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - May 18, 2021
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:  I’d like to call the
2 Anderson County Special Presentations meeting of May the
3 18th to order.  I’d like to welcome everyone here. Thank
4 y’all for coming out tonight.
5 The first item on the agenda is Resolution (a)
6 2021-024, a resolution to recognize and honor Mr. Wayne
7 Rogers upon the occasion of his 101st birthday. 
8 Councilwoman Ms. Wilson.
9 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
10 Mr. Rogers won’t be with us, of course, tonight, but
11 we’ll present this to him at a later date.  
12 THIS IS A RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE AND HONOR MR.
13 WAYNE ROGERS UPON THE OCCASION OF HIS 101ST BIRTHDAY.
14 WHEREAS, Mr. Wayne Rogers was born on April 24,
15 1920, a premature, three pound baby boy, the fifth child
16 born into the Rogers’ household of the Beaverdam
17 Community, his father saying to his mother, “Essie, I
18 don’t know if we’ll get to raise this one;” and,
19 WHEREAS, 101 years later, Mr. Rogers is still
20 celebrating birthdays in a full, inspiring life, and
21 although he is perhaps most well-known in the community
22 for his service as a public-school principal in Anderson
23 School District One, he has lived a life marked by
24 resilience, bravery, self-sacrifice, and generosity,
25 helping his family farm survive his father’s death and
26 drought during the Great Depression, and enlisting in
27 the United States Navy, serving 1939-1945, first on
28 board the USS Prairie in the North Atlantic, then on the
29 USS Mindanao in the perilous South Pacific, where 80 of
30 his fellow sailors perished in an explosion caused by a
31 Japanese suicide submarine, though he escaped serious
32 injury; and,
33 WHEREAS, upon returning home, Mr. Rogers enrolled at
34 Vanderbilt University, then returned home to major in
35 biology at Furman, marry Irene (Dickerson) Rogers,
36 and pursue a career in education, later earning a Master
37 of Educational Administration degree from Furman and
38 serving, in turn, the Navy Reserves, National Guard, and
39 the Army Reserves, from which he retired as a Lt.
40 Colonel and began many years doing electrical work
41 overseas on mission trips and service to his
42 friends, family, church, and community.
43  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson
44 County Council hereby wish Mr. Rogers a happy 101st
45 birthday and thank him for his long lifetime of service
46 to Anderson County, to the United States, and to
47 countries around the world.
48 RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 18th day
49 of May, 2021.
50 And may I put that into the form of a resolution?



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - May 18, 2021
3

1 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, you may.  We have a
2 motion.  Do we have a second?
3 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  Any
5 discussion?  
6 CINDY WILSON:  Life well lived.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, ma’am.  And we hope
8 he has some more.  All in favor of the motion show of
9 hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
10 unanimously.  Thank you, Ms. Wilson.
11 Moving on now to item number 2(b), R2021-025, a
12 resolution proclaiming May 22-28, 2021 as National Safe
13 Boating Week.  Mr. Sanders.
14 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman. 
15 Thank you.
16 THIS IS RESOLUTION R2021-025 A RESOLUTION TO
17 PROCLAIM MAY 22-28, 2021 AS NATIONAL SAFE BOATING WEEK;
18 AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.
19 Whereas, for nearly 100 million Americans, boating
20 continues to be a popular recreational activity.  From
21 coast to coast, and everywhere in between, people are
22 taking to the water and enjoying time together boating,
23 sailing, paddling and fishing.  During National Safe
24 Boating Week, the U.S. Coast Guard and its federal,
25 state, and local safe boating partners encourage all
26 boaters to explore and enjoy America’s beautiful waters
27 responsibly; and
28 Whereas, safe boating begins with preparation.  The
29 Coast Guard estimates that human error accounts for most
30 boating accidents and that life jackets could prevent
31 nearly 86 percent of boating fatalities.  Through basic
32 boating safety procedures – carrying lifesaving
33 emergency distress and communications equipment, wearing
34 life jackets, attending safe boating courses,
35 participating in free boat safety checks, and staying
36 sober when navigating – we can help ensure boaters on
37 America’s coastal, inland, and offshore waters stay safe
38 throughout the season; and
39 Whereas, National Safe Boating Week is observed to
40 bring attention to important life-saving tips for
41 recreational boaters so that they can have a safer, more
42 fun experience out on the water throughout the year; and
43 Whereas, on average, 600 people die each year in
44 boating-related accidents in the U.S.; 79 percent of
45 these are fatalities caused by drowning; the vast
46 majority of these accidents are caused by human error or
47 poor judgment and not by the boat, equipment or
48 environmental factors; and a significant number of
49 boaters who lose their lives by drowning each year would
50 be alive today had they worn their life jackets.



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - May 18, 2021
4

1 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson
2 County Council hereby supports the goals of the Safe
3 Boating Campaign and proclaims May 22-28, 2021 as
4 National Safe Boating Week and the start of the
5 year-round effort to promote safe boating, urging all
6 those who boat to practice safe boating habits and wear
7 a life jacket at all times while boating.
8 RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 18th day
9 of May, 2021.
10 And I’d like to put that in the form of a motion,
11 sir.
12 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a motion Mr.
13 Sanders.  Have a second?
14 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
15 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Wright.  Any
16 discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor of the motion
17 show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion
18 carries unanimously.
19 That’s all for this part of the meeting.  Meeting be
20 adjourned.  We’ll meet back here at six thirty.
21
22 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:07 P.M.)



5

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

MAY 18, 2021

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
SETH RIDDLEY



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021
6

1 TOMMY DUNN:  ... regular meeting of
2 May the 18th to order.  I want to welcome everyone here
3 and thank y’all for coming.  We’ve got a busy agenda
4 tonight, so we want to get busy and get through this
5 thing.  
6 At this time I’d like to ask Councilman Wright if he
7 would lead us in the invocation and pledge of
8 allegiance.
9 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY JOHN WRIGHT 
10 TOMMY DUNN:  If y’all would please
11 remain standing just for a moment of silence.  I’d like
12 for us to keep in mind, our thoughts and prayers of
13 Coach Frazier’s family, a long-time fixture in Anderson
14 County.  And also Mark Williamson, our head IT person
15 here in the county had some tragedy over the weekend
16 with his family.  So please keep them in our thoughts
17 and prayers and have a moment of silence for those two
18 families, please.  Amen.  Thank y’all.  Be seated.
19 At this time, item number 3, approval of minutes,
20 they’re not ready so we’ll be doing that -- hopefully
21 they’ll be ready for us for the next council meeting.
22 At this time we’ll move on to item number 4, which
23 is citizens comments.  As Mr. Harmon calls your name,
24 please come forward and state your name and district for
25 the record.  Address the chair.  You’ve got three
26 minutes.  And only on agenda items only this first go-
27 around.
28 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one is
29 signed up to speak at this point in the meeting.
30 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Harmon.
31 At this time, item number 5, gives me great pleasure
32 to allow Ms. Wilson to introduce our new head librarian. 
33 Ms. Wilson.
34 CINDY WILSON:  Well, this is a wonderful
35 occasion for Anderson County.  Our library system has
36 been in good hands for a long time, and we know that it
37 will continue.  Mr. Burns penned a letter that I will
38 read.  The Anderson County Library Board of Trustees is
39 pleased to announce Annie Sutton as the new Director of
40 the Anderson County Library System beginning May 1.  
41 Annie has worked as the Assistant Director since
42 January 2020.  I’m very pleased that Ms. Sutton has been
43 named Director of the Anderson County Library, says
44 Anderson County Administrator Rusty Burns.  I know of
45 her commitment to our community, to all the people in
46 our community.  She is following a legend, but I feel
47 she may become one in her own right.  
48 Annie Sutton began her career with the Anderson
49 County Library System in 2006.  She established the
50 Gambrell Teen Room and became the first Teen Librarian



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021
7

1 for ACLS.  
2 Annie then worked as the Branch Manager for the
3 Powdersville Library, one of the largest and fastest
4 growing libraries in Anderson County, before becoming
5 the head of Access Services for the library system.  
6 Over her fifteen year career with ACLS, she has led the
7 library system to new initiatives and improvements,
8 overseeing major branch library renovations and a
9 reworking of the Anderson Main Library for improved
10 access and accessibility.  She will do a great job, says
11 the Library Board of Trustee member Chris Huff.  I got
12 to know Annie when she managed the Powdersville Library
13 and she was always great to talk with when she had the
14 time.  Plus, she’s a dog lover.  
15 In 2019 Annie received the Outstanding Librarian
16 Award from the South Carolina Library Association for
17 her work and contributions to ACLS and librarianship. 
18 While Annie is instrumental in leading large initiatives
19 and events like Community Reads and How-to Fairs, she’s
20 also comfortable kicking back and listening to
21 discussions at Brews & Books, a book club sponsored
22 jointly by ACLS and Carolina Bauernhaus Ales.  I love
23 looking at creative and innovative ways the library can
24 serve our patrons, whether that’s partnerships with
25 local businesses, circulating unconventional items like
26 seeds and fishing poles, or simply providing high
27 quality literacy programs like Story Time, Annie says. 
28 I’m excited for the opportunity to lead a great team and
29 to find new ways to reach our community.  The Anderson
30 County Library System serves residents of all ages in
31 Anderson County at the main library in the city of
32 Anderson, eight library branches, a book mobile, and the
33 digital library.  The system’s staff and board are
34 committed to the freedom of access for all, offering a
35 forum for ideas.  For more information visit

www.andersonlibrary.org.  36
37 Welcome.  We’re so glad to have Ms. Sutton and I
38 know we’ll all look forward to going.  And I bet Mr.
39 Wright will be hauling those little children over to
40 pick out books and go to Story Time.
41 JOHN WRIGHT:  Absolutely.  Yes, ma’am.
42 CINDY WILSON:  And my aunt was there
43 getting books to go to the beach with a couple of weeks
44 ago.  We appreciate this wonderful asset in our county. 
45 Thank you.
46 APPLAUSE 
47 TOMMY DUNN:  We do want to welcome you
48 aboard and appreciate it.  And like I said -- Ms. Wilson
49 said in her comments, I think you’ve got some big shoes
50 to fill, but you do it your way and you certainly --

http://www.andersonlibrary.org.


Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021
8

1 we’re going to miss Ms. Faith, but I know you’ll do a
2 great job.  I’ve heard a lot of good things about you.
3 ANNIE SUTTON:  I look forward to working
4 with you all.
5 TOMMY DUNN:  Look forward to it, too. 
6 Anyone else have any comments?
7 BRETT SANDERS:  Just welcome aboard.
8 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  And if we can
9 do anything at all, you or your board let Mr. Burns know
10 or contact one of us and we’ll see what we can do. 
11 Okay?  Thank y’all for what all you do for the county.
12 At this time we’re going to move on to item number
13 6, ordinance third reading.  2021-026, an Ordinance
14 authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu
15 of tax agreement by and between Anderson County, South
16 Carolina and a company known to the county at this time
17 as Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc. with respect to
18 certain economic development property in the county,
19 whereby such property will be subject to certain
20 payments in lieu of taxes, including the provision of
21 certain special source credits; and other matters
22 related thereto.  Mr. Burriss.
23 BURRISS NELSON:  (Inaudible) fifty
24 thousand square foot -- sorry -- fifty thousand square
25 foot terminal facility that will be not only
26 distribution of less than truck load distribution
27 throughout a hundred mile radius of here, but also
28 storage and distribution to our local industries.  This
29 capital investment is 8.6 million, creating twenty-seven
30 jobs, with an average hourly pay of twenty-eight dollars
31 and forty-six cents.  Annual payroll of a little over
32 1.5 million.  
33 This project comes to -- and taxes over thirty
34 years, 4.4 million.  This comes to council as a
35 recommendation from staff, as well as the Economic
36 Development Advisory Board.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  Is it not proper to say
38 the location they’re going to or ---
39 BURRISS NELSON:  They’re on a tract of
40 land between U.S. 76 and U.S. 178, on that frontage road
41 area.  It’s about halfway down.  It’s a fifteen, sixteen
42 acre tract.  I don’t know the tax map number.  
43 BRETT SANDERS:  Hurricane Creek?
44 BURRISS NELSON:  Say that again.
45 BRETT SANDERS:  Is that Hurricane Creek
46 you’re talking about?
47 BURRISS NELSON:  I apologize, I don’t know
48 the name of that road.  I hate to say it’s right there
49 past the liquor store.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  To the right.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021
9

1 BURRISS NELSON:  Turn right.
2 TOMMY DUNN:  Go up the hill.
3 BURRISS NELSON:  Go across to the QT, it’s
4 about halfway.
5 BRETT SANDERS:  That’s Hurricane Creek
6 Road you’re talking about.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Nelson. 
8 Appreciate it.
9 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
10 TOMMY DUNN:  At this time we’re going
11 to go into a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to
12 this matter, please step forward.  Again, state your
13 name and district for the record and address the chair. 
14 Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public
15 hearing will be closed.
16 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
17 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
18 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders;
19 second Ms. Wilson.  Now, any discussions, questions or
20 comments for Mr. Burriss?  Any at all?  Seeing and
21 hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
22 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
23 unanimously.  
24 And for the record, I meant to say this earlier. 
25 Let the record show Mr. Graham is not present tonight. 
26 Hopefully he’ll come in.
27 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you for your
28 support.
29 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Thank y’all.
30 Moving on now to item number 7(a), second reading. 
31 This is 2021-030, an Ordinance to adopt the operating
32 and capital budget of Anderson County for the fiscal
33 year beginning July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2022.
34 At this time we’ll go into a public hearing.  Anyone
35 wishing to speak to this matter, please step forward and
36 state your name and district, again, for the record and
37 address the chair.  You have three minutes.  Anyone at
38 all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will
39 be closed.  
40 Now I’m going to ask the Chairman of the Finance
41 Committee, Mr. Sanders, to take this up because this
42 was, I believe, talked about -- it’s on down in the
43 report, but we need to talk about this before he gets to
44 his report.  This is on the agenda.  He can go ahead and
45 report out what his Finance Committee done on this
46 subject here.
47 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
48 On the 2021 budget, we just said in prior meetings, we
49 have at the present time a balanced budget with two
50 months of fund reserve which keeps our bond rating at



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021
10

1 the level it needs to be kept at.  We also have no tax
2 increase.  And it comes before council unanimously from
3 the Finance Committee.  We will be having another
4 meeting.  Some of our council members on the committee
5 had some questions, and I think Ms. Davis had actually
6 emailed us some more information that we requested. 
7 Everything seems to be moving along well.  And hopefully
8 we’ll have the third reading with everyone’s support by
9 June the 1st.  Thank you, sir.
10 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  We have a
11 motion to move this forward from the Finance Committee. 
12 It doesn’t need a second coming from committee.  So I
13 open the floor up for discussion.  Any discussion?  Ms.
14 Wilson.
15 CINDY WILSON:  While this has been an
16 incredibly rough year, past fiscal year that we’re
17 finishing up, it’s with great diligence that everybody
18 has worked together to try to keep it in line and make
19 our county move forward without an increase.  So it’s a
20 very helpful situation.  Thank you.
21 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Ms. Wilson. 
22 And I would just like to say we’re still in the process. 
23 Still got another reading to do and some more meetings. 
24 And the public is always invited and so is all of the
25 council members.  But I just wanted -- would like to
26 give a shout out.  I think we’ve got the best finance
27 team in the state.  They do a great job, headed by Ms.
28 Davis, to keep us on top of things.  And we’ve got
29 questions and gets them back to us.  Most of the time
30 she already knows the answer.  Does an outstanding job. 
31 Especially in these tough times, what all is going on
32 with this COVID and everything.  We appreciate you and
33 your team, Ms. Davis.  Thank you very, very much. 
34 Anyone else?
35 BRETT SANDERS:  It was her birthday
36 Friday during that meeting.  We would have taken it a
37 little easy on you if we have known that.
38 TOMMY DUNN:  All in favor of the 
39 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
40 motion carries unanimously.  
41 We’re going to move on now to item number 7(b), this
42 will be 2021-031, an Ordinance to amend Section 38-353
43 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South
44 Carolina so as to amend Section 38-353(a) and add a new
45 Section 38-353(d) regarding private road standards;
46 and other matters related thereto.  
47 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
48 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
49 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a motion.  Do we 
50 have a second?



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021
11

1 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
2 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a second by Mr.
3 Sanders.  Now discussion.  I’d like at this time if we
4 could for Mr. Harmon to read out some changes, and if
5 it’s all agreeable or somebody can make the motion to
6 amend this.
7 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, ---
8 TOMMY DUNN:  These will be just the
9 changes.  And y’all have got a copy of these in y’all’s
10 highlighted -- or in y’all’s packet.  I just want to
11 make sure for the record this goes on.
12 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, members of
13 council, these area changes in Exhibit A to the
14 ordinance for Section 38-353(d), private road standards.
15 The first change is in Section 1.  That would now
16 read, survey maximum of ten lots for a private road,
17 with each lot containing a minimum of two acres,
18 excluding the road right-of-way.  
19 Item 2, further subdividing of parcels are
20 prohibited.  
21 Item 4 would be changed to have a minimum driving
22 surface width of eighteen feet, constructed of no less
23 than six inches of compacted crusher run base.  And
24 later on in that same section number 4, roads designed
25 to be permanently closed at one end shall be terminated
26 by circular right-of-way of not less than fifty foot
27 radius from the center point of the circular right-of-
28 way, and a gravel radius of not less than thirty-five
29 feet from said center point.
30 And then the final change is in Section 7.  A
31 surveyor must provide a recorded plat after a registered
32 professional licensed engineer certifies that it meets
33 the private road standards found in Section 38-353.
34 TOMMY DUNN:  Y’all heard that.  Do we
35 have a motion to amend the main motion?
36 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Davis.  Do we
38 have a second?  Second Ms. Wilson.  Now discussion on
39 the amendment?
40 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chairman, if I may?
41 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Davis.
42 JIMMY DAVIS:  I just want to thank the
43 staff and the county attorney for taking care of this. 
44 We had several inputs on making these changes.  And this
45 is more or less just cleaning up some of the verbiage in
46 the ordinance to make it crystal clear what we’re doing
47 going forward.  Thank you.
48 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Anyone else? 
49 I’d just like to say I appreciate your input, Mr. Davis,
50 working on this and getting this.  I think it’ll be a



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021
12

1 good tool for Anderson to have in its tool box.  Also,
2 want to thank staff and also want to thank a few
3 citizens that helped out on this, putting this together. 
4 Anyone else?  We’re voting on the amendment now to the
5 main motion.  All in favor show of hands.  Opposed like
6 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
7 Now we’ll be voting on the main -- or discussion of
8 the main motion of the county private road standards. 
9 Any comments, questions, discussion?  Seeing and hearing
10 none, all in favor of the main motion show of hands. 
11 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
12 unanimously.
13 We’re going to be moving on now to item number 8,
14 first readings.  There are none.
15 Resolutions, item number 9, there are none.
16 Moving on to item number 10, bid approval of
17 Anderson County Transportation Committee, number 120,
18 resurfacing project.  Mr. Carroll.
19 ROBERT CARROLL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
20 We have one bid to bring before you tonight.  As you
21 said, ACTC 120 resurfacing.  The dollar amount has been
22 approved by the ACTC Committee and they recommend award
23 to Pickens Construction for eight hundred and eight
24 thousand six hundred fifty-three dollars.  And this is
25 roughly a mile and a half of roads, all located within
26 the city of Anderson.
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Do we have a
28 motion?
29 BRETT SANDERS:  Mr. Chairman?
30 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, sir.
31 BRETT SANDERS:  We actually -- this came
32 through the Finance Committee.  
33 TOMMY DUNN:  Oh, I’m sorry.
34 BRETT SANDERS:  We voted on it
35 unanimously, so I don’t know if it’ll need a second.
36 TOMMY DUNN:  No.  Coming from the
37 Finance Committee meeting ---
38 BRETT SANDERS:  It was supported
39 unanimously from the Finance Committee.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Coming from them it won’t
41 need a second.  Now any discussion?  Hearing none, all
42 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
43 sign.  
44 Mr. Carroll, hang on one second.  If you would, make
45 sure you and Mr. Burns see me before the meeting is over
46 with.  We’re going to set a committee meeting up for
47 Friday, maybe.  And also I’m going to take a point of
48 privilege here being the chairman to just ask you
49 something.  How is the -- I’m going to talk about this
50 in my final comments, but I don’t want to have you make



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021
13

1 you get back up.  How is the EMS proposals looking?
2 ROBERT CARROLL:  They’re in the hands of
3 the evaluators.  
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Y’all got three
5 evaluators?
6 ROBERT CARROLL:  Reading information.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.
8 ROBERT CARROLL:  Had nine responses.
9 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  
10 Moving on to item number 11 now, report from the
11 Finance Committee.  Mr. Chairman.
12 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, sir.  We’ve
13 already discussed the resurfacing project, the budget. 
14 We had some transfers that Ms. Davis brought before us. 
15 The majority of it was housekeeping and some insurance
16 that we needed to transfer funds for.  It came before
17 the Finance Committee unanimously.  We also was informed
18 that on the Corona State and Local Fiscal Recovery forms
19 that the county will be receiving right at forty
20 million, or forty million dollars.  They’re going to
21 have more discussion on how this can be spent and
22 utilized at the next Finance Committee meeting.
23 TOMMY DUNN:  I just -- go back to the
24 transfers.  We need to vote on that; don’t we?
25 BRETT SANDERS:  The transfers we will,
26 yes, sir.  I’m sorry.
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Coming from the Finance
28 Committee, it doesn’t need a second, a committee.  Are
29 there any discussion?  All of y’all have gotten copies
30 and seen what the transfers was.  Anybody got any
31 questions or comments on the transfers?  Seeing and
32 hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
33 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries on that.
34 Now I just want to make a thing on item number 4 on
35 the funds of the thing.  There are, for better lack of a
36 term, strings to be attached to this.  We just can’t go
37 out and spend money here and there.  It’s guidelines. 
38 And we’re still, if I’m understanding staff right, still
39 sorting through some of the guidelines, what it is and
40 all.  
41 Mr. Burns, you got anything you want to add to that?
42 RUSTY BURNS:  We need council to make a
43 motion to approve the acceptance of that money.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Do we have a
45 motion to accept those funds?
46 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, it came
47 unanimously from the Finance Committee.
48 TOMMY DUNN:  Also, okay.  We don’t
49 need a second on that, then.  Are there any discussion
50 on that?  Now if the time for discussion.  Anything you



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021
14

1 want to add to that, Mr. Burns, as far as the process or
2 anything?
3 RUSTY BURNS:  Rita has already spent
4 it.
5 TOMMY DUNN:  I’m sure she has.  We’ll
6 keep her wrapped.  On some of it, though, on helping
7 some departments that has really come up short because
8 of this pandemic, it’s going to help those, and that is
9 what it’s for.
10 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.
11 TOMMY DUNN:  Anyone else?  All in
12 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
13 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
14 And I would just like to say this.  When that money
15 is received and it is -- it’ll be voted on in public
16 record what that money is spent on and how it’s going
17 out and all that.  And it’ll be recorded and it’ll be on
18 our thing as we do all our stuff.  So don’t want nobody
19 thinking anything otherwise.  And hopefully, I’m talked
20 to Mr. Burns and Ms. Davis about this, as soon as we can
21 get it, put it in the bank and if it just draws a little
22 that’ll help us out and let that pot grow a little bit
23 and get some interest.
24 Okay.  We’ll be moving on now -- is that all you’ve
25 got, Mr. Chairman?
26 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.  Thank you.
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you and your
28 committee working and working on the budget.
29 Item number 12, appointments.  Are there any that I
30 don’t know about?  
31 Requests from council members.  Any requests I don’t
32 know about?
33 Moving on to item number 14, administrator’s report.
34 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this time, Mr.
35 Chairman.
36 TOMMY DUNN:  Moving on to citizens
37 comments.  At this time when Mr. Harmon calls your name,
38 please step forward and state your name and district for
39 the record.  You’ve got three minutes.  And address the
40 chair, please.
41 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, first
42 speaker is Jill O’Connor.
43 JILL O’CONNOR:   I just wanted to say
44 thank you to our county council members for scheduling a
45 public meeting regarding River Forks sublease and
46 potential development.  Thank you for doing so.
47 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Next.
48 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Tonya
49 Winbush.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Winbush.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021
15

1 TONYA WINBUSH:   Hello.  I’m Tonya
2 Winbush, District 1.  John Wright is my county council
3 person or that represents my district.
4 I just want to come to you all because I started a
5 petition and I want you all to help me to make this
6 happen because I’ve never done anything like this
7 before, and so I don’t know how to make this happen. 
8 But I’m going to read this and it is change Plantation
9 Road alongside of Nevitt Forest Elementary School to
10 Gracie Floyd Road.  
11 The historic connotation of the word plantation is
12 synonymous with chattel slavery.  Plantation is a word
13 that reminds us of the tragic part of black American
14 history.  Therefore it seems unconscionable that the
15 students of Nevitt Forest Elementary which has a
16 majority of black students will be subjected to the use
17 of Plantation Road to travel to school every day.  This
18 is why the road name should be changed to Gracie Floyd
19 Road.  
20 Ms. Gracie died earlier this year due to
21 complications from COVID-19.  She was an Anderson County
22 Council woman of District 2, and Nevitt Forest
23 Elementary is in that district.  This change will honor
24 and recognize a great leader in the community and will
25 also remove the negative image of a past with which we
26 have yet to come to terms from the minds of
27 impressionable elementary school students.  
28 So that being said, I would like for you all to not
29 only, you know, do what you do to make a resolution and
30 all that stuff, I want you all to help me to really make
31 this come to fruition, to physically change Plantation
32 to Gracie Floyd.  Thank you.
33 TOMMY DUNN:  I just want to say -- I’m
34 not saying we can’t do that or won’t do that or the
35 time, but I do just want to say that we’ll wait for a
36 little time to pass and Mr. Burns and Mr. Sanders both
37 have made some recommendations and had some thoughts
38 about doing something for Ms. Floyd and honoring her. 
39 And Mr. Burns, I ask you to lead that up, that
40 committee, you’ve got a lot of contacts and see if you
41 can follow through with that and make a recommendation,
42 because we definitely want to do something.  It’s right. 
43 And thank you.  Okay?  We appreciate it.
44 Next, Mr. Harmon.
45 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker, Mr.
46 Chairman, is Dan O’Connor.
47 TOMMY DUNN:  He’s -- oh, okay.  Thank
48 you.  I’m sorry.
49 LEON HARMON:  No one else is signed up.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Thank y’all.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021
16

1 We’re going to go on at this time with council
2 members’ comments.  We’ll start with Mr. Davis.
3 JIMMY DAVIS:  Nothing, sir.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Sanders.
5 BRETT SANDERS:  Nothing at this time,
6 sir.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  You must be on the --
8 under.  Mr. Wright.
9 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman, I’ll keep
10 it brief, but I think we just wrapped up National Law
11 Enforcement Appreciation Week this past week.  And so I
12 know we’ve got some of our law enforcement here present
13 at each meeting.  Just really appreciate everything that
14 you guys do.  I know that several council members have
15 been celebrating the Sheriff’s Office the last couple of
16 days with the appreciation picnic.  But just want to
17 recognize you folks and everything that y’all do for our
18 community.  That’s it.
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Wright.  
20 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.
21 TOMMY DUNN:  Well said.  And I think
22 the whole council appreciates y’all.  And thank y’all
23 very, very much for what all y’all do with our law
24 enforcement.  And good seeing y’all.  
25 Ms. Wilson.
26 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
27 Just a reminder.  Our Appalachian Council of Governments
28 Transportation Committee meets Friday at ten via Zoom in
29 our conference room.  Our council members are welcome to
30 come, and any members of the public.  We’ll get an
31 update on some of the projects.  Thank you.
32 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  And a couple
33 of things.  
34 One, invite all council members if you can make it
35 to the Center Rock Fire Station at six thirty Thursday. 
36 Be a community meeting about the River Forks projects. 
37 Hope we all can make that and hear for yourself and find
38 out.
39 And secondly, there will be a -- I haven’t talked to
40 Chairman Graham yet about this.  I’ve had other things,
41 but was going to do it tonight.  But as soon as they get
42 through -- staff gets through grading these proposals
43 for EMS, I want either the Public Safety Committee can
44 head it up or what not, but we’re going to have a full
45 council meeting to review all this at one time. 
46 Everybody ought to be able to -- whoever puts on the
47 proposal, the staff recommends or what not, is going to
48 come and do a presentation for full council.  That way
49 we can all hear it at the same time.  We can all ask
50 questions and all, because this is very important to our



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - May 18, 2021
17

1 county and our citizenry to get this and get this right. 
2 So I want everybody to get that and have a fair change
3 to do it because all of us has got districts that this
4 is involved.
5 Anyone else?  Anything else?  I appreciate it. 
6 Appreciate everybody coming tonight.  Meeting will be
7 adjourned.
8
9 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:58 P.M.)



AGENDA
ANDERSON COUNTY FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

Tommy Dunn
Chairman

Council District 5

Brett Sanders
Vice Chairman

Council District 4

Friday May 28, 2021 9:30 a.m.
101 South Main Street, Anderson SC

Second Floor, Administrator’s Conference Room
Chairman Brett Sanders, Presiding

John B. Wright, Jr.
Council District 1

1. Call to Order Chairman Sanders

Council District 2 2. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance Honorable Brett Sanders

Ray Graham
Council District 3

3. Transfer Ms. Rita Davis

Jimmy Davis
Council District 6

4. Continued Discussion of FY 21-22 Operating

& Capital Budget
Ms. Rita Davis

M. Cindy Wilson
Council District 7

Lacey Croegaert
Clerk to Council

Rusty Burns
County Administrator

5. Citizens Comments

6. Adjourn

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION
Rusty Burns I County Administrator

0: 864-260-4031 F: 864-260-4548 I rburns@andersoncounfysc.org
Historic Courthouse 101 South Main Street, Anderson SC 29624

P0 Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 www.andersoncountysc.org



FROM:

BUDGET TRANSFER

DIVISION: PRT

DEPARTMENT: Parks

TO: AMOUNT:

TITLE
ACCT.#

TITLE
ACCT.#

TITLE
ACCT#

TITLE
ACCT.#

TITLE
ACCT.#

Professional Services
001-5065-000-304

TITLE Meals
ACCT# 001-5065-000-236

TITLE
ACCT#

TITLE
ACCT#

TITLE
ACCT#

TITLE
ACCT#

Total

2,500.00

2,500.00

Explain, in COMPLETE DETAIL, the reason for the transfer.

REASON:
Our funds for meals are depleted for this budget year but we still have several events that will require meals.

1. Saluda River Rally - meals are provided for crews working after hours doing prep work for the Rally

2. Meals for Matt Schell and Neil Paul while attending the Bassmaster Classic as 2022 Event Hosts

3. Imagine Anderson lunch at the Museum

4. Meals for staff working outside normal hours for the TBF High School World Finals

(Circle One)

(Circle One) No

DEPT. HEAD:

DIVIS HEAD:

FINANCE:

ADMINISTRATOR:

DATE:

DATE:

DATE:

DATE: c. Z.3-1

Is this transfer within your department?

Is this transfer within your division?

No

Journal Entry # DATE:



1 

 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY COUNCIL FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 

 

ORDINANCE NO 2021-030 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT THE OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS OF 

ANDERSON COUNTY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2021, 

AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2022, AND TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS FOR SUCH 

ANDERSON COUNTY BUDGETS FOR COUNTY ORDINARY PURPOSES 

AND FOR OTHER COUNTY PURPOSES FOR WHICH THE COUNTY MAY 

LEVY A TAX OTHER THAN FOR TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

PURPOSES; TO PROVIDE FOR THE LEVY OF TAXES ON ALL TAXABLE 

PERSONAL AND REAL ESTATE PROPERTIES IN ANDERSON COUNTY FOR 

SUCH COUNTY ORDINARY PURPOSES, INCLUDING SUFFICIENT TAX TO 

PAY THE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON OUTSTANDING INDEBTEDNESS 

OF ANDERSON COUNTY MATURING DURING SAID FISCAL YEAR; TO 

ADOPT THE OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS OF ANDERSON 

COUNTY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2021, AND ENDING 

JUNE 30, 2022, AND TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS FOR SUCH ANDERSON 

COUNTY BUDGETS, FOR TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE; TO 

PROVIDE FOR THE LEVY OF TAXES ON ALL PERSONAL AND REAL 

PROPERTIES IN ANDERSON COUNTY ON WHICH SCHOOL TAXES MAY 

BE LEVIED FOR SUCH TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE PURPOSES; 

TO PROVIDE FOR THE LEVY, ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION OF 

CERTAIN OTHER TAXES AND FEES; TO PROVIDE FOR THE 

EXPENDITURE OF SAID TAXES AND OTHER REVENUES COMING TO THE 

COUNTY DURING SAID FISCAL YEAR; AND TO PROVIDE FOR OTHER 

MATTERS RELATING TO ANDERSON COUNTY.   

 

 BE IT ENACTED by the County Council for Anderson County, South Carolina ("Anderson 

County"), as follows: 

 

The following operating and capital budgets for Anderson County for the fiscal year beginning 

July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2022, are hereby adopted and directed to be implemented by the 

Anderson County Administrator and staff. 

 

SECTION I-ADOPTION OF OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS FOR COUNTY 

ORDINARY AND OTHER PURPOSES 

 

 Pursuant to Section 4-9-140 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended (the 

"Code"), the operating and capital budgets of Anderson County (the "Anderson County Budgets"), 

for County ordinary purposes and for other County purposes for which the County may levy a tax 

other than for Tri-County Technical College purposes, as hereinafter set forth, by reference and 

otherwise, are hereby adopted for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022. 

 



2 

 

SECTION II-LEVYING OF A SUFFICIENT TAX FOR COUNTY ORDINARY AND 

OTHER PURPOSES 
 

 A tax of sufficient millage to fund the appropriations for the Anderson County Budgets, herein 

made, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, after crediting against such 

appropriations all other revenue anticipated to accrue to Anderson County during said fiscal year, not 

designated for any other specific purpose, is hereby directed to be levied upon all taxable property of 

Anderson County upon which the County may levy County ordinary taxes, for County ordinary 

purposes and for other County purposes for which the County may levy a tax, other than for the 

Anderson County Library, Tri-County Technical College purposes, County sewer, Countywide 

Emergency Medical Service, Solid Waste fees, Sewer fees, Civic Center fees, Animal Shelter fees, 

9-1-1 tariffs, and road encroachment fees, all as separately levied in this Ordinance, such tax to fund 

the following amounts or millage, which shall be separately identified, levied, collected, and 

accounted for, as millage, for the purposes shown, as required by subsequent sections of this 

Ordinance (excluding Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes), with the total millage so levied, exclusive of debt service 

millage to be set by the Anderson County Auditor, not to exceed 83.9 mills. This Ordinance shall 

serve as Anderson County Council’s written certification to the Anderson County Auditor required 

under Section 12-43-285 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976, as amended). 
 

County Ordinary $49,975,400 65.2 Mills 

2007 General Obligation Bonds $760,000 1.0 Mills* 

2020 General Obligation Bonds $600,000 .8 Mills* 
 

*Debt service levies are statutorily set by the Auditor in the fall. This is an estimate for budget 

purposes. 
 

Other taxes and uniform assessments levied by this Ordinance are: 
 

Anderson County Library $5,200,000 6.9 Mills 

Infrastructure Reserve Fund $1,075,000  1.4 Mills 

Capital Fund $2,895,000 3.8 Mills 

Tri-County Technical College $2,361,100  3.1 Mills 

Anderson County Sewer $1,795,000  3.0 Mills 

County EMS  $5,005,000  6.6 Mills 

Solid Waste/Recycling Fees As set in Section XV $75.00 per household 

  $85.81 per commercial 

Sewer Fees As set in Section XVI  

Civic Center Fees As set in Section XXXIV  

Animal Shelter Fees As set in Section XXXV  

911 Tariff As set in Section XXXVII  

Road Encroachment Fees As set in Section XXXVIII  
 

SECTION III-GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUES  
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 

County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 

forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 

following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 

revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 

 



3 

 

GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS 

  

FUNCTION 

                       AMOUNT 

         APPROPRIATED 

 County Government Administration $31,085,16531,477,745 

 Health and Welfare 3,163,310 

 Public Safety 40,953,545 

 Public Works 9,361,920 

 Culture and Recreation 3,087,785 

 Transfer Out 1,288,645 

 Contingency 350,000 

 Total Appropriations-General Fund $89,290,37089,682,950 

GENERAL FUND REVENUE 

LOCAL SOURCES-4100 

100-101 Property Taxes-RPC Current                 $43,045,845 

100-102 Property Taxes-RPC Delinquent 2,500,000 

100-103 Property Taxes-Vehicles 6,929,555 

100-105 Property Taxes-Fee-In-Lieu of  Taxes 2,800,000 

000-115 Concessions-Civic Center 6,000 

000-121 Ticket Sales-Civic Center 20,000 

000-140 Rent of Property-Civic Center 210,000 

000-180 Vendor Fees 3,000 

001-105 Baseball-Sports Complex 35,000 

001-106 Soccer-Sports Complex 10,000 

001-107 Softball-Sports Complex 5,000 

001-108 Tennis-Sports Complex 250 

001-115 Concessions-Sports Complex 6,000 

001-125 Rental-Sports Complex 2,500 

003-115 Concessions-Amphitheatre 2,000 

003-140 Rental-Amphitheatre 16,000 

200-110 Fees/Fines-Court Division 165,000 

200-120 Fees/Fines-Family Court 385,000 

200-121 Fees/Fines-Family Court Filing Fees 8,000 

200-125 Fees/Fines-Worthless Check Unit 5,000 

200-135 Fees/Fines-Register of Deeds 2,200,000 

200-140 Fees/Fines-Judge of Probate 450,000 

200-150 Fees/Fines-Master-in-Equity 90,000 

200-155 Fees/Fines-Sheriff 25,000 

200-158 Fees/Fines-Magistrates 800,000 

200-162 Decal Fees 150,000 

200-163 City of Anderson-Forensics 43,000 

200-164 Fees-Coroner 3,000 

200-165 Oconee County Master-in-Equity 36,055 

200-166 Oconee County Drug Lab Match 46,375 

200-168 Medical Examiner Reimbursement 145,000140,000 

200-175 School Crossing Guards 120,000 

200-176 School Resource Officers 2,200,000 



4 

 

300-105 Fees-Animal Shelter 75,000 

300-110 Fees-Cablevision Franchise 1,630,000 

300-120 Fees-Maps and Plats 40,000 

300-125 Fees-Municipal Collection 30,000 

300-132 Fees-Delinquent Tax Posting Fee 20,000 

300-140 Permits-Building 1,400,000 

300-145 Permits-Electrical 300,000 

300-150 Permits-Heating and Air 150,000 

300-155 Permits-Land Use 135,000 

300-157 Fees-Plan Reviews 150,000 

300-158 Fees-Driveway Aprons 130,000 

300-160 Permits-Plumbing 180,000 

300-165 Permits/License-Mobile Homes 55,000 

300-174 Permits-Encroachment 30,000 

300-180 Fees-Re-inspections 5,000 

300-181 Sex Offender Registry 20,000 

300-182 Inspections-Engineering 40,000 

300-190 Miscellaneous 85,000 

400-160 Library Security Reimbursement 105,000 

600-140 Rent of Property 610,000 

600-143 Booth Rental-Farmer’s Market 2,500 

600-144 Farmer’s Market-Event Rental 5,000 

600-145 Broadway Lake Rental 30,000 

900-120 Interest Income 500,000 

3700-000-101 Fund Balance 9,336,430 

 Total Amount of Local 77,526,510 

STATE SOURCES-4200 

400-218 Flood Control 105,000 

400-220 Health and Environmental 5,000 

500-115 Registration and Elections 155,200 

500-125 Local Government Fund 8,162,525 

500-135 Merchants Inventory 273,260 

500-150 Homestead Exemption 2,310,000 

500-160 Salary Assistance 7,875 

 Total Amount of State 11,018,860 

FEDERAL SOURCES-4300 

500-150 Corps of Engineers 95,000 

500-165 DSS Reimbursement 75,000 

 Total Amount of Federal 170,000 

TRANSFER IN-6400 

100-168 Transfer In-Documentary 530,000 

100-175 Transfer In-State ATAX 45,000 

 Transfer In-Economic Development 397,580 

 Total Amount of Transfer In 575,000972,580 

 Total Revenue-General Fund $89,290,37089,682,950 

No amount of the Local Government Fund revenue shall be used for lobbying purposes. 
 

Formatted: No underline



5 

 

 

SECTION IV-SPECIAL REVENUE FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 

County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 

forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 

following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 

revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 
 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND APPROPRIATIONS 

 Total Appropriated $95,061,32095,096,320 

   

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND REVENUE 

Special Revenue Funds Other Than Sheriff’s Office 

102 Grants-Local Contributions $3,343,380 

 State Grants 707,500 

 Transfer In-AFEE 30,000 

 Fund Balance 94,225 

103 Museum Store 15,000 

104 American Rescue Plan 39,284,880 

105 Emergency Rental Assistance Grant 4,415,900 

108 Water Recreation-Local Contributions 50,000 

 State Grants 100,000 

 Federal Grant 500,000 

 Transfer In-AFEE 80,000 

114 Public Defender-Local Contributions 240,000 

 State Revenue 1,300,000 

 Municipal Funding 55,000 

 Transfer In-General Fund 564,590 

 Fund Balance 31,140 

118 HOME Program-Federal Grant 795,000 

 Transfer In-General Fund 125,000 

126 Textile Communities Revitalization-Federal Grant 500,000535,000 

 Transfer In-General Fund 300,000 

127 CDBG Rehabilitation-Federal Grant 1,089,150 

 Transfer In-General Fund 24,350 

137 Transfer In-“C” Funds 2,000 

139 “C” Funds 3,500,000 

 Fund Balance 5,352,000 

 Transfer In-Infrastructure 150,000 

140 Tri-County Technical College-Millage 2,361,100 

 Delinquent Taxes 85,000 

 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 158,400 

 Merchants Inventory 12,000 

 Homestead Exemption 129,360 

 Fund Balance 342,540 

142 Airport 2,080,705 

143 Anderson County Library-Millage 5,200,000 



6 

 

 Delinquent Taxes 195,000 

 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 300,000 

 Homestead Exemption 248,000 

 Fund Balance (122,710) 

145 Re-Entry Navigator Grant-Local Contributions 76,200 

150 Title IV-D/Family Court-Incentive Payments 513,170 

152 DSS Incentive Payments 10,000 

 Fund Balance 65,000 

156 Victim Bill of Rights 149,615 

 Transfer In-General Fund 130,400 

157 Victims of Crime Act Grant 144,400 

 Transfer In-General Fund 38,870 

163 HAZMAT-Local Contributions 50,000 

 Fund Balance 42,975 

165 Federal Emergency Management Agency-Federal Grant 927,410 

 State Grant 74,515 

168 Documentary Stamps 4,000,000 

 Fund Balance 530,000 

173 Detention Center Canteen-Concessions 200,000 

 Fund Balance 145,920 

174 E-911 Revenues 1,665,000 

 Transfer In-2020 Lease-Software 485,645 

 Fund Balance (413,180) 

175 State Accommodation Tax 469,500 

176 Infrastructure-Transfer In-Infrastructure Reserve 876,815 

177 County Accommodations Tax 800,000 

 Fund Balance 52,355 

180 PARD/Recreation-State Grants 105,000 

 Transfer In-General Fund 17,500 

 Transfer In-Capital Projects 67,500 

 Fund Balance 2,500 

181 Office of Justice Programs-Federal Grant 242,415 

 Transfer In-General Fund 8,470 

191 Duke Energy-EPD 15,000 

 Fund Balance 49,075 

193 EMS-Millage 5,005,000 

 Delinquent Taxes 185,000 

 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 290,000 

 Local Contributions 660,000 

 State Grant 16,680 

 Homestead Exemption 235,000 

 Fund Balance 38,090 

194 Animal Shelter Donations 375,000 

 Fund Balance 75,000 

195 Sheriff Forfeiture Fund 400,000 

 Fund Balance 100,000 



7 

 

196 Infrastructure Reserve Fund-Millage 1,075,000 

 Delinquent Taxes 40,000 

 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 58,000 

 Homestead Exemption 50,000 

 Fund Balance 1,077,970 

198 Sheriff Forfeiture Non-Drug Fund 30,000 

 Fund Balance 170,000 

 Total Special Revenue Fund Revenue $95,061,32095,096,320 

   
 

SECTION V-DEBT SERVICE AND OTHER FINANCING APPROPRIATIONS AND 

REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 

County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 

forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 

following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 

revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND DEBT SERVICE APPROPRIATIONS 

BOND APPROPRIATED 

2008 General Obligation Bond $845,880 

2020 General Obligation Bond 671,050 

  

Total General Obligation Bond Debt Service Appropriated $1,516,930 

 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND DEBT SERVICE REVENUE 

SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 

Property taxes $1,409,000 

Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 79,000 

Merchants Inventory 66,000 

Homestead Exemption 64,000 

Fund Balance  (101,070) 

Total General Obligation Bond Debt Service Revenue $1,516,930 
 

REVENUE BOND DEBT SERVICE APPROPRIATIONS 

BOND APPROPRIATED 

Special Source Revenue Bonds $864,790 

Total Revenue Bond Debt Service Appropriated $864,790 
 

REVENUE BOND DEBT SERVICE REVENUE 

SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 

Transfer In-Economic Development Fund $864,790 

Total Revenue Bond Debt Service Revenue $864,790 
 

SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT APPROPRIATIONS 

SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT AMOUNT 

Hidden Brooks $7,975 

Knight’s Bridge 5,840 

Ashwood Subdivision 10,890 

Formatted: Font: 4 pt



8 

 

Sharen Ridge 9,655 

The Farm 5,595 

Total Special Tax District Appropriations $39,955 
 

SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT REVENUE 

SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 

Special Tax District Fees $39,955 

Total Special Tax District Revenue $39,955 

LEASE PURCHASE FINANCINGS ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Equipment Lease Purchase  

Total Lease Purchase Financings Annual Appropriations $2,313,605 

Total Lease Purchase Financings Annual Appropriations $2,313,605 

LEASE PURCHASE FINANCINGS REVENUE 

SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 

Transfer In-General Fund $79,465 

Transfer In-E-911 167,175 

Transfer In-Infrastructure Reserve Fund 705,970 

Transfer In-Capital 1,360,995 

Total Lease Purchase Financings Revenue $2,313,605 
Total Debt Service and Other Financings Appropriations $4,735,280 
Total Debt Service and Other Financings Revenue $4,735,280 

 

To the extent that any monies remain in any debt service funds of the County, upon complete 

satisfaction of the debt for which such funds were collected, the County Administrator may transfer 

all such excess and otherwise unused funds to, and utilize such funds for any other Anderson 

County debt service fund which has been lawfully created by Anderson County Council to pay 

debt service on any lawful debt obligation of the County. Further, to the extent that any monies 

remain in the capital project accounts of the County, upon complete satisfaction of the stated 

purposes for which such funds were initially authorized, the County Administrator may transfer 

all such excess and otherwise unused funds to, and utilize such funds for any other Anderson 

County activity or purpose which has been duly authorized by Anderson County Council and for 

which debt funds of the County may be lawfully used. 
 

SECTION VI-CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 

County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 

forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 

following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 

revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS APPROPRIATIONS 

FUND ACTIVITY APPROPRIATED 

312 Green Pond Landing Event Center $800,000 

317 TTI Building 1,000,000 

319 2020 General Obligation Bond 7,168,185 

320 2020 Lease-Software 1,315,410 

346 2018 SSRB 8,000,000 

360 Capital Reserve Fund 11,542,46013,678,205 

368 Economic Development 2,879,7504,923,075 

Formatted: Font: 2 pt

Formatted: Font: 2 pt



9 

 

Total Capital Funds Appropriations $36,884,87532,705,805 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS REVENUES 

FUND SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 

312 Green Pond-State Grant $600,000 

 Transfer In-Accommodation Fee 200,000 

317 TTI Building-State Grant 415,280 

 Federal Grant 500,000 

 Transfer In-Economic Development 84,720 

319 2020 General Obligation Bond 6,600,000 

 Transfer In-Infrastructure 568,185 

320 2020 Lease-Software-Fund Balance 1,315,410 

346 Special Source Revenue Bond-Fund Balance 8,000,000 

360 Capital Reserve Fund-Property Taxes 2,895,000 

 Delinquent Property Taxes 105,000 

 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 168,075 

 Local Contributions 30,000310,000 

 Homestead Exemption 136,000 

 Sale of Capital 100,000 

 Insurance Proceeds 65,000 

 State Grant 1,450,0001,660,000 

 Transfer In-2020 Lease-Software 829,765 

 Transfer In-Economic Development 2,092,1203,737,865 

 Fund Balance 3,671,500 

368 Economic Development-Property Taxes 975,000 

 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 2,600,000 

 Fund Balance (695,250)1,348,075 

Total Capital Funds Revenue $32,705,80536,884,875 
 

SECTION VII-ENTERPRISE FUNDS APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 

County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 

forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 

following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 

revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein; provided, however that to the extent, only, that 

revenues for Enterprise Fund activities exceed the revenue projections shown below, the 

Appropriations shown for Enterprise Funds herein may be adjusted by the Administrator to match the 

increased revenues, subject to the requirements of Section XXVII, hereof. Provided, further, that the 

Administrator is authorized to write off, discharge, or otherwise adjust uncollectible and otherwise 

unenforceable debt owed to the enterprise funds of the county, utilizing the same standards used by 

the Anderson County Treasurer to adjust nulla bona debt of the County. 

 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS APPROPRIATIONS 

ACTIVITY APPROPRIATED 

Sewer $10,711,15510,740,455 

Stormwater 762,760 

Solid Waste/Recycling 10,476,53510,544,935 

Total Enterprise Funds Appropriations $21,950,45022,048,150 



10 

 

 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS REVENUES 

REVENUES AMOUNT 

Sewer Property Taxes, State Revenue, Fees & Interest $10,387,095 

Sewer-Federal Grant 500,000 

Sewer-Fund Balance (175,940)(146,640) 

Stormwater-Fees 145,315 

Stormwater-Transfer In from Sewer 617,445 

Solid Waste/Recycling 8,245,215 

Solid Waste/Recycling State Grant 1,809,325 

Solid Waste Fund Balance 421,995490,395 

Total Enterprise Funds Revenues $21,950,45022,048,150 

 

SECTION VIII-LEVYING OF A SUFFICIENT TAX FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 

LIBRARY PURPOSES 
 

 A tax of sufficient millage to fund the appropriations in the amount of $5,200,000 (excluding 
delinquent taxes totaling approximately $195,000, fee-in-lieu of taxes totaling approximately 
$300,000, homestead exemption totaling approximately $248,000 and increase in fund balance 
totaling approximately $122,710), for the Anderson County Library budgets, herein made, for the 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, is hereby directed to be levied on all 
personal and real property in Anderson County, and shall be identified as such on Anderson County 
tax bills.  To the extent such levy results in excess revenues, above those stated above, all such 
revenues shall be placed and maintained in the Anderson County Library fund balance. Any funds in 
the Anderson County Library fund balance at any point in time in excess of those required for the 
Anderson County Library budgets herein made, may be utilized by the Anderson County Library 
Board of Trustees; provided, however, the expenditures of said surplus funds shall never exceed the 
amount of the most recent approved budget of the Library. There shall be credited against said 
appropriations all other revenues anticipated to accrue to Anderson County during said year for 
Anderson County Library.  All such taxes and other revenues shall be levied, collected, deposited, 
disbursed and accounted for in the Anderson County Library Fund, with a specific levy and account 
for the library appropriation category listed herein.   
 

SECTION IX-ANDERSON COUNTY LIBRARY FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND 

REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 

County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if 

set forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, 

the following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the 

anticipated revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 

 

ANDERSON COUNTY LIBRARY FUND APPROPRIATIONS 

ACTIVITY APPROPRIATED 

Anderson County Library Fund $5,820,290 

Total Anderson County Library Fund 

Appropriations 

$5,820,290 

 

 



11 

 

 

ANDERSON COUNTY LIBRARY FUND APPROPRIATIONS 

SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 

Property Taxes $5,200,000 

Delinquent Taxes 195,000 

Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 300,000 

Homestead Exemption 248,000 

Fund Balance (122,710) 

Total Anderson County Library Fund Revenue $5,820,290 
 

The Anderson County Auditor is hereby directed to levy as separately identified County ordinary 
millage and the Anderson County Treasurer hereby directed to collect, disburse monthly (if funds are 
available), and account for as a separate fund the sums identified herein for the Anderson County 
Library Fund.  
 

SECTION X-ADOPTION OF OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS FOR TRI-

COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE PURPOSES 
 

 Pursuant to Section 4-9-70 of the Code, the operating and capital budgets of Anderson County 
specifically for Tri-County Technical College as hereinafter set forth, by reference and otherwise, are 
hereby adopted for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022. 
 

SECTION XI-LEVYING OF A SUFFICIENT TAX FOR TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL 

COLLEGE PURPOSES 
 

 A tax of sufficient millage to fund the appropriations in the amount of $2,361,100 (excluding 
delinquent taxes totaling approximately $85,000, fee-in-lieu of payments totaling approximately 
$158,400, merchants inventory payments totaling $12,000, homestead exemption payments totaling 
$129,360, and usage of fund balance totaling approximately $342,540) for the Tri-County Technical 
College Budgets, herein made, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, 
is hereby directed to be levied on all personal and real property in Anderson County on which school 
taxes may be levied, and shall be identified as such on Anderson County tax bills. To the extent such 
levy results in excess revenues, above those stated above, all such revenues shall be placed and 
maintained in the Tri-County Technical College fund balance. There shall be credited against said 
appropriations all other revenues anticipated to accrue to Anderson County during said year for Tri-
County Technical College.  All such taxes and other revenues shall be levied, collected, deposited, 
disbursed and accounted for in the Tri-County Technical College Fund, with a specific levy and 
account for the special education appropriation category listed herein.   
 

SECTION XII. TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE FUND APPROPRIATIONS 

AND REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 
 

TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE APPROPRIATIONS 

ACTIVITY APPROPRIATED 

Tri-County Technical College $3,088,400 



12 

 

Total Tri-County Technical College Appropriations $3,088,400 

TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE REVENUES 

SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 

Property Taxes $2,361,100 

Delinquent Taxes 85,000 

Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 158,400 

Merchants Inventory 12,000 

Homestead Exemption 129,360 

Fund Balance 342,540 

Total Tri-County Technical College Revenues $3,088,400 
 

SECTION XIII-TAX FOR ANDERSON COUNTY SEWER 
 

 There is hereby directed to be levied a tax of three (3) mills on all county ordinary taxable and 

real property in all unincorporated areas of Anderson County, pursuant to Anderson County 

Ordinance Number 164 of 1986, in order to provide sewer service in the County. 
 

SECTION XIV. LEVYING OF A TAX FOR COUNTYWIDE EMERGENCY MEDICAL 

SERVICES 
 

 There is hereby directed to be levied a tax of six and six-tenths mills (6.6 mills) to provide 

such emergency medical services in the County; to be subject to and dependent upon the approval 

by County Council, prior to the levy of County taxes, of: the creation and organization of an 

oversight and governance board for County emergency medical services not addressed elsewhere; 

bylaws and agreements and other organizational documents for such board; applicable minimum 

standards for County providers of emergency medical services; oversight rules and agreements for 

County providers of emergency medical services; approval by County Council of funding for such 

emergency medical services including any required levy of County taxes; and a plan and procedure 

for the distribution of such levied funds to the County providers of emergency medical services on 

a fair and equitable basis.   

SECTION XV-SOLID WASTE/RECYCLING FEES 

 There shall be a uniform $75.00 Residential Solid Waste/Recycling Fee annually imposed 

upon the owner of record of each residence in the County, including all single and multi-family 

homes, mobile homes, and all lease and rental properties, and a uniform Commercial $85.81 Solid 

Waste/Recycling Fee annually imposed upon every business, excepting industries, located in a 

municipality in the County, and to be collected by such municipality not less frequently than 

annually and remitted to the County within thirty (30) days from the deadline imposed by the 

municipality for such collections. Together, these fees, plus the Starr C&D Landfill usage fee of 

$28/ton and revenues received from the sale of recycled materials, interest income, state grant and 

tire revenue are currently estimated to produce approximately $10,054,540 for this fiscal year, and 

constitute the total anticipated fiscal year 2021-2022 revenues of the Solid Waste and Recycling 

Department. 

 The residential Solid Waste and Recycling Fees shall be levied as a uniform assessment by 

the Anderson County Auditor and placed upon the annual real estate tax notice and collected by 

the Anderson County Treasurer, pursuant to state law. The fiscal officers of the County shall have 



13 

 

the authority to nulla bona or abate these fees to the same extent and under the same conditions as 

they do for a comparable tax.   

 Further, there shall be imposed a late fee and supplemental processing charge of $6.00, for 

all Solid Waste/Recycling Fees not timely remitted to the County Treasurer by March 16 of the 

year when due. For all past due accounts in excess of one year, the County shall impose an 

additional annual penalty of $12.00. The County shall pursue all legal remedies available to it to 

recover past due amounts, and shall hold the property owner responsible for all costs of collection, 

including reasonable attorney fees, as a part of such collection efforts and as a part of the fees 

imposed by County Council pursuant to state law, in order that lawful tax-paying citizens not be 

forced to subsidize those taxpayers who do not pay this lawful fee in a timely manner. Failure by 

a municipality to collect the uniform Commercial Solid Waste/Recycling Fee or to remit such 

collected fees to the County in accordance with this section may result in the County terminating 

solid waste disposal privileges for such municipality until all such collections and/or remittances 

are made current. 

 All proceeds collected from these fees shall be accounted for in a separate fund to be used 

solely to account for solid waste operations in the County, including but not limited to, the 

collection, disposal, transfer, and recycling of solid waste, including, without limitation, the 

purchase or construction of machinery, equipment, and facilities for such operations, as well as the 

administrative expenses incurred in the operation of the Anderson County Solid Waste and 

Recycling Department and collection of the annual solid waste/recycling fee. The County is 

authorized to issue appropriate legal obligations, including bonds, as appropriately authorized by 

normal County processes to pay for all of the foregoing costs, utilizing the proceeds from these 

fees to pay for such costs, including, without limitations, to pay the debt service for such bond 

obligations. The fees addressed in this section may be set or changed by simple vote of County 

Council, and will be adjusted by the County Administrator and the Public Works Division Director 

of the County accordingly to reflect these changes by County Council. The provisions of this 

Section shall be codified in a separate ordinance of the County pertaining to Solid Waste/Recycling 

Fees, which shall include provisions for enforcement, including civil and criminal penalties for 

non-payment. 

 Because empirical evidence indicates that senior citizens generate less Solid Waste, by 

consuming less, than younger residents, the Anderson County Auditor shall only levy and collect 

a $40 Residential Solid Waste/Recycling Fee for every household which qualifies for and is 

granted the State Homestead Exemption. 

 

SECTION XVI-SEWER FEES 
 

 The County is party to multiple agreements with the City of Anderson, South Carolina (the 

"City"), which have been in effect for many years and are of indefinite duration.  Those agreements 

require the County to pay a pro rata share of the cost of certain upgrades to the City's sewer system, 

based on the volume of discharge and the nature of the discharge.  Because the County does not set 

the amount of such costs and because the costs are based on actual use by customers using the system, 

the only equitable method to use for paying the cost of increase charged by the City, pursuant to 

contractual agreements of long standing, is to increase the County sewer use charges affected, by the 

respective percentage or amount of increase charged by the City, i.e., to treat the amount charged by 

the City as a "pass-through" charge to the system users. In addition, the County has certain debt 



14 

 

instruments in effect, with the South Carolina State Revolving Fund and others, which require the 

County to set sewer user charges in such an amount as will generate sufficient funds to pay all debt 

service on such debt instruments. The County Administrator and the Public Works Division Director 

may effect such “pass-through” charges by insuring that amounts charged by the City are correct and 

then passing those charges along, pro rata, to the users of the County sewer system impacted by the 

City charges, in the form of adjusted sewer use charges, based on the same cost increase factors 

utilized by the City, and may otherwise adjust such sewer use charges as required to adequately meet 

all debt service requirements of sewer system debt instruments and obligations duly authorized by 

County Council. 
 

SECTION XVII-STORMWATER REQUIREMENTS AND PERSONNEL 
 

 Federal and state law mandates the management of stormwater runoff by Anderson County. 

Accordingly, certain Public Works employees have been assigned to the management of Anderson 

County’s Stormwater Runoff management program. Anderson County Council may utilize funds 

from the Sewer Fund for the Stormwater Runoff management program, to the extent such funds are 

available and sufficient for that purpose and exceed stormwater fees collected for that purpose, rather 

than impose additional federally and state mandate-created fees for such purposes. 
 

SECTION XIII-CREATION AND APPROPRIATION OF PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE 

FUND 
 

 There has heretofore been established, and shall be maintained as a separate budgetary and 

operational fund of the County, the Anderson County Public Infrastructure Fund (the “Fund”).  The 

County shall deposit into such Fund those revenues of the County derived from fee-in-lieu-of-tax 

(“FILOT”) payments from the several joint county industrial and business parks of the County 

(“multi-county parks” or “MCIPs”), which are designated to be so deposited by this Ordinance or 

other ordinances of Anderson County, including, without limitation, Ordinance #2004-041, as 

amended from time to time (“Ordinance #2004-041”).  Moneys deposited into the Fund shall be 

utilized for the costs of infrastructure serving economic development purposes in Anderson County 

(“Infrastructure”) in accordance with the provisions of 4-1-170, et seq., Code of Laws of South 

Carolina, 1976, as amended, and as directed by Anderson County Administrator. Such expenditures 

are hereby authorized by Anderson County Council.  Deposits into such Fund shall include, without 

limitation, those revenues from the Anderson County-Greenville County multi-county park which are 

allocated to that purpose by Ordinance #2004-041, (exclusive of such revenues as are being utilized 

for separate special source revenue bonds issued to fund Infrastructure).  Moreover, Anderson County 

Council affirms that distribution of the FILOT revenues received by Anderson County pursuant to 

the multi-county park agreements with Clarendon County and with Abbeville/McCormick Counties 

for park premises under those two agreements which are located in Anderson County shall be 

distributed in the same manner and pursuant to the same allocation methodology as set forth in 

Ordinance #2004-041.  All monies and revenues received by Anderson County pursuant to Ordinance 

#2004-041 and this Section shall be accumulated in, accounted for, and distributed from such Fund 

as provided in such Ordinance and in this Section. Expenditures may be made from such Fund to pay 

the cost of such Infrastructure directly or to make debt service payments on bonds or notes payable 

issued by the County to fund such Infrastructure. 

 There is hereby created a Capital Renewal an Replacement Fund that is to be funded in 

accordance with the wishes of Anderson County Council. 
 



15 

 

SECTION XIX-SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS 
 

 The County Finance Department shall receive and account for those revenues of the County 

levied and collected for the special tax districts of the county, as authorized, required, and levied by 

the County ordinances creating such special tax districts. The County Finance Department will 

disburse moneys from such funds in accordance with the County ordinances creating the special tax 

districts, including, without limitation, for reimbursements of the County Public Works Division in 

accordance with such ordinances. Such monies are hereby appropriated for those purposes. 
 

SECTION XX-FUNDING OF COUNTY ORGANIZATIONS 
 

 All dependent boards, agencies, commissions, and organizations of the County, funded by 

these budgets, except for County Rescue Squads shall be disbursed funds on a quarterly basis upon 

a letter of request to the County Administrator any time after the beginning of the first month of 

the quarter.  A brief report shall be submitted along with the letter of request, detailing how County 

funds were expended in the previous quarter. An audit report shall be presented to the County 

Administrator within six months following the end of the respective fiscal year for each 

organization addressed by this Section following receipt of request by the County Administrator.  

SECTION XXI-SETTING OF A MILLAGE RATE 
 

 The Anderson County Council, working in cooperation with the Anderson County Auditor 

and Treasurer and in accordance with the laws and Constitution of the State of South Carolina, shall 

calculate and fix the amount of the millage necessary, not to exceed 83.9 mills total, exclusive of debt 

service millage to be set by the Anderson County Auditor, as set forth herein, to support the 

appropriations herein made, with the exception of those appropriations and portions thereof supported 

by revenues other than property taxes, and shall so advise the Auditor and Treasurer of Anderson 

County who shall levy and collect said millage, respectively, as hereby directed by the County 

Council, in addition to any millage (for debt service or otherwise) for which the statutory authority to 

determine and levy is granted to the Anderson County Auditor and the authority to collect is given to 

the Anderson County Treasurer. All such levies of taxes authorized herein by Anderson County 

Council for County of Anderson purposes shall be set forth, stated, and mailed to the taxpayers of 

Anderson County on a tax notice showing such levies separate and independent of levies of taxes by 

any other legal entity or political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, whether on a two-sided 

tax notice or a multi-page tax notice or any other form of tax notice accomplishing the purpose set 

forth in this paragraph. Anderson County Council will provide forms for such tax notices and no funds 

appropriated by this budget ordinance are authorized for the procurement or preparation of any other 

form of tax notice. 
 

SECTION XXII-COMPLIANCE WITH COUNTY CODE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

 All funds for County ordinary purchases and procurements shall be obligated in accordance 

with the County Code through the County Central Purchasing Department and will be disbursed by 

the Finance Department so as to provide for necessary auditing, unless specifically exempted by 

County Council in public session.   

 All State and Federal Grants will be administered, coordinated, and accounted for by the 

Anderson County Finance Department.   

 Use of funds appropriated by County Council district or otherwise, to reimburse members of 

County Council for reimbursable expenses (that is, for lodging, travel, registration fees, training, 



16 

 

meals, and telephone usage) incurred in the discharge of their official duties shall be in accordance 

with the terms and provisions of the County Code. 
 

 

SECTION XXIII-DEPOSITS 
 

 All service charges, reimbursements, fees, fines, other funds received by county departments 

shall be deposited with the County Treasurer as soon as possible after collection; but in no case shall 

the time lapse between collection and deposit with the Treasurer exceed thirty (30) days.  The 

Treasurer is authorized and directed to deposit all funds received into the appropriate interest-bearing 

accounts, and any surplus funds and all accumulative interest shall be deposited into the General Fund 

of Anderson County.   
 

SECTION XXIV-SURPLUS FUNDS 
 

 Except as otherwise noted herein, any surplus in the General Fund of the County or any 

moneys accruing therefrom shall be used as a contingency fund and shall be spent as authorized and 

directed by the Anderson County Council during the fiscal year addressed by this Ordinance, only.  

At the end of such fiscal year those funds shall be accounted for as addressed in the next succeeding 

Section.  Any surplus in other funds of the County or any monies accruing therefrom shall be retained 

and accounted for in such other fund or funds and shall be carried forward from year to year as fund 

balances in such funds. 
 

SECTION XXV-END OF FISCAL YEAR ACCOUNTING 
 

 All appropriations made by this Ordinance for which monies have not been obligated or 

encumbered by the end of June 30, 2022, shall lapse and expire at that time.  All appropriations made 

by this Ordinance for which the funding monies have been obligated or encumbered by June 30, 2022 

shall remain on the books of Anderson County at June 30, 2022 for matching of the applicable 

expenditure for year-end accrual purposes. Once the ledgers are closed for year-end accrual purposes, 

the unused encumbrance amount will be removed from the encumbrance system. Unobligated 

General Fund budgetary appropriations and monies received by County departments and existing 

without obligation at the close of the fiscal year addressed by this Ordinance shall revert to the General 

Fund of Anderson County to be accounted for as fund balance; no existing appropriation or actual 

revenues on hand at the end of the fiscal year may be expended by any department during the 

succeeding fiscal year without new appropriation by County Council.  Any surplus in other funds of 

the County or any moneys accruing therefrom shall be retained and accounted for in such other fund 

or funds and shall be carried forward from year to year as fund balances in such funds.  

  

SECTION XXVI-TRANSFERRING OF FUNDS 
 

The Administrator may approve changes in a department budget from one line item to 

another in an amount up to and including $10,000 at any one time; provided, however, the total 

department budget shall not increase, no new positions may be created, or capital expenses, may 

be accomplished by such a transfer without County Council approval. No transfer for any one type 

of good or services may be subdivided, split or “stacked” for purposes of evading the requirements 

of this section.  



17 

 

Aggregate transfers within the fiscal year within a department which exceed $20,000 shall 

require County Council approval thereafter. All transfers shall be included in the “Administrator’s 

Report” section of the County Council agenda for Council’s review. 
 

 

 

SECTION XXVII-DISBURSEMENTS 
 

 The County Administrator, based on financial conditions and cash-flow considerations, shall 

determine the proper rate of disbursement of the above-enumerated appropriations during the fiscal 

year. Transfers from fund to fund in order to properly account for and manage County funds and 

appropriations in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards continue to be explicitly 

approved notwithstanding any other language of this Ordinance, subject always to the reporting 

requirements of this Ordinance. All out of state travel for official County government business shall 

be approved in advance by the County Administrator to include any lodging, registration fees or meals 

associated with the trip. The County Administrator and the County Treasurer are hereby granted 

authority to enter into agreements with the Anderson County Board of Education and the School 

Districts of Anderson County, consistent with this Ordinance, to make accelerated disbursements of 

Anderson County school tax receipts to the School Districts of Anderson County and to the Anderson 

County Board of Education.   
 

SECTION XXVIII-PAUPER BURIALS 
 

 Pauper burials shall be funded in the budget of the Coroner (5131) at the rate established by 

sealed bid. Documentation for each such burial will be maintained at the Coroner’s Office and, as 

further, the Coroner is hereby authorized to arrange for the disposition of deceased indigent persons 

in accordance with state law including, but not limited to, Title 32, Chapter 8 of the South Carolina 

Code of Laws (1976, as amended). 
 

SECTION XXIX-RETIREMENT OF AUTOMOTIVE  AND HEAVY EQUIPMENT 
 

 Unless otherwise directed by County Council, automotive and heavy equipment will be 

retired from service by any department receiving replacement equipment on a one for one basis as the 

replacement equipment is received.  Retired equipment will be appropriately evaluated for 

reassignment or disposition by the Public Works Division Director and the County Administrator for 

those departments under the director of the County Administrator and the Sheriff for those vehicles 

used by those departments reporting to this elected official. 
 

SECTION XXX-TAX ANTICIPATION NOTES 
 

 As permitted by Article X, Section 14, of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 

1895, as amended and Section 11-27-40, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, County 

Council is hereby empowered to authorize the issuance of tax anticipation notes in the aggregate 

principal amount of not exceeding $10,000,000 (the "TANS") in anticipation of the collection of taxes 

imposed and levied by this Ordinance.  The TANS may be issued at any time or from time to time 

during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022; shall be issued pursuant to a 

Resolution adopted by County Council; may be issued in bearer form or fully registered upon terms 

and conditions prescribed in such Resolution; shall be issued in the principal amounts, mature and 

bear interest as prescribed in such Resolution; may be sold by negotiated or public sale upon such 

terms and conditions as County Council prescribes in the Resolution. 



18 

 

 

SECTION XXXI-CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS 
 

 To the maximum extent authorized by and in accordance with law, and in accordance with 

County procurement policies, all Anderson County offices, including those of elected officials, are 

authorized to adopt and implement uniform procedures, through the County Central Administrative 

Services Division, to accept credit card payments for all payments due to the County or processed by 

County offices. 
 

SECTION XXXII-CREDIT CARD POLICY 
 

 All Anderson County credit card charges and purchases made utilizing an Anderson County 

credit card, to include purchasing cards, are to be reported to the Finance Office, and accompanied by 

a detailed receipt and a written report, the format of which is to be designed and determined by the 

County Administrator or his designee.  The written report shall contain sufficient detail to show who 

made the charge, what the charge was for, when the charge was made, where the charge was made, 

and why the charge was incurred.   Charges incurred for or associated with economic development 

projects must still be reported, as addressed above, and accompanied by the receipt and report 

described above, but may be reported by project codename, until such time as the project is publicly 

announced or finally terminated. 
 

SECTION XXXIII-GRANTS AND GRANT MATCHING FUNDS 
 

 The Anderson County Administrator, or his duly authorized representative, is hereby 

authorized to apply for all grants of any nature whatsoever where no County matching funds are 

required, or for those grants for which County matching funds are required when all necessary County 

matching funds have been made available by Anderson County Council through the annual Anderson 

County operating and capital budgets or are available in applicable County enterprise fund balances, 

for County Council authorized programs, institutions, and facilities of Anderson County, and to 

receive and expend such grant funds for the purposes authorized in the respective grant applications. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, County staff shall conduct an analysis identifying any recurring 

expense or monetary obligation for which the County may be responsible in the future where said 

expense or obligation will be payable from funding sources other than the grant being applied for. 

Any grant opportunity which involves such expenses or obligations shall require County Council 

approval prior to the submission of the grant application. 

 No funds appropriated by this Ordinance may be utilized as matching funds for any parks and 

recreation grant, including, without limitation, grants received from the South Carolina Department 

of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism, except for Anderson County Council District Recreation Funds 

appropriated hereby, except as otherwise provided herein. 
  

SECTION XXXIV-APPLICABLE CIVIC CENTER RATES 
 

 Rates as set forth on rate sheets as may be in effect during the fiscal year (subject to 

amendment) shall be applied by the Civic Center of Anderson for all rental contracts entered into 

between July 1, 2021 and June 30, 2022.  
 

SECTION XXXV-APPLICABLE ANIMAL SHELTER RATES 
 

 Rates as set forth on Animal Shelter rate sheets dated July 1, 2021 shall be applied by the 

Anderson County Animal Shelter for all services rendered between July 1, 2021 and June 30, 2022. 
 

SECTION XXXVI-APPLICABLE JUROR REIMBURSEMENT RATES 



19 

 

 

 There shall be paid unto the Grand Jurors in Circuit Court the sum of $20 per diem and Petit 

Jurors shall be paid the sum of $12 per diem. There shall be paid unto Jurors in Summary Court the 

sum of $10 per diem Jurors. In addition to the aforesaid sum, jurors shall be reimbursed twenty-five, 

$.25, cents per mile per day from their home to the Anderson County Courthouse for the term for 

which they are drawn to serve. These rates shall be effective for all services rendered between July 1, 

2021 and June 30, 2022. 
 

SECTION XXXVII-FUNDING OF E-911 SERVICES 
 

 In order to provide all citizens of Anderson County with the best emergency dispatch services 

available and to fund those services in the most effective, efficient manner possible, the County 

Administrator is hereby directed to utilize and apply the maximum E-9-1-1 tariff funds available by 

current South Carolina law to the County's E-9-1-1 system, in accordance with County procurement 

policies and state law. 
 

SECTION XXXVIII-ROAD ENCROACHMENT PERMITS 
 

The Anderson County Public Works Division is authorized to charge fees for encroachments 

on County roads and rights-of-way and for encroachment permits for such encroachments in 

accordance with an encroachment fee schedule prepared, from time to time, by the Anderson County 

Public Works Division, and approved by Anderson County Council by appropriate Council action. 

Such fees for encroachments on Anderson County roads and rights-of-way and for encroachment 

permits for such fees shall be sufficient to fully reimburse the County for all costs of supervising, 

inspecting, and repairing, as necessary, all damage to County roads and rights-of-way caused by such 

encroachments. 

 

SECTION XXXIX-FUND BALANCE POLICY 
 

 Maintenance of an adequate and appropriate fund balance is critical to an overall sound 

fiscal policy and practice of the County. Maintenance of such fund balance not only protects the 

County against emergencies and unexpected contingencies, it actually saves the County significant 

amounts of money, through less reliance on tax anticipation notes and through lower interest rates 

for borrowing money and issuing debt. A fund balance policy is looked upon favorably by rating 

agencies and investors. County Council, therefore, and hereby, establishes a policy that the County 

will maintain a general fund balance of approximately six (6) months of current budget 

expenditures, including operating transfers out, but not less than two (2) months of such 

expenditures. 
 

SECTION XXXX-REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION POLICY 
 

Anderson County is a participant in the Federal Community Development Block Grant 

Program for the purpose of undertaking various important community and economic development 

activities throughout the County. The Community Development Block Grant Program requires a 

reasonable accommodations policy for Section 504 regulations. Anderson County, acting by and 

through the Anderson County Council, desires to comply with all necessary Grant requirements. 

Anderson County, acting by and through the Anderson County Council, is hereby willing to make 

reasonable accommodations for the known physical or mental impairments of an otherwise 

qualified participant, applicant or employee, providing it does not cause undue financial or 

administrative burden on the County or cause a fundamental alteration of the County’s program. 

Anderson County Council hereby recognizes that the policy created hereunder includes 



20 

 

employees, applicants for employment, and the public when the public is involved in County 

activities. The Anderson County Administrator, for and on behalf of the County, is hereby 

authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary or appropriate in connection with this 

Policy. 

SECTION XXXXI-SMALL, WOMEN-OWNED AND MINORITY-OWNED BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISES 
 

 To promote free competition and equal opportunity, Anderson County is committed, within 

the parameters of the County procurement code, to assisting small, minority-owned and woman-

owned businesses in becoming active vendors with the County. Anderson County encourages and 

invites small, woman, and/or minority owned businesses located inside and outside of the County to 

participate in the County’s procurement process. It is the policy of the County to prohibit 

discrimination against any person or business in pursuit of procurement opportunities on the basis of 

race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, disability, political affiliation or gender. 
 

SECTION XXXXII-SOLICITOR CASE FACILITATOR 
 

Funding for the temporary Case Facilitator in the Solicitor’s Office is budgeted for an 

additional year and is intended to provide representation for Anderson County in the Magistrates 

Courts of Anderson County. This is a temporary position only. In order for this position to be 

considered in future budget years, the Solicitor’s Office must provide the Administrator with 

quarterly reports indicating the number of new cases referred each quarter, the number of court 

appearances each quarter, and a certification from the Solicitor that this position was only used for 

representation in Magistrate Court on Anderson County cases during the quarter. 

SECTION XXXXIII-SEVERABILITY 
 

 If any clause, phrase, sentence, paragraph, appropriation, or section of this Ordinance shall be 

held invalid for any reason, it shall not affect the validity of this Ordinance as a whole or the remaining 

clauses, phrases, sentences, paragraphs, appropriations, or sections hereof, which are hereby declared 

separable. 
 

SECTION XXXXIV-EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

 This Ordinance shall become effective and enforced from and after July 1, 2021. 



21 

ADOPTED in meeting duly assembled this 1st  day of June, 2021. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns   Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Administrator 

John Wright, Jr. District #1 Seth A. Riddley
Assistant Clerk to Council 

Vacant, District #2 

Ray Graham, District #3 

Brett Sanders, District #4 

Jimmy Davis, District #6 

M. Cindy Wilson, District #7

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 

Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading:  May 4, 2021 

Second Reading: May 18, 2021 

Third Reading:  June 1, 2021 

Public Hearing: May 18, 2021 



Ordinance #2021-032 
Page 1 of 3 

Jackson Circle 

 
Ordinance #2021-032 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 1.03 acres from R-20 (Single Family 
Residential) to R-D (Residential Duplex) on a parcel of land, identified as 
Jackson Circle in the Fork No. 1 Precinct shown in Deed Book 13059 page 
164. The parcel is further identified as part of TMS #46-00-02-002 (Lot 1-A & Lot 
2-A). 
 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from R-20 to R-D for +/- 1.03 acres of TMS #46-00-02-002 (Lot 1-A & 
Lot 2-A) described above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on April 14, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed rezoning 
from to R-20 to R-D +/- 1.03 acres of TMS #46-00-02-002 (Lot 1-A & Lot 2-A) 
described above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on June 1, 2021 regarding said amendment of the Anderson County Official 
Zoning Map:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



Ordinance #2021-032 
Page 2 of 3 

Jackson Circle 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from R-20 to R-D +/- 1.03 acres of 
TMS 46-00-02-002 (Lot 1-A & Lot 2-A) described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-032 
Page 3 of 3 

Jackson Circle 
 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2021-032 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Seth A. Riddley      
Interim Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading:      June 1, 2021 
 
2nd Reading:      June 15, 2021 
 
3rd Reading:  July 6, 2021 
 
Public Hearing:  June 1, 2021 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-033 
Page 1 of 3 

Jackson Circle 

 
Ordinance #2021-033 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 1.25 acres from R-20 (Single Family 
Residential) to R-D (Residential Duplex) on 2 parcels of land, identified as 
Jackson Circle in the Fork No. 1 Precinct shown in Deed Book 14195 page 
183. The parcels are further identified as TMS #46-00-03-026 & #46-00-03-027. 
 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from R-20 to R-D for +/- 1.25 acres of TMS #46-00-03-026 & #46-00-03-
027 described above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on April 14, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed rezoning 
from to R-20 to R-D +/- 1.25 acres of TMS #46-00-03-026 & #46-00-03-027 described 
above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on June 1, 2021 regarding said amendment of the Anderson County Official 
Zoning Map:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



Ordinance #2021-033 
Page 2 of 3 

Jackson Circle 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from R-20 to R-D +/- 1.25 acres of 
TMS #46-00-03-026 & #46-00-03-027 described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-033 
Page 3 of 3 

Jackson Circle 
 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2021-033 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Seth A. Riddley       
Interim Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading:      June 1, 2021 
 
2nd Reading:      June 15, 2021 
 
3rd Reading:  July 6, 2021 
 
Public Hearing:  June 1, 2021 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-034 

Page 1 of 3 

104 & 106 Chippewa Ln, Williamston 

 
Ordinance #2021-034 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 

Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 1.08 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial) 

to S-1 (Service District) on a parcel of land, identified as 104 & 106 Chippewa 

Ln in the Williamston Mill Precinct shown in Deed Book 14262 page 300. The 

parcel is further identified as TMS #220-06-01-003 & TMS #220-06-01-004. 

  
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 

of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 

Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 

Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 

which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 

and, 

 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 

Map; and, 

 

Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 

amendment from C-2 to S-1 for +/- 1.08 acres of TMS #220-06-01-003 & TMS #220-

06-01-004. described above; and, 

 

Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 

Public Hearing on April 14, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed rezoning 

from to C-2 to S-1 +/- 1.08 acres of TMS #220-06-01-003 & TMS #220-06-01-004. 
described above; and, 

 

Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 

Hearing on June 1, 2021 regarding said amendment of the Anderson County Official 

Zoning Map:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

  



Ordinance #2021-034 

Page 2 of 3 

104 & 106 Chippewa Ln, Williamston 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 

assembled, that: 

 

 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 

consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 

with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 

Article 5. 

 

2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 

County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-2 to S-1 +/- 1.08 acres of 

TMS #220-06-01-003 & TMS #220-06-01-004. described above.         

 

3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 

ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 

4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 

repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance #2021-034 

Page 3 of 3 

104 & 106 Chippewa Ln, Williamston 

 

 

ATTEST:  Ordinance 2021-034 

 

 

 

_____________________________         __________________________________   

Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 

Anderson County Administrator 

 

 

 

_____________________________    

Seth A. Riddley       

Interim Clerk to Council 

              

   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

        

 

 

     

Anderson County Attorney  

     

 

1st Reading:      June 1, 2021 

 

2nd Reading:      June 15, 2021 

 

3rd Reading:  July 6, 2021 

 

Public Hearing:  June 1, 2021 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance #2021-035 

Page 1 of 3 

702 Belton Highway, Williamston 

 
Ordinance #2021-035 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 

Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 18.07 acres from PD (Planned 

Development) & R-20 (Single Family Residential) to R-A (Residential 

Agricultural) on 3 parcels of land, identified as 702 Belton Highway in the 

Williamston Mill Precinct shown in Deed Book 10154 page 39, Deed Book 

13038 page 54 & Deed Book 13038 page 50. The parcels are further identified 

as TMS #222-00-03-007, TMS #221-00-09-042 & TMS #221-00-09-043. 

 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 

of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 

Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 

Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 

which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 

and, 

 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 

Map; and, 

 

Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 

amendment from PD & R-20 to R-A for +/- 18.07 acres of TMS #222-00-03-007, TMS 

#221-00-09-042 & TMS #221-00-09-043. described above; and, 

 

Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 

Public Hearing on April 14, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed rezoning 

from to PD & R-20 to R-A +/- 18.07 acres of TMS #222-00-03-007, TMS #221-00-09-

042 & TMS #221-00-09-043. described above; and, 

 

Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 

Hearing on June 1, 2021 regarding said amendment of the Anderson County Official 

Zoning Map:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

  



Ordinance #2021-035 

Page 2 of 3 

702 Belton Highway, Williamston 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 

assembled, that: 

 

 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 

consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 

with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 

Article 5. 

 

2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 

County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from PD & R-20 to R-A +/-18.07 

acres of TMS #222-00-03-007, TMS #221-00-09-042 & TMS #221-00-09-

043 described above.         

 

3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 

ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 

4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 

repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance #2021-035 

Page 3 of 3 

702 Belton Highway, Williamston 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  Ordinance 2021-035 

 

 

 

_____________________________         __________________________________   

Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 

Anderson County Administrator 

 

 

 

_____________________________    

Seth A. Riddley       

Interim Clerk to Council 

              

   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

        

 

 

     

Anderson County Attorney  

     

 

1st Reading:      June 1, 2021 

 

2nd Reading:      June 15, 2021 

 

3rd Reading:  July 6, 2021 

 

Public Hearing:  June 1, 2021 

 

 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO.: 2021-036 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 38-311 (e), SECTION 38-313(3), AND SECTION 
38-43(d) OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA SO AS TO UPDATE THE STORMWATER PROVISIONS OF THESE 
ORDINANCES; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County has been designated as a regulated small municipal 
separate storm sewer system (SMS4) and operates under a General NDPES Permit issued by the 
South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control (DHEC); 
 
 WHEREAS, the SMS4 General Permit requires the SMS4 Permittee, among other things, 
to require stormwater controls for disturbance of sites of one acre or more, including those sites 
which are part of a larger common plan of development; 
 
 WHEREAS, Article V of Chapter 38 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South 
Carolina sets forth the requirements for stormwater management and sedimentation control; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council, consistent with the DHEC requirements for 
stormwater management within SMS4s, desires to update the stormwater provisions of various 
sections of Chapter 38 of the Code of Ordinances. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained in meeting duly assembled that: 
 
 1. Section 38-311(e) of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina 
is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

(e) Approval of the preliminary plat constitutes general approval by the 
planning commission of the road alignments, dimensions, layout, shape 
of lots and proposed right of ways.  However, review and approval by 
other departments and governmental agencies must also be obtained, 
including, but not limited to, Stormwater permits from Anderson 
County Stormwater Managements and the Department of Health and 
Environmental Control (DHEC), which must be obtained prior to 
beginning land disturbing activity. A list of appropriate review agencies 
shall be maintained and available at the planning commission office.  
This list shall be periodically reviewed and updated. 

 
 2. Section 38-313 (3) of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, 
South Carolina, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

(3) The proposed Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plan, as 
submitted to Anderson County Stormwater Management and/or DHEC, 
showing proposed structures, pipe sizes, drainage easements, pipe 
locations, basins (if required), approximate cross section details for 
handling water from roads and property and all associated calculations 



to substantiate the drainage plan.  Upon receipt of the approved plan 
from Anderson County Stormwater Management and DHEC, and prior 
to commencement of grading, the approved plan shall submitted to the 
subdivision administrator. 

 
 3. Section 38-314(d) of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina 
is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

(d) In the case of summary plats which contain up to seven lots, the 
subdivider shall not be required to submit a drainage plan or contour 
maps required by section 38-312(9) for the purpose of obtaining 
summary plat approval.  However, if a total of one acre or more of land 
will  collectively be disturbed on the lots, regardless of timing, drainage 
and contour maps will be necessary to meet the requirements of 
Anderson County Stormwater Management and DHEC. 

 
 4. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 
not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 
 5. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 6. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 7. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 
 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 

Seth A. Riddley 
Assistant Clerk to Council 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: _________________ 

2nd Reading:__________________ 

3rd Reading:___________________ 

Public Hearing:________________ 
 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  2021-028 

 

A RESOLUTION TO NAME SETH A. RIDDLEY AS ASSISTANT CLERK TO COUNTY 

COUNCIL TO SERVE DURING THE ABSENCE OF THE CLERK TO COUNCIL; AND 

OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-36(3) of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, 

South Carolina the County Council may appoint and has appointed a person, not a member of the 

County Council, to serve as Clerk at the pleasure of County Council; and 

 WHEREAS, the County Council finds it advisable to name an Assistant Clerk to Council 

to serve during any absence of the Clerk to Council. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 

assembled that: 

 1. The County Council hereby names Seth A. Riddley to serve as Assistant Clerk to 

Council during any absence of the clerk to council. 

 2. All orders and resolutions in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict 

only, repealed and rescinded.   

 3. Should any part or portion of this resolution be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding shall not affect the 

remainder hereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable.  

 4. This resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon enactment.  

 RESOLVED this 1st day of June, 2021, in meeting duly assembled. 
 

ATTEST: 

 

              

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Administrator   

    

       

Seth A. Riddley 

Assistant Clerk to County Council 











State of South Carolina
Office of the Secretary of State
The Honorable Mark Hammond

South Carolina Secretary of State, Division of Public Charities
1205 Pendleton Street, Suite 525, Columbia, SC 29201

Phone (803) 734-1790 Fax (803) 734-1604 Email: charities@sos.sc.gov www.sos.sc.gov

Jan 22, 2021

American Red Cross
David Hines
2424 CITY HALL LN
N CHARLESTON, SC 29406

RE: Exemption Confirmation Charity Public ID: C37953492

Dear David Hines :

This letter confirms that the Secretary of State's Office has received and accepted your Application for Exemption.
If you submitted your Application for Exemption using the Charities Online Filing System, this letter of
confirmation has been issued pending further review by Division of Public Charities staff.

The exemption for your charitable organization will expire on Nov 15, 2021. If any of the information on your
Application for Exemption form changes throughout the course of the year, please contact our office to make
updates. It is important that this information remain updated so that our office can keep you informed of any
changes that may affect your charitable organization. Additionally, if at any time your charitable organization no
longer qualifies for an exemption, the organization must immediately register with the Secretary of State's Office.
Please note that failure to comply with the registration provisions of the Solicitation of Charitable Funds Act may
result in fines of up to $2,000.00 for each separate violation.

If you have any questions or concerns, please visit our website at www.sos.sc.gov or contact our office using the
contact information below.

Sincerely,

Kimberly S. Wickersham
Director, Division of Public Charities


	Agenda
	02aSP Whitefield Fire 50th Anniversary Resolution
	03. 050421 Minutes
	03. 051821 Minutes
	05. Finance Committee Agenda
	06a. 2021-030 Budget Ordinance FY 22 3rd Reading
	08a. Ordinance 2021-032 1st Reading
	08b. Ordinance 2021-033 1st Reading
	08c. Ordinance 2021-034 1st Reading
	08d. Ordinance 2021-035 1st Reading
	08e. Ordinance 2021-036 1st Reading
	09a. RESOLUTION NO 2021-028
	10a. Bid Approval ACTC
	12a. Red Cross Appropriation



